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Financial Highlights

RESULTS SUMMARY
(For the year ended 31 December 2014)

(RMB’000) 2013

(RESEE)]

Revenue and profit:

Revenue 34,426,424 37,262,006 31,252,572 27,817,178 6,964,551
Profit before taxation 1,574,778 1,947,400 1,448,543 1,181,726 454,888
Profit after taxation 1,258,317 1,678,840 1,266,241 907,962 342,590

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 641,949 1,030,898 969,839 674,556 193,561
Non-controlling interests 616,368 647,942 295,539 233,406 149,029

Basic earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 0.55 0.90 0.85 0.58 0.29
Diluted earnings per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 0.34 0.54 0.51 0.35 0.29
Dividends per share attributable to the

owners of the Company (RMB) 0.10 - - 0.03 -

ASSETS SUMMARY
(As at 31 December 2014, consolidated)

(RMB’000) 2013

(Restated)

Total assets 57,773,262 50,835,400 43,713,280 36,857,120 17,267,413
Total liabilities 39,383,749 37,063,462 31,564,512 26,142,255 12,318,964
Total equity 18,389,513 13,771,938 12,148,768 10,714,865 4,948,449
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 9,622,052 8,798,798 7,838,847 6,636,143 1,977,482
Non-controlling interests 8,767,461 4,973,140 4,309,921 4,078,722 2,970,967

Basic net assets per share attributable to

owners of the Company (RMB) 8.66 7.92 7.06 5.98 2.94
Diluted net assets per share attributable to
owners of the Company (RMB)* 5.03 4.60 4.10 3.47 2.94
1 Diluted net assets per share attributable to owners of the Company is calculated based on the equity attributable

to owners of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue adjusted to assume
conversion of all perpetual subordinated convertible securities into ordinary shares.
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Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

It is my honor to present the 2014 annual
report of AVIC International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) on behalf of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), to the
shareholders, business partners and supporters
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”).

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group recorded a consolidated revenue
from continuing operations of approximately
RMB34,426,424,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 8% over the previous year of
approximately RMB37,262,006,000 (restated,
same as below). The profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately
RMB641,949,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 38% over the previous year of
approximately RMB1,030,898,000.

2014 was a year when global economy had
been recovering in a difficult way. The domestic
economy was under increasingly downward
pressure and encountered a “New Normal” with
adjusted economic structure, structural slow-
down and changes in the driving force behind
growth. Facing a complicated and variable
external environment, the Group adhered to the planned strategies, deeply probed into strategic transformation and
development, emphasized on improving each business structure and its efficiency, and enhanced the capability
of sustainable development. The high-tech electronic products section accelerated the business transformation
and upgrade, steadfastly carry forward the optimization of product structure and market expansion. The high-
tech electronic products section achieved critical progress in the industrialization of various advanced technologies
and LCD business successfully completed the material capital reorganization and financing. The retails and high-
end customer products section focused on optimizing channel construction and raising the efficiency of shops
and promoted its online and offline integration and development, and thus realized a rapid growth in its self-owned
brand name watch. The real estate business actively coped with the structural adjustment in the industry, explored
and strengthened the overseas real estate development business. The trading and logistics business focused
on the professional development and it proactively facilitated the optimization of the business model and the
enhancement of professionalism, and thus substantial orders were obtained in the market from time to time.
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Chairman’s Statement

With the smooth progress of various key businesses, the Group continued to consolidate its management
foundation and to enhance its professional capabilities so as to maintain its competitiveness in the complicated
external environment. The Group further promoted the reform of mechanism, stimulated the business vitality,
enhanced the operational effectiveness, explored new financing channel, and improved the resource allocation and
profitability. The Group vigorously implemented management innovation and full mobilization of “micro-innovation”
S0 as to enhance the innovation capability.

Looking ahead towards 2015, the global economic recovery remains apparently imbalanced and fluctuating while
it is hard to increase the demand from overseas market significantly. Despite the fact that the Chinese economy is
still positioning at the “three overlapping periods” (= HAi& JNf& ER), the upgrade of domestic industrial structure and
the “One Belt and One Road” (—# — &) strategy will create good opportunities for relevant enterprises.

Firmly adhering to the established strategies and under the guiding principle of transformation and innovation, the
Group will deepen core business strategic transformation, speed up business model renovation and mechanism
reforms, realize the innovative model with customer-oriented and in line with the business, progressively draw up
the overseas market layout as well as promote the implementation of international strategies. Besides, the Group
will strengthen the execution of strategies, determinedly shoulder the responsibilities and enhance efficiencies
and effectiveness through management refinement. Increasing business earnings of core businesses is the major
concern of the Group. Coupled with a focus on value growth, the Group will escalate business integration, optimize
resources allocation and investment structure and attach great importance to investment returns

The journey to achieve our dream is destined to be full of twists and turns but yet it will be bright. The Group will
steadfastly focus on its strategy and strengthen its implementation, and enhance its quality and efficiency which will
drive the Group from super to excellence!

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all the staff for their
relentless work and commitment, to all our shareholders, business partners and people from all walks of life for
their full support. We will continue to dedicate ourselves to creating better returns for our shareholders, customers
and staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE ORGANIZATION CHART
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The consolidated revenue and profit contributions of the Company in its consolidated results for the year ended 31
December 2014 were primarily derived from the following business sections and subsidiaries:

Percentage of
equity interests

held by the
Business sections Name of subsidiaries Company

Principal activities

High-tech Electronic Tianma Micro-electronics Co., Ltd. 25.76%
Products (“Tianma”)

Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. (*SCC”) 92.99%

Shenzhen Aero-Fasteners 100%

MFG Co., Ltd. (*AFM Company”)

Retails and High-end Fiyta Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”) 41.49%
Consumer Products

Real Estate and Hotel  Beijing AVIC Ruixin Investment and 90%
Management Company Limited
(“Beijing Ruixin”)

Chengdu AVIC Raise 60%
Real Estate Company Limited
(“Chengdu Raise”)

Xi" an AVIC Raise Xikong 51%
Real Estate Company Limited
(“Xi’an Raise”)

China National Aero - Technology 100%

International Engineering
Company Limited
(“Engineering Company”)

Guangdong International 75%
Building Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“GIB Company”)

Manufacture and sales of liquid crystal displays
and modules (LCD)

Manufacture and sales of printed circuit boards
and packaging substrate (PCB)

High intensity bolts, precision screws and screw
nuts, irregular parts

Manufacture of middle to high-end wrist watches
and chain store sales of luxury watches

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial property
development

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial property
development

Mainly engages in residential premises
development business and industrial property
development

Mainly engages in general contracting of
international engineering construction,
overseas property development and general
contracting of domestic construction
engineering

Hotel operation
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Business sections

Name of subsidiaries

Percentage of
equity interests
held by the
Company

Principal activities

Trading and Logistics

Resources Investment
and Development

China National Aero - Technology
Beiling Company Limited
(“Beijing Company”)

AVIC International Maritime Holdings
Limited (*AVIC Maritime”)

AVIC Weihai Shipyard Co., Ltd.
(“Weihai Shipyard”)

China National Aero - Technology
Guangzhou Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Company”)

China National Aero - Technology
Xiamen Company Limited
(“Xiamen Company”)

China National Aero - Technology
Trade and Economic Development
Company Limited (“TED Company”)

AVIC International Renewable Energy
Development Co., Ltd.
(“RED Company”)

Shenzhen AVIC Resources Co., Ltd.
(“AVIC Resource”)

100%

73.87%

69.77%

100%

100%

97.5%

100%

100%

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SECTIONS IN 2014

10%

17%

Trading and logistics of cement engineering and
machinery vehicles, etc.

Shipping engineering

Shipping construction

Trading and logistics of medical facilities and
bitumen engineering

Trading and logistics of stone materials

Tendering agency, information application and
automated control service

Sales and purchase of energy equipment, energy
management and new energy equipment

Investment and development of agriculture-
related resources business

® High-tech Electronic Products

® Retail and High-end Consumer Products

' Real Estate and Hotel

® Trading and Logistics

» Resources Investment and Development
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Summary of Performance

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue of approximately
RMB34,426,424,000, representing a decrease of approximately 8% over the previous year of approximately
RMB37,262,006,000 (restated figures, same as below). The profit attributable to owners of the Group was
approximately RMB641,949,000, representing a decrease of approximately 38% as compared with approximately
RMB1,030,898,000 over last year.

2014 was a year when global economy had been recovering in a difficult way. The domestic economy was
under increasingly downward pressure and encountered a “New Formality” with adjusted economic structure,
structural slow-down and changes in the driving force behind growth. Facing a complicated and variable external
environment, the Group adhered to the planned strategies, deeply probed into strategic transformation and
development, emphasized on improving each business structure and its efficiency, and enhanced the capability
of sustainable development. The high-tech electronic products section accelerated the business transformation
and upgrade, steadfastly carry forward the optimization of product structure and market expansion. The high-tech
electronic products section achieved critical progress in the industrialization of various advanced technologies and
successfully completed the material capital reorganization and financing of LCD business. The retails and high-
end customer products section focused on optimizing channel construction and raising the efficiency of shops
and promoted its online and offline integration and development, and thus realized a rapid growth in its self-owned
brand name watch. The real estate business actively coped with the structural adjustment in the industry, explored
and strengthened the overseas real estate development business. The trading and logistics business focused
on the professional development and it proactively facilitated the optimization of the business model and the
enhancement of professionalism, and thus substantial orders were obtained in the market from time to time.

High-tech Electronic Products

As for the business of high-tech electronic products, the Group engages in research and development (R&D),
design, production, sales and service of LCD and PCB products mainly through its subsidiaries, such as
Tianma and SCC. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue generated from high-tech
electronic products section was approximately RMB13,067,654,000, representing an increase of approximately
18% from approximately RMB11,059,896,000 for the same period of last year. The profit was approximately
RMB906,770,000, representing a decrease of approximately 10% from approximately RMB1,012,183,000 for the
same period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products (continued)

(1)

@)

78

LCD
The LCD products of Tianma comprise small-to-medium size liquid crystal displays (LCD) and liquid crystal
modules (LCM), which are mainly used in communication terminal and professional displays.

In 2014, the demand for smartphones in domestic market transformed from low-to-middle end to high end
products, while the growth of professional display market was strong under the driving force of the demand
for vehicle display and family health care. Tianma focused on the consumption market of middle-to-high
end mobile communication and professional display market of vehicle display and medical aspect. With the
continuous optimization of products and structure of customers and achievement in the breakthroughs in key
target markets, there was a significant increase in the market share of middle-to-high end smartphones and
vehicle display products. It also integrated resources for R&D, strengthened the basic research capability in
the area of display techniques and accelerated the layout for new products and new businesses. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, Tianma successfully completed the major restructuring and complementary
financing by issuing additional shares to acquire the related assets in Shanghai Tian Ma Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Tianma"), Chengdu Tian Ma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. ("Chengdu Tianma"), Wuhan Tian
Ma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. ("Wuhan Tianma"), Shanghai AVIC Opto-electronics Limited ("Shanghai Opto-
electronics") and Shenzhen AVIC Opto-electronics Limited ("Shenzhen Opto-electronics”), which resulted
in a significant increase in the overall operation efficiency compared with last year, and the overall core
competitiveness had been further strengthened. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the contract for
the 6th generation of LTPS TFT-LCD project of Wuhan had been duly executed, and the AMOLED back-end
production line of Shanghai has been progressing smoothly.

PCB

PCB products comprise middle-to-high end multi-layer PCB products and packaging substrate, which are
mainly used in high technology fields such as telecommunication, aeronautics and astronautics, medical
services and industrial control.

In 2014, SCC grasped the opportunities of the industry to focus on the market with quality customers and
emphasized on developing key customers so that the profitability continued to increase. Leveraging on the
demand of domestic 4G establishment, the orders and outputs of PCB business kept hitting record highs.
The capability of the electronics assembly business continued to increase, achieving significant result on
probing and developing strategically key customers, resulting in a substantial increase in the orders as
compared with last year. The key technology and the research and production of the substrate business
achieved breakthroughs. With continuous optimization in the structure of products, the orders and profits
increased significantly. During the year ended 31 December 2014, a trial production for connecting PCB
and electronics assembly business was realized as the construction of Wuxi production base phase one
advanced smoothly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

The retails and high-end consumer products section of the Group engages in the production and brand operation
of middle to high-end watches and chain sales of prestigious watches through its subsidiary, Fiyta. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the turnover generated from the retails and high-end consumer products section of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB3,221,007,000, representing a growth of approximately 6% when compared
with approximately RMB3,041,122,000 in the previous year. The profit was approximately RMB149,498,000,
representing an increase of approximately 5% from approximately RMB142,964,000 for the same period of last
year.

In 2014, affected by the macro environment, the demand in the domestic luxury watch market was weak, while the
demand in middle end brand market kept increasing. Fiyta insisted on the strategy of “products’ brand+ channels’
brand”, continued to optimize the comprehensive channel operation platform system, adjusted the structure
and layout of retail channels to increase the efficiency of single shop, while facilitating the establishment of new
channels for e-commerce at the same time. The self-owed brand Fiyta has been exhibited in the fabulous exhibition
in Basel International Watch for consecutive years. The sales performance of domestic and overseas markets was
impressive, with the growth of profit exceeding 40% as compared with the same period of last year. Harmony was
ranked in the list of “Top 500 Asian Brands” (“Z2 )M f £5003%”) and “Champion for Valuable Chinese Brand” (“
mhEEEDER") again.

reddot design award
winner 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Real Estate and Hotel

The Group engages in real estate development business through its subsidiaries Chengdu Raise, Xi’an Raise and
Beijing Ruixin, and engages in engineering contracting business through Engineering Company. For the year ended
31 December 2014, the real estate and hotel business section of the Group recorded turnover of approximately
RMB5,891,369,000, representing an increase of approximately 41% as compared with approximately
RMB4,187,299,000 in the previous year. The profit was approximately RMB686,933,000, representing an increase
of approximately 28% as compared with approximately RMB537,398,000 in the previous year. Profit comprises
investment gain from jointly controlled entity and associate, AVIC Yanke Company Limited (“AVIC Yanke”) and AVIC
Real Estate Holding Company Limited (“AVIC Real Estate”) of approximately RMB291,718,000.

(1)

@)
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Real Estate Development
The domestic real estate development business of the Group mainly focuses on commercial complex
development projects in small to medium cities.

In 2014, the domestic real estate market faced challenges while regional diversion became more and more
intensified. The construction and sales of the domestic real estate development projects under the Group
were carried out gradually as planned while the expansion and construction of the real estate development
projects in emerging overseas markets such as Kenya, Sri Lanka and Tanzania speeded up.

Engineering Contracting
The engineering contracting business of the Group mainly comprises engineering contracting of international
construction and gradually expands into the domestic construction engineering contracting field.

In 2014, steadfastly adhering to the global strategic principle, the engineering contracting business of the
Group focused on the three major regional markets in the Middle East, Africa and South Asia and undertook
numerous large and medium international engineering projects. During the year ended 31 December
2014, 4 international and domestic engineering contracting projects with total contract value amounting to
RMB712,000,000 were newly signed. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the reconstruction and
expansion project of Kenya Nairobi International Airport was completed. The highway renovation project
in Sri Lanka has been completed smoothly. The ground-breaking ceremony was held successfully for the
Hangar project in Ethiopia. All these highlighted the stable and positive growth momentum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading and Logistics

The Group engages in ship engineering, mechatronics engineering, tendering agency and information application
services through its subsidiaries, namely Beijing Company, AVIC Maritime, Weihai Shipyard, Guangzhou Company,
Xiamen Company, TED Company and RED Company. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover
generated from trading and logistics business was approximately RMB11,780,260,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 37% from approximately RMB18,600,479,000 of the previous year. The losses was approximately
RMB93,121,000, representing a decrease of approximately 130% from profit of approximately RMB318,454,000 of
the previous year.

(1)

@

3)

Ship Engineering

In 2014, the integration of the Group’s shipping business progressed steadily. The synergy effects realized
by integrating with Deltamarin Oy in Finland and the commitment to developing high value added products
such as offshore engineering ships and special vessels facilitated the improvement on the infrastructure
construction of shipping factory. During the year ended 31 December 2014, 13 new shipping orders were
signed under the Group’s shipping business, among which, 22 shipping orders were in effect. Orders on
hand accumulated to 43 ships. Besides, the Group achieved delivery of 17 ships for the year ended 31
December 2014. Under the downturn in the global shipping market, the shipping business of the Group
suffered a great loss.

Mechatronics Engineering

The mechatronics engineering business of the Group mainly comprises cement and elementary performing
constructions including power station engineering (EPC), export of machinery vehicles and so on. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, with respect to cement EPC business, the acquisition of the shareholding
of KHD Humboldt Wedag International AG (“KHD”, a company the shares of which are listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange), was completed. On this foundation, the Group devoted to the expansion of the
cement EPC business to worldwide markets, business synergy and transformation upgrades. Multitudes
of orders were secured in regions such as Venezuela, while the execution of projects on hand in regions
such as Malaysia and Turkey progressed smoothly. The power station projects in countries such as U.S
and Pakistan, which focused on new energy such as wind power and photovoltaic, had been completed
successfully. The expansion of domestic energy saving service market was progressing smoothly.
Meanwhile, the domestic bitumen engineering projects expanded and the earning generated increased
steadily. The mechatronics engineering business experienced rapid and positive growth momentum.

Tendering Agency and Information Application Service

The Group mainly engages in tendering agency and information application service through TED Company.
In 2014, the tendering agency business of the Group was progressing stably and the tendering business
expanded to international arena. Business development of the intelligent terminal on the internet information
application business front achieved a new breakthrough.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Resources Investment and Development

The Group engages in investment and development of agricultural-related resources through AVIC Resource.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the turnover generated from the Group’s resources development
business was approximately RMB466,134,000. Under the double influences of the drop of the bulk commodity
price and the phosphate fertilizers compressing bittern techniques, the resources business recorded a loss
amounting to approximately RMB248,906,000.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

2014 2013

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

Restated

Total borrowings 21,071,804 21,425,962
Total liabilities 39,383,749 37,063,462
Non-controlling interests 8,767,461 4,973,140
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 9,622,052 8,798,798
Total assets 57,773,262 50,835,400
Loan-to-equity ratio 114.59% 155.58%
Debt-to-equity ratio 214.16% 269.12%

Loan-to-equity ratio = total loans at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end
Debt-to-equity ratio = total liabilities at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,828,610,000 (2013: approximately RMB5,076,449,000), mainly derived from the following sources:

o Cash and bank deposits at the beginning of the year;

° Bank loans, borrowings from related parties; and

° Revenue from operations.

As at 31 December 2014, the total borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB21,071,804,000
(2013: approximately RMB21,425,962,000) with annual interest rate ranging from 0% to 17.83% (2013: 0% to
12.5%), of which the current borrowings amounted to approximately RMB10,474,485,000 (2013: approximately

RMB7,880,864,000) and the non-current borrowings amounted to RMB10,597,319,000 (2013: approximately
RMB13,545,098,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the capital expenditure of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,223,840,000, the details of which are set forth below:

Company Name Project Name 2014 Amount
(RMB’000)

Tianma Production line of Automotive TFT-LCD, TP ON-CELL and 573,355
modification of the production capacity

SCC No.8 Building investment, technological transformation, research and 711,830
development and investment in the project of Wuxi Base

AFM Company Phase | Shenzhen Aero Fasteners MFG Project 73,091

Fiyta Timepiece Industrial Base in Guang Ming New District 44,675

Beijing Ruixin Project on AVIC New Town of Langfang Company (B35 2 &) 104,804

Beijing Company Yizhuang Industrial Park Project, equipment procurement for 386,028
Humboldt Company in Germany

Guangzhou Company Investment and establishment of (a) subsidiary(ies) of Lutong 14,000
Company

Xiamen Company Project on office building of Xiamen Zijin AVIC Real Estate 93,035
Company Limited

RED Company New energy project in the PRC 28,598

AVIC Resource Projects on Saltern expansion and pipeline maintenance, 194,424

pressure brine, Metallic silicon and mining right

Total 2,223,840
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continuea)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

During the year ending 31 December 2015, the expected capital expenditure of the Group amounts to
approximately RMB6,185,499,000, the details of which are set forth below:

Company Name Project Name 2015 Amount

(RMB’000)
Tianma 06 production lines of Wuhan Tianma, automation renovation project 3,841,000
SCC No. 8 Building investment and research and development and 556,000

construction of Wuxi Base and Nantong Base (F 8 &)

AFM Company Phase | Shenzhen Aero Fasteners MFG Project 12,199
Fiyta Timepiece Industrial Base in Guang Ming New District 154,000
Beijing Ruixin Project on AVIC New Town of Langfang Company (B35 A 7)) 165,660
Beijing Company Projects on manufacturing cement equipment and hydraulic parts 221,240
Guangzhou Company Project on bitumen base of Lutong Company in Tianjin 50,000
Xiamen Company Projects on offices, mines and logistics parks 843,320
RED Company Project on energy-saving for different regions 120,500
AVIC Resource Projects on technical improvement of machine workshops, 221,580

Saltern construction and potash

Total 6,185,499

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking ahead towards 2015, the global economic recovery remains apparently imbalanced and fluctuating while
it is hard to increase the demand from overseas market significantly. Despite the fact that the Chinese economy is
still positioning at the “three overlapping periods” (= BiZ N EX), the upgrade of domestic industrial structure and
the “expanding outwards” strategies will create valuable historical opportunities. Firmly adhering to the established
strategies and under the guiding principle of transformation and innovation, the Group will deepen core business
strategic transformation, speed up business model renovation and mechanism reforms, realize the innovative
model facing the customers and in line with the business, progressively draw up the overseas market layout as
well as promote the implementation of international strategies. Besides, the Group will strengthen the execution
of strategies, determinedly shoulder the responsibilities and enhance efficiencies and effectiveness through
management refinement. Increasing business earnings of core businesses, reducing loss and stop suffering from a
loss are the major matters of concern for the Group. Coupled with a focus on value growth, the Group will escalate
business integration, optimize resources allocation and investment structure and attach great importance to
investment returns.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products

(1)

@)

LCD

It is expected that the competition in the LCD industry will be severer in 2015. Domestic smart devices
market transforms towards the middle-to-high-end market. The Group will continuously focus on two major
businesses, namely the consumer display products and professional display products, capture opportunities
in the market, explore key customers, expand the market share in the high end market. Meanwhile, the
Group will focus on high end products, enhance the R&D of core products and crucial techniques, speed
up the pace on the production of new products as well as maximize the added value of professional display
products. In order to create continuing competitive strengths, the Group will actively facilitate the realization
of industrial layout, prepare for the 6th generation of LTPS TFT LCD production line and endeavor to shorten
the manufacturing cycle.

PCB

It is expected that the demand for high-end PCB and packaging substrate is still strong in 2015 under the
driving force of the development of communication, servers and automobile electronics in the domestic and
overseas markets. SCC will continue to build a platform of high efficiency and high speed one-stop solution
of products and services, which would facilitate the market expansion and technological breakthrough for
PCB, electronics assembly and packaging substrate business. PCB business will insist on concentrating on
the in-depth development of traditional core market and new market breakthrough. Electronic packaging
business will boost the development of the strategically key customers in three target areas, namely medical,
digital communication and radio frequency, in a steady pace. Packaging substrate business will focus on
developing high-end target products and markets in order to establish a leading position in the industry.
Meanwhile, the Group will actively drive the production base in Wuxi to meet its capacity requirement as fast
as it can.

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

It is expected that the domestic watches consumer market will still maintain differentiated in 2015. The Group’s
retails and high-end consumer products will undergo omni-channel transformation, persistently nurture the core
competence, promote the implementation and integration of key value chain gradually and enhance the brand
name premium of Fiyta's watches. The sales channel of the prestigious watch under the brand name of Harmony
continuously optimizes the shop layouts, product structures and business portfolios to increase the inventory
turnover. The Group will strive to increase the overall profitability by increasing the growth of e-Commerce business,
improving the driving mechanism for innovation and exploring and nurturing new areas for profit growth.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)
Real Estate and Hotel

U

@)

Real Estate Development

It is expected that the adjustment and transformation of the real estate development market in the PRC will
continue in 2015 while opportunities are available in the overseas emerging real estate development markets.
The Group will seize the opportunities in major regions’ markets actively for the real estate development and
conduct the development and sales of the existing projects as planned.

Engineering Contracting

It is expected that the growth of international engineering contracting market will slow down in 2015 with
the market competition in the regions becoming more and more vigorous. The Group will still place East
Africa, South Asia and Middle East as the regional centers for its engineering contracting business. It strives
to increase the profitability by focusing on the infrastructural and urban construction aspects, enhancing the
sourcing capabilities for mega size engineering projects and general contracting management capabilities
and operating management standard of projects.

Trading and Logistics

The trading and logistics segment will continue to focus on and facilitate business transformation, which accelerate
the transformation and exit of non-core businesses and clarify and optimize the business model to further increase
the core competitiveness.

U

@)

86

Ship Engineering

It is expected that the slump in the shipping market will be difficult to show obvious change in 2015. The
elimination of outdated ships will be speeded up and there is larger demand for energy-saving, efficient as
well as clean and environmental-friendly ships. The Group will seize the market opportunities, focusing on
major markets, strengthening the R&D of high value-added products and fully utilizing the synergy of industry
chain so as to maximize the profit margin.

Mechatronics Engineering

The Group will continue to strengthen the integration and strategic synergy with KHD, fully utilizing the
brand and technological advantages of KHD in the cement aspect to develop the major markets including
Venezuela and Myanmar and obtain high quality orders. Also, it will strive for innovative business model,
control the cost expenses and increase the profitability. The Group will focus on the development of
businesses including infrastructure and mechatronics EPC in the major target markets, enhancing the
engineering management capability and cost expenses controlling as well as well implementing and
delivering on-hand projects, strengthening the sustainable development of the Group.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

In 2014, the fluctuation of global economy intensified whilst the growth of China’s economy has entered into a “New
Normal”. We adhered to the planned strategies, deeply probed into strategic transformation and development.
With respect for operation management, we continued to reinforce the transformation of mechanism and enhanced
the innovation capability, consolidated the basics of management, a culture of innovation was gradually formed.
While pursuing economic benefits, we proactively adhered to the mission of “Going beyond commerce for a better
world”. Through commercial act, care for staff development and partners’ benefits, facilitate social development,
preserve the environment, persist on the green growth, we unremittingly serve our society.

Excellence in Operation

The Company aims at becoming a leading company in the industry, and has established an effective operation
structure and procedure based on strategic planning. By means of integrated application of Six Sigma, refined
management and ISO9000, it has intensified its management innovation, enhanced efficiency and effectiveness and
proactively promoted excellent operation. Moreover, it has improved the business capability of the team and the
ability to create values, so as to realize great leap forward development.

1) Management Innovation
Capitalizing on managing innovative projects, Fiyta, Tianma and SCC, all being the subsidiaries of the
Company, were awarded the Second Prize and the Third Prize in the “2014 Management Innovation
Achievement for Enterprises in the Defense Technology Industry Award” of Aviation Industry, respectively.

On 31 December 2014, Weihai Shipyard, a subsidiary of the Company, was named on the qualified
enterprise list under the “Regulatory Conditions for Shipbuilding Industry” published by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China. By optimizing the management and
enhancing operation efficiency, Weihai Shipyard has passed the formulation and was named on the qualified
list, indicating that Weihai Shipyard has become an excellent shipbuilding enterprise supported by the policy
of the State.

2) Technology Innovation
On 11 February 2014, Fiyta Technology Company (e EHE A F]), a subsidiary of Fiyta, has passed the
National High-tech Enterprise Certification, which was another breakthrough achievement after it obtained
the recognition of “National High-tech Enterprise of Shenzhen”.

On 19 March 2014, the two projects, namely the “High-speed Printed Circuit Board used in 100G or above
Backbone Network” and the “High-end IC Test Circuit Board”, undertaken by SCC have filled the technology
gap of the peers in the domestic market with advancement in technology. The projects have achieved
international standard and have passed the verification on technological achievements.

On 25 March 2014, the modern watch “Three-dimensional Timepiece” of FIYTA won the “2014 Red Dot
Product Design Award in Germany”.

In April 2014, Tianma, being the first company to possess the capability to develop and manufacture

the embedded touch screen in the PRC, has won the “2014 China Electronic Information Expo Product
Innovation and Application Award”, filling the technology gap in the manufacturing field in the PRC.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Excellence in Operation (continued)

2) Technology Innovation (continued)
On 29 September 2014, Tianma commenced the construction of the production line in Wuhan for the most
advanced sixth-generation low-temperature polysilicon display panel (LTPS) in China.

People-oriented Approach
We adhere to the people-oriented approach, allowing all staff to work and self-develop with pleasure and enjoyment
alongside the development of the Company.

The “Heart Building Campaign” is a psychological assistance program for our staff. Employees can make an
appointment for counseling service by calling the hotline, whether it is for crisis intervention or individual ordinary
counseling. Over three years of operation, the campaign helps employees to solve their worries and enhance their
feelings of well-being.

On 12 January 2014, the Company’s first International Leadership Development Program was launched
successfully. Targeting young employees working overseas, the program is one of the Company’s important
measures to facilitate the implementation of overseas projects. Nurturing international thinking, general knowledge
skills and expertise, the program is to improve the students’ competency on international expansion so as to lay
the foundation for the achievement of the Company’s strategic goal and our overseas business development and
build up the talent pool.

On 25 May 2014, the Company successfully organized the Outstanding First-Line Managers Recognition-cum-
Sports Day with the participation of about 700 employees. Mr. Chen Hong Liang, an executive director of the
Company, read out the recognition decision for 297 outstanding first-line managers.

On 6 June 2014, at a ceremony held to announce the Ninth China International Forum on Corporate Social
Responsibility and the “Golden Honey Bee on Corporate Social Responsibility — China Ranking (55 J1fE # Bl 1 24t
SEIERRER CEEMELSET o FEIE"), Beiing Company received the “Golden Bee Award for Employee
Care Category”, becoming a role model of social responsibility among Chinese enterprises.

On 11 June 2014, the Company conducted the skills training workshop (Training Within Industry, TWI), for first-line
managers. The workshop is designed to improve the management standard of our first-line managers and develop
the best first-line team with high competency.

On 3 July 2014, SCC held the 30th Anniversary-cum-Corporate Culture Day, in which 40 employees who were
awarded Gold Medal for 10 years of service, 10 outstanding customer-oriented staff and teams, and 30 “Touched
SCC” staff were commended.

|
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Cooperation for Mutual Benefits

The Company strives for seeking win-win development during each co-operation and spares no effort in creating
value for staff, partners and stakeholders, so as to allow the sharing of achievement among partners and to
improve the livelihood for the society inside and outside China and to continuously enhance corporate value.

On 9 October 2014, at the 2014 Global Electronics Supplier Conference of Honeywell Aerospace, SCC was named
as the “2014 Best Global Supplier”.

On 20 May 2014, as the world leader in the information processing technology and call center field, AVAYA
presented the “2014 Best Quality Supplier” award to Tianma.

The mobile hospital project, the cassava project and overseas projects undertaken by Guangzhou Company, RED
Company and Engineering Company, respectively, have boosted the employment of the region, increased the
income of the government, improved the livelihood of the local citizens, and made contribution to the growth of the
regional economy, fulfilling our mission of “Going beyond commerce for a better world”.

Green Growth

The concept of green development has been put into practice by the Group and its investment companies in all
aspects, from two-sided copying to the treatment of water discharged from factory plants; from resources recycling
to energy saving scheme of hotel; the concept of green development embraces all sectors. We believe that only by
preserving the nature, we can have its blessing and can sustain the prosperity of the businesses.

Leveraging on the lighting energy-saving solution, RED Company, a subsidiary of the Company, tapped into
the domestic energy-saving service industry and conducted marketing research on innovation service model. It
completed more than 20 energy-saving renovation projects for two years, achieving annual electricity savings of
over 20 million degrees for customers.

On 25 October 2014, the trade fair in relation to the “Project of Landing of Energy Conservation, Environmental
Protection and Clean Technologies of KHD Humboldt Wedag in China” was held in Beijing. KHD Humboldt Wedag
International AG (“KHD”) is a subsidiary of the Company. KHD’s representatives at the meeting described in detail
the information about its energy conservation, environmental protection and clean technology and its successful
cases in lItaly, Norway and other countries, of which the cement plants were transformed into city solid waste
treatment centers.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guang Quan, aged 53, senior accountant and a MBA of Tongji University ([&% X&), is now the Chairman
of AVIC International, the chairman of AVIC Shenzhen and executive director and the chairman of the Company.
Mr. Wu also acts as an executive director and the chairman of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (stock code:
232) (“AVIC INTL”), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Wu joined AVIC Shenzhen in 1982 and the Group in 2003. He has rich experience in finance, administration and
operation management, and was appointed as an executive Director in 2003.

Mr. Lai Wei Xuan, aged 51, senior accountant, holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji University
and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International. Mr. Lai joined AVIC Shenzhen in 1983. He previously served as the deputy general manager
of AVIC Shenzhen, the Chairman of Fiyta, the deputy chairman of Tianma, both of which are the subsidiaries
of the Company and the shares of which are listed and traded on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Shenzhen
Stock Exchange”), and the chairman of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (RILEIZA7D B R A F]) (“Rainbow
Department Store”), a joint stock limited company established in the PRC whose shares are currently listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and approximately 43.04% of its equity interest was owned by AVIC Shenzhen, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lai has rich experience in finance and operation management, and
once acted as an executive Director from 2004 to 2012. He was appointed as an executive Director again in 2014.

Mr. You Lei, aged 46, senior engineer, MBA of Tongji University ([F}% X £2) and MBA of China Europe International
Business School, is now holding the positions of vice president of AVIC International, president of AVIC Shenzhen,
executive director and vice chairman of the Company, the chairman of Tianma, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and the chairman of SCC. Mr. You acts as an executive director of AVIC INTL, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. You joined AVIC Shenzhen in 1991 and the Group in 1997. He has rich experience in
enterprise operation and administration, and was appointed as an executive Director in 2003.

Mr. Pan Lin Wu, aged 51, is master of engineering in Beijing Aviation and Astronautics University (3t F i Z=fi
KX AE). He is now holding the positions of vice president, the chief financial officer of AVIC International and an
executive director and vice chairman of AVIC INTL, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He served as the
chief accountant at China National Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC
International, since 2001. He was appointed as a director and deputy chairman of the board of directors of AVIC
United States Company (FAiEEEEEI/AF]) in March 2011. Mr. Pan has many years of experience in financial
management, supervision and audit, and has substantial experience in the area of finance, capital operation and
risk management. He was appointed as an executive Director in 2012.

Mr. Chen Hong Liang, aged 47, holds the master degree in business administration from Tongji University (&)
KE). He is currently the vice president of AVIC International and the vice president of AVIC Shenzhen. Mr. Chen
has extensive experience in administration and human resources management. He was appointed as an executive
Director in 2012.

Mr. Liu Jun, aged 53, holds a bachelor degree in engineering from Beijing Aviation College (At RAZ=E2FE). He
is currently the vice president of AVIC International. He joined China National Aero-Technology Import and Export
Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International, in 1989. Between 1990 and 1993, he was seconded to station
at AVIC Germany. He served as the general manager of Beijing Company. He has rich experience in operation
management and was appointed as an executive Director in 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling, aged 54, received a bachelor degree of arts from the University of Hong Kong in November
1983 and a postgraduate diploma in accounting and finance from the London School of Economics and Political
Science, University of London, in the United Kingdom in July 1985. She has been registered as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong since June 1991 and has become a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 1995
and February 2001, respectively. Ms. Wong has over twenty years of experience in accounting and auditing and
mainly provides independent judgments towards the Company’s strategies, performance, resources and industry
practices. She had worked for more than seven years in major international accounting firms and local accounting
firms before she set up her own accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1993. She is currently an independent non-
executive director and chairlady of the audit committee of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited
(formerly known as China Ruifeng Galaxy Renewable Energy Holdings Limited) (stock code: 527), Overseas
Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366) and Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited
(stock code: 3608), all of which are companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Wong is also an executive director and chief executive officer of JC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8326)
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (stock code: 8059), all of which are
companies whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Besides, Ms. Wong
was appointed as non-executive director of Hin Sang Group Holding Co. Limited (stock code: 6893) a Hong Kong
main board listed company. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2008.

Mr. Wu Wei, aged 42, holds the bachelor of arts from Columbia University, majoring in economy and industrial
engineering. He is now the director of CITIC Securities International Company Limited and responsible for private
equity fund business. He has over 15-year’s experience in enterprise investment and investment bank, and worked
in Deutsche Bank Asia, Henderson Global Investors Asian Fund and Lehman Brothers Asia Limited. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2009.

Mr. Wei Wei, aged 50, holds a master degree in business administration from Tsinghua University and a doctorate
degree in management science and engineering from Huazhong University of Science & Technology. He is also
an associate professor and assistant dean in Peking University HSBC Business School. Mr. Wei is currently an
independent non-executive director of four listed companies, including Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0751, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange), ZTE Corporation (stock
code: 000063 and 0763, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange),
Telling Telecommunication Holding Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000829) and Zhangzidao Group Co., Ltd. (stock code:
002069), both shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei was also an independent non-
executive director of Changyuan Group Ltd. which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600525).
Pursuant to the relevant regulations and guidelines that a person shall not be an independent non-executive
director for more than six years, Mr. Wei resigned as an independent non-executive director of Changyuan Group
Ltd. on 14 March 2014. He was also the associate professor of the Department of Management Engineering in
Xinjiang Institute of Technology, deputy dean of the Institute of Economics and Administration in Xinjiang University
and post-doctorate in China Centre for Economics Research, Peking University. Mr. Wei was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 2014.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Cao Jiang, aged 58, graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Aeronautical Industry Management. Mr. Cao is
currently the vice president of AVIC International. He had worked as the general manager and the chairman of
the board of directors of China Aviation Supply and Marketing Corporation (FFEIfiZE T2 5EA R A R)). He was
appointed as a supervisor of the Company in 2014.

Mr. Deng Bo Song, aged 57, senior economist, graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
and is now the party secretary and deputy general manager of Tianma. He was the deputy general manager
of Shenzhen Kaishi Industry Co., Ltd.. Since May 2003, he has successively held the positions of deputy party
secretary, deputy general manager, general manager, supervisor of audit and inspection department of Tianma. He
was appointed as a supervisor of the Company in 2009.

Ms. Wang Xin, aged 63, holds a master’'s degree and is now the senior partner of Beijing Horizon Law Firm,
Shenzhen Office and the arbitrator of Shenzhen Arbitration Committee. She had acted as the senior judge in
Changsha Intermediate People’s Court and Economic Tribunal of Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court. Ms. Wang
has accumulated rich experience in economic and civil judgment. Some difficult economic and civil cases handled
by Ms. Wang have been taken as the judicial guidance in Shenzhen. She was appointed as a supervisor of the
Company in 2009.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huang Yong Feng, aged 41, is a senior engineer, a graduate of a master degree from Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (It ZfTZEMAAE) and a graduate of the executive master degree of business
administration from China Europe International Business School (7 EXEIRE T rE£2F%). He is currently the director
of Fiyta, director of AVIC Real Estate, director of Tianma, director of Rainbow Department Store, director of AVIC
Maritime, a company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST”), chairman of
Castic-SMP Machinery Corporation Limited (73|74 it % & B R A7) (“‘Castic-SMP”). He successively held the
positions of manager of corporate strategy and management department, assistant to general manager of AVIC
Shenzhen, managing director of Castic-SMP. He once acted as the joint secretary of the third and fourth session of
the Board of the Company. He was appointed as the company secretary of the Company in 2012 for the second
time.
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1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied with Company Law
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), faithfully performed the obligations required by the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code”). The Company has also directed
its daily activities in strict compliance with various established corporate governance systems and reviewed
from time to time its operations and management conducts, adhered to good principles of corporate
governance, improved the transparency and independence of company operation, enhanced its corporate
governance standards on an on-going basis, ensured a stable development of the Company and strived
for maximization of shareholders’ value. The Company, by complying with the principles and requirements
set out in the Code, has formulated relevant system, regulations, procedures and plans to maintain good
communication between shareholders and the Board, encouraged shareholders to attend annual general
meeting and other general meetings and enabled shareholders to understand the application of relevant
principles.

Except for code provision A.2.1, during the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, the
Company has adopted and complied with all the code provisions.

Details of the deviation from the above code provision A.2.1 is set out in the following section headed “4.
Chairman and Chief Executive”.

2. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct in respect of
securities transactions.

The Company, having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company (the “Directors”) and
supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisors”), confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2014,
all Directors and Supervisors had complied with the required standards of dealing in securities specified
in the Model Code and relevant conduct code of its own in respect of any securities transactions by the
Directors.
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94

BOARD

The composition of the Board

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company.
The term of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is 3 years and will end at the
2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015. In the 2013 annual general meeting of
the Company held on 6 June 2014, the Company approved the appointment of Mr. Lai Wei Xuan as an
executive director, with a term commencing on 6 June 2014 and ending at the 2014 annual general meeting
of the Company to be held in 2015.

On 30 December 2014, the Company held an extraordinary general meeting to approve the appointment of
Mr. Wei Wei as an independent non-executive director, with a term commencing on 30 December 2014 and
ending at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

On 30 December 2014, the Company held an extraordinary general meeting to approve the appointment
of Mr. Cao Jiang as the chairman and a member of the Supervisory Committee, with a term commencing
on 30 December 2014 and ending at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.
The Board comprises a total of 9 Directors, including 6 executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Guang Quan
(Chairman), Mr. Lai Wei Xuan, Mr. You Lei (Vice Chairman), Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and Mr.
Liu Jun; and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei
Wei.

Details of meetings and attendance

The numbers and attendance of general meetings, Board meetings and meetings of other committees held
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows, in which each Director attended all
meetings in person with no alternate director being appointed:

General Meeting

(including
annual general
meeting and
extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination
general meeting) Board Committee Committee Committees
Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
number of number of Attendance number of number of number of
meetings* meetings* Rate meetings* meetings* meetings*
Executive Directors
Wu Guang Quan (Chairman) 1/6 1317 76.47% 1 2/2
Lai Wei Xuan (appointed on 6 June 2014) 1/6 7/8 87.50%
You Lei (Vice Chairman) 2/6 1317 76.47%
Pan Lin Wu 1/ 17 100.00%
Chen Hong Liang 5/6 1717 100.00% n 22
Liu Jun 1/6 1717 100.00%
Independent non-executive Directors
Wong Wai Ling 1/ 17 100.00% 22 1n 202
Wu Wei 116 A 100.00% 212 1n 212
Zhang Ping (resigned on 30 December 2014) 116 17 100.00% 2/2 1 212
Wei Wei (appointed on 30 December 2014) - - - - - -
* refer to the number of meetings convened at the period of each director/member appointed during the financial

year ended 31 December 2014.

Note: Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei and Mr. Lai Wei Xuan were required to abstain from voting on the respective four
Board meetings, one Board meeting and four Board meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
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Responsibility of the Board and the management

The Board is responsible for instituting the overall target, policies, internal control and risk management
system of the Group. In addition, the Board also supervises the detailed matters which may affect the
equities of all shareholders, such as financial status, human resources, investment and financing, the
transaction activities which are notifiable as defined in the Listing Rules, and exercises its management
and decision-making powers authorised under the articles of association or in general meetings in terms of
capital reconstructing. Details of the responsibilities and powers of the Board in terms of the Company’s
development strategies and management as well as its responsibilities and powers to supervise and monitor
the Company’s development and operation are set out in the articles of association of the Company.

The directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ general meeting and serve for a term of 3 years. A
director may serve consecutive terms if be re-elected upon the expiration of his term. Except the retired
directors and the candidate recommended by the board of directors, commencing on the second date after
the dispatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for election of director(s) by the Company, a shareholder
is entitled to lodge a notice in writing to the Company to nominate directors, the period for lodgment of such
notice shall be 7 days. Subject to the relevant laws and administrative regulations, any director (including
directors acting as the manager or other senior management officers) with an unexpired term of office may
be removed by an ordinary resolution of a shareholders’ general meeting (but without prejudice to any claim
for compensation pursuant to any contract). The board of directors shall be accountable to the shareholders’
general meeting and shall have the following duties and powers:

(1) to be responsible for convening shareholders’ general meeting and to report its work at the
shareholders’ general meeting;

2) to execute the resolutions passed at the shareholders’ general meeting;

3) to determine the business plans and investment proposals of the Company;
(4) to prepare the annual financial budget and final accounts of the Company;
(5) to prepare the plans for profit distribution and loss recovery for the Company;

(6) to prepare proposals for increasing or reducing the registered capital of the Company, and proposals
for the issue of debenture;

(7) to draw up proposal for merger, separation or dissolution of the Company;
(8) to decide on the set-up of the internal management structure of the Company;
9) to appoint or dismiss the manager and to appoint or dismiss vice-manager, the chief financial officer

in accordance with the recommendations of the manager and to determine their remuneration
packages;
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Responsibility of the Board and the management (continued)
(10)  to set up the basic management system of the Company;

(11)  to draw up proposal for amending the articles of association of the Company;

(12)  to draw up proposal for material acquisition and disposal;

(18)  subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, rules and the articles of association of the
Company, exercise the Company’s powers of fund-raising and borrowing, and determine pledge,
leasing, subcontract or transfer of assets of the Company, and to authorise a manager to exercise
powers within the scope hereof; and

(14)  subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, and within the scope of authority delegated
by shareholders in general meeting, to perform other functions.

Except for the matters provided for in paragraphs (6), (7), (11) and (12) which require approval of more
than two-thirds of the directors, the remaining matters as contained in the preceding paragraphs shall be
approved by a simple majority of the directors.

As the Company is an investment holding company, the executive Directors exercise the function of the
management of the Company and all projects of the Company will be reviewed and approved by the Board.
The responsibilities of each executive Directors are as follow:

Mr. Wu Guang Quan: responsible for overall operation of the Company;

Mr. Lai Wei Xuan: assisting the chairman for daily operation; responsible for operation management, review
of strategic investment;

Mr. You Lei: responsible for high-tech electronic products segment and assisting in strategic planning;

Mr. Pan Lin Wu: responsible for financial management, finance and strategic investment and capital
operation;

Mr. Chen Hong Liang: responsible for human resources, legal issues, audit, inspection and supervision;

Mr. Liu Jun: responsible for international expansion, foreign issues, overseas institution management and
responsible for trading and logistics segment.

Compliance of the Directors

There is no non-compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2014. None of the independent non-executive Directors did not comply
with one or more independence assessment guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2014. None of the members of the Board had any financial, business, family or
other material/related relationship with each other during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Directors’ training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary introduction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of the Company also provides
Directors with updates on the latest development of and amendments to the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A summary of training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2014 according to the records provided by the Directors to the Company is as follows:

Listing Rules
Compliance

Training
(2014.8.27)

v
4
v
4
4
4

Executive Directors

Wu Guang Quan (Chairman)

Lai Wei Xuan (appointed on 6 June 2014)
You Lei (Vice Chairman)

Pan Lin Wu

Chen Hong Liang

Liu Jun

Independent non-executive Directors
Wong Wai Ling

Wu Wei

Zhang Ping (resigned on 30 December 2014)
Wei Wei (appointed on 30 December 2014)

AN NEAN

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Wu Guang Quan was re-elected as chairman of the Board (Chairman), with a term of 3 years which will end
at the date of 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the Code, roles of the chairman and the chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The responsibility of the chairman and
the chief executive should be clearly established and set out in writing. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the executive Directors exercise the function of the management of the Company and it did not
appoint any chief executive. The executive Director and Chairman of the Company, Mr. Wu Guang Quan
and the Board hold meeting regularly to consider major matters that influence the operation of the Group.
The Board considers that the structure will not impair the balance of authority and rights between the Board
and the management of the Company. Each executive Director being assigned with different functions will
complement the role of the Chairman. The Board believes that this structure is beneficial to establishing a
stable and consistent leadership, which will enable effective operation of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei
Wei. The number of independent non-executive Directors is in compliance with the provision of the Listing
Rules. Among which, Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a qualified accountant with extensive experience in accounting
and finance. The Company has received the confirmation letters in respect of their independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive Directors comply with the
requirements of independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board established three committees, namely audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The role and responsibility of each committee are as follow:

(1) Audit committee
The Board has established the audit committee to fulfill the functions of reviewing the financial
reporting and monitoring the effectiveness and objectiveness of the internal control system, risk
management and auditing procedure of the Company. The details of the terms of reference were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 March 2012.

Elected by the Company’s 2011 annual general meeting held on 19 June 2012 and the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 30 December 2014, the audit committee comprises all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei, Mr. Zhang Ping
(resigned on 30 December 2014) and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on 30 December 2014), of which
Ms. Wong Wai Ling acts as the chairman of the audit committee. She is a qualified accountant with
extensive experience in accounting and finance.

The audit committee met twice on 21 March 2014 and 21 August 2014 respectively, to discuss (1)
the resolution related to the auditor’s report, results announcement and report of the directors of
the Company for the year of 2013; (2) the resolution related to the compliance of the connected
transactions of the Company; (3) the resolution related to the enhancement of corporate governance
and internal control of the Company; (4) the resolution related to the interim financial report and
interim report on consolidated results of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2014; (5)
the resolution related to the corporate governance and the internal control of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2014. The audit committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding
the above matters for its approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph
headed “3. Board — Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the
attendance of the meetings held by the audit committee.

(2) Remuneration committee
The Board has established the remuneration committee to fulfill the functions of providing
recommendations to the Board in the aspects of the performance, engagement, remuneration and
award of each executive Director, and drawing up the overall remuneration policy. The details of the
terms of reference of remuneration committee were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company on 28 March 2012.
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SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (continued)

()

©)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Elected by the 2011 annual general meeting held on 19 June 2012 and the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 30 December 2014, the remuneration committee comprises two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Guang Quan and Mr. Chen Hong Liang, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on
30 December 2014), of which independent non-executive Director Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on 30
December 2014) acts as the chairman.

The remuneration committee of the Company met on 21 March 2014 to review (1) the resolution
related to the remuneration policy for Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year of 2013; (2) the resolution related to the procedure of formulating the remuneration policy of
the Company. The chairman reported that, the remuneration of the executive directors should be
assessed and determined according to the operation results of the Company during the year and
the accomplishment of the targets. The fixed remuneration policy is adopted for the independent
directors of the Company. The remuneration committee adopted the model stated in paragraph
B.1.2(c)(i) of the Code as its terms of reference where the remuneration committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management. The remuneration committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding
the above matters for its approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph
headed “3. Board — Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the
attendance of the meetings held by the remuneration committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board has set up the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee) which is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and providing recommendations as
to the proposed changes in the Board according to the corporate strategy of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will determine suitable candidates for directorship by taking into consideration
their qualifications, experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, as well as assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to the requirements stipulated
in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Elected by the 2011 annual general meeting held on 19 June 2012 and the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 30 December 2014, the Nomination Committee comprises two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wu Guang Quan and Mr. Chen Hong Liang and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on 30
December 2014), of which independent non-executive Director Mr. Wu Wei acts as the chairman.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings on 21 March 2014 and 21 August 2014, respectively,
to review (1) the structure, size and composition of the Board (including their skills, knowledge and
experience); (2) the appointment or re-appointment or succession of Directors; (3) the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; and (4) the Board’s diversity policy. Please refer to the
table of attendance records in the paragraph headed “3. Board — Details of meetings and attendance”
in this Corporate Governance Report for the details of meetings and attendance of the meetings held
by the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (continued)

)

4

Nomination Committee (continued)

Diversity of the Board

The Stock Exchange issued certain amendments to the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules in relation to the diversity of the members of the Board, effective on 1 September 2013. The
amended Code provides that the Nomination Committee shall fully take into account the formation
of the Board and relevant principles regarding appointment, reelection and dismission set out in the
Code when performing their duties.

In achieving the diversity of the members of the Board, the Board may consider various factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional experience. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee had been amended to take into account its responsibilities to
monitor the implementation of policy in relation to the diversity of the members of the Board.

The Group has adopted policies in relation to the diversity of the members of the Board and the
summary of those policies is as follows:

(1) selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service; and

2) the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the diversity policy from time to
time to ensure the effectiveness of the diversity policy.

Corporate Governance
The corporate governance functions performed by the Board include the following:

(@) formulate and review the corporate governance policy and practice of the Company;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management;

(©) review and monitor the policy and practice of the Company regarding its compliance with laws
and regulatory requirements;

(d) formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance handbook (if any)
applicable to the employees and the Directors; and

(e) review whether the Company has complied with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The aggregate remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors in relation to their audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out as follow:

Amount of

remuneration

Type of services (RMB: 0°000)

Audit services 760
Non-audit services

Work on the continuing connected transactions 60

Work on the annual results announcement 40

Total 860

The expense shown in this table is based on the year of contract instead of year of cash payment.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All of the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the accounts and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014. The auditors acknowledged
their reporting responsibilities in the independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Directors was responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with assistance of the financial and accounting departments. The Directors
prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied consistently. The Board has regularly
reviewed and monitored the financial reporting procedures, risk management, internal control system and
recommendation of external auditors and its appointment, retirement and removal (if any) and reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the issuer’s ability to operate as a going concern, therefore the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The audit committee of the
Company is of the view that the selection and appointment of external auditors met the actual requirement
of the Company and its audit and non-audit services can truly reflect the financial condition of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company Mr. Huang Yong Feng is a full time employee of the Company
and is familiar with the Company’s day-to-day affairs. The company secretary of the Company reports to
the chairman and is responsible for providing recommendation of governance matters to the Board. The
company secretary of the Company confirmed that he has obtained no less than 15 hours of professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Two or more shareholders who collectively hold 10% or more of the voting shares at the proposed meeting
may make a proposal to the Board on holding an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by signing
one or several written requests with same content in same format and define the meeting agenda. The
Board shall convene such meeting as soon as possible upon receipt of the aforesaid written request. The
aforesaid number of shares held shall be calculated as of the date when the written request was put forward
by the shareholders.

In case the Board fails to give a notice of convening such meeting within thirty days after receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders who put forward the request may convene such a meeting within
four months after receipt of the request by the Board, and the procedures shall be the same as those for
convening a general meeting by the Board where possible.

Inquiry to the Board
For any inquiry to the Board, please contact the Company directly at 25/F, Hangdu Building, Catic Zone,
Shennan Road Central, Futian Dist., Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, China, telephone: 86-755-83793891;
fax: 0755-83790228.

Proposals at General Meeting

When the Company convenes an annual general meeting, shareholder(s) who hold five percent or more of
the Company’s total shares carrying voting rights shall be entitled to make new proposals to the Company
in writing. Where such proposals contain matters within purview of the general meeting, the Company shall
include such matters in the agenda of the general meeting. However, the proposal should be delivered to the
Company within thirty days from the dispatch date of the notice of such meeting. The contact information of
the Company is the same as above.

Communication with Shareholders

The annual general meeting is the primary channel to communicate with shareholders of the Company. The
chairman of the general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be considered. During the
year of 2014, the chairmen of the Board, audit committee members, remuneration committee members,
nomination committee members and external auditors have attended the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions.

According to the articles of association of the Company, the notice of the annual general meeting shall
be given to shareholders at least forty-five days before the meeting. The chairman of the annual general
meeting exercises his power under the Company’s articles of association to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of conducting a poll. The rules and procedures of the vote will be clearly explained before it
commences at the meeting, and the results of which will be announced on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has not made amendments to the articles of
associations.

INVESTOR RELATIONS MANAGEMENT

Goals

Investor relations management is a kind of active behavior of the listed company for purpose
of seeking maximized value. The management of the Company always pays attention to active
investment relations. The Company has formulated corresponding internal working system, specifying
the methods, contents, scope and working procedure of implementing the investor relations
management.

The Company’s work of investor relations management aims at helping the investors to have
acquaintance with the basic information of the Company and understand the Company’s operating
strategies in order to make their own rational investment decisions by comprehensively reporting
the Company’s operating results to the investors. Meanwhile, the Company also identifies its own
deficiencies with the help of the recommendations and comments from investors and analysts in
order to improve the operation of the Company.

Communication channels

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company strictly and fully disclosed relevant
information to investors in accordance with relevant regulations, and timely disclosed important
information and relevant progress which may influence the interests of the investors through regular
or temporary bulletin, striving to improve the quality of information disclosure. The website of the
Company will regularly publicize information in which investors are interested, such as business status
and other information, so that the investors can timely and clearly know the latest development of the
Company, and the transparency of the Company is enhanced.

The core of the investor relations management is effective communication. A win-win situation is
achieved through the interactive communication between the Company and investors. During this
year, the Company kept close relationship with media and investors both in China and other countries
through diversified means, such as accepting the visits of investors and analyzers, and telephone
conference. In addition, investor can obtain latest information about the Company by visiting its
website, where the Company discloses its interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars and
updated development status.

Prospect

Through active activities related to investor relations, the Company aims at improving transparency,
strengthening communication, making investors better understand the business of the Company and
feel confident toward its future development, having the Company recognized and supported by the
market, so that the development potential and actual value of the Company can be fully reflected in
the market.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company presents their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the current principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

The Group is an investment holding company with diversified strategies and is principally engaged in high-tech
electronic products, retails and high-end consumer products, real estate and hotel, trading and logistics, resources
investment and development business in China.

Details of the contribution from each of the businesses to the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the paragraph “Business Review” under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES
Information on the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company is set out in Note 14, Note
16 and Note 17 to the financial statements respectively.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION OF MARKETS
Information on major markets of the Group is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated income
statement of the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the Group were approximately RMB3,592,876,000 as
reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
PRC.
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ALLOCATION OF PROFITS

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company, when distributing net
profit each year, the Company shall set aside 10% of its net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts for the
statutory general reserve fund (except where the fund has reached 50% of the Company’s registered share capital).
This reserve cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the statutory general reserve fund of the Company is as
follows:

RMB’000

Statutory general reserve fund 13.17% 146,296 8.47% 94,084

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the statements
of changes in equity and Note 31 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.1 per share for the year ended 31 December
2014.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s operating results, assets and liabilities for the past five years ended 31 December 2014 is
set out in the Financial Highlights in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2014, the Company has not entered into or maintained any contracts in respect of the
management or administration of its overall business or any major business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s total purchases from the five largest suppliers were
RMB10,908,021,000, accounting for 36.43% of the Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December
2014. The largest supplier accounted for approximately 13.40% of the Group’s total purchase.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 14.33% (2013: approximately 18.17%) of the Group’s turnover for the year. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 6.14% (2013: approximately 5.23%) of the Group’s turnover.

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of

the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) are interested in the five largest suppliers or five
largest customers of the Group.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of major properties held for investment of the Group are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 11
to the financial statements.

PLEDGED ASSETS
As at 31 December 2014, the pledged assets of the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,312,965,000, the
details of which are set forth below:

RMB’000

Pledged bank deposits 23,000
Pledged notes receivable 72,735
Land use rights 645,641
Buildings 1,213,671
Investment properties 889,850
Properties under development 108,948
Exploration and extraction rights 64,477
Machinery and equipment 294,643

3,312,965

BANK LOANS

Information on the bank loans of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TERM DEPOSIT
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any entrusted deposit and overdue term
deposit in any form.

TAXATION
Details of the Group’s taxation for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 45 to the financial
statements.

TAXATION POLICY
Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws of the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group are subject to income tax at the
applicable rate of 25% unless preferential tax rate were applicable.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, to the best knowledge of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
following parties (other than the Directors, supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had interests, or short
positions in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company or otherwise notified to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ”):

Long positions in the Shares:

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

Number and  the same class total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity class of securities of securities share capital

Aviation Industry Interest of controlled 1,634,608,792 196.24% 147.18%
Corporation of China corporation domestic shares (Note 1)
(“Aviation Industry”)

AVIC International Holding  Interest of controlled 1,329,499,564 159.61% 119.71%
Corporation (“AVIC corporation domestic shares (Note 1)
International”)

AVIC International Beneficial owner 429,774,574 51.60% 38.70%
Shenzhen Company domestic shares (Note 1)
Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”)

Beijing Raise Technology  Beneficial owner 305,109,228 36.62% 27.47%
Company Limited domestic shares (Note 1)

(“Beijing Raise”)

Other shareholders

Li Ka-Shing Interest of controlled 29,644,000 10.67% 2.67%
corporation H shares (Note 2)
and founder of
discretionary

trusts
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Interest of controlled 29,644,000 10.67% 2.67%
Limited corporation H shares (Note 2)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee  Trustee and 29,644,000 10.67% 2.67%
Corporation Limited beneficiary of a H shares (Note 2)
trust
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee and 29,644,000 10.67% 2.67%
Trustcorp Limited beneficiary of a H shares (Note 2)
trust
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee  Trustee 29,644,000 10.67% 2.67%
Company Limited H shares (Note 2)
Cheung Kong Investment  Interest of controlled 14,823,000 5.34% 1.33%
Company Limited corporation H shares (Note 2)
Empire Grand Limited Beneficial owner 14,823,000 5.34% 1.33%
H shares (Note 2)
Hutchison International Beneficial owner 14,821,000 5.33% 1.33%
Limited H shares (Note 2)
Hutchison Whampoa Interest of controlled 14,821,000 5.33% 1.33%
Limited corporation H shares (Note 2)
Jiang Jian Jun Interest of controlled 18,396,000 6.63% 1.64%
corporation H shares (Note 3)
Huayin Group Investment  Beneficial owner 18,222,000 6.56% 1.64%
Development Co., Ltd. H shares (Note 3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the Shares: (continued)

Notes:
1.

3.

108

Aviation Industry owns 62.52% of the equity interest in AVIC International which in turn owns 100% equity interest in AVIC
Shenzhen. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which AVIC International and
AVIC Shenzhen are interested in, respectively.

Aviation Industry owns 60% of the equity interest in Beijing Raise. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares in which Beijing Raise is interested in.

AVIC International owns 100% of the equity interest in AVIC Shenzhen. Hence, AVIC International is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares in which AVIC Shenzhen is interested in.

As at 31 December 2014:

M

AVIC International held: (A) 437,264,906 domestic shares, representing approximately 39.37% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the outstanding amount of
RMB1,604,736,493 which may be converted into 462,460,084 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of
RMBS3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

AVIC Shenzhen held: (A) 395,709,091 domestic shares, representing approximately 35.63% of the issued share
capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the outstanding amount of
RMB118,207,225 which may be converted into 34,065,483 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of
RMBS3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

Beijing Raise held perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,058,729,021 which
may be converted into 305,109,228 domestic shares at the initial conversion price of RMB3.47 (subject to the
adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).

The same equity interest of the above 29,644,000 H Shares include:

A)

Empire Grand Limited (“Empire Grand”) holds 14,823,000 H Shares and Empire Grand is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheung Kong Investment Company Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH”); and

Hutchison International Limited (“HIL”) holds 14,821,000 shares of H Share and HIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL”). Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing
and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor is interested in one-third and two-third respectively of the entire issued share capital,
owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1”). TUT1 as trustee
of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their general
meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH. Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”)) and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2”) (as trustee of another discretionary trust (“DT2”)). Each of TDT1 and TDT2
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settlor and regarded as the founder of each of DT1
and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TUT1, TDT1, TDT2 and CKH is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
29,644,000 H shares held by Empire Grand and HIL.

Jiang Jian Jun owned the interests by virtue of his 100% beneficial interest in Huayin Group Investment Development Co.,

Ltd.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Report of the Directors

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

ISSUE, PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
For the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued, purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
PRC, which require the Company to firstly offer new shares to the existing shareholders to purchase according to
their respective proportions of shareholding.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guang Quan (chairman)

Mr. Lai Wei Xuan (appointed on 6 June 2014)
Mr. You Lei (vice chairman)

Mr. Pan Lin Wu

Mr. Chen Hong Liang

Mr. Liu Jun

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Wu Wei

Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on 30 December 2014)

Each of the service agreements of Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei, Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Mr.
Liu Jun, Ms. Wong Wai Ling and Mr. Wu Wei shall expire after three years commencing from 19 June 2012. The
service agreement of Mr. Lai Wei Xuan shall be effective since 6 June 2014, and will expire at the 2014 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015. The service agreement of Mr. Wei Wei shall be effective since
30 December 2014, and will expire at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

No Director or Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and Supervisors” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, to the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, none of the Directors,
supervisors of the Company is interested in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors, supervisors or chief executives were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which are required to be entered into the register maintained by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year ended 31 December 2014 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable any Directors, supervisors or management members of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporates.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2014, none of the Director or Supervisor had any significant interest, either direct or indirect, in
any contract or arrangement of significance to the business of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been entered into, or was subsisting
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors are set out in Note 42 to the financial statements.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

At the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2014, the appointment of Mr. Lai Wei Xuan as
an executive Director was approved. His term commences from 6 June 2014 and ends on the date of 2014 annual
general meeting to be convened in 2015.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2014, the appointment of Mr. Wei Wei
as an independent non-executive Director was approved. His term commences from 30 December 2014 and ends
on the date of 2014 annual general meeting to be convened in 2015.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2014, the appointment of Mr. Cao
Jiang as the chairman and a member of the supervisory committee of the Company was approved. His term
commences from 30 December 2014 and ends on the date of 2014 annual general meeting to be convened in
2015.

In accordance with relevant requirements of state cadre management, Mr. Zhang Ping has resigned as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 30 December 2014. He confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the Board, and there is no other matter in relation to his resignation which has to be brought to the attention
of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Huang Bin has resigned as a member and the chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company as
he reached the statutory retirement age as required by the relevant regulation of the PRC, with effect from 30
December 2014. He confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board, and there is no other matter in relation
to his resignation which has to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the
Company.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 43,144 employees (2013: 28,338) with employee-related
costs of approximately RMB3,834,648,000 (2013: approximately RMB2,880,254,000). The Group formulated its
competitive remuneration policy based on market condition and individual employee’s performance.

SOCIAL INSURANCE SCHEMES
Details of the retirement fund scheme and health insurance scheme maintained by the Group are set out in Note 44
to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group set out
below, and confirmed that these transactions have been entered into, in accordance with the relevant agreements,
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

112

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements in relation to Leasing and
Management of Properties

On 13 January 2014, the Company and AVIC International entered into a rental framework agreement (the
“Rental Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to lease to AVIC International and/or
its associated companies real estate properties from 13 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 13 January 2014, the Company and Beijing Raise entered into a tenancy framework agreement (the
“Beijing Raise Tenancy Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Beijing Raise and/or its subsidiaries
agreed to lease to the Group real estate properties from 13 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

On 18 January 2014, the Company and AVIC International entered into a tenancy framework agreement (the
“AVIC International Tenancy Framework Agreement”, together with the “Beijing Raise Tenancy Framework
Agreement”, the “Tenancy Framework Agreements”), pursuant to which AVIC International and/or its
associated companies agreed to lease to the Group real estate properties from 13 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

On 13 January 2014, the Company and Beijing Raise entered into a property management framework
agreement (the “Beijing Raise Property Management Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Beijing
Raise and/or its subsidiaries will provide property management services to the Group from 13 January 2014
to 31 December 2016.

On 18 January 2014, the Company and AVIC International entered into a property management framework
agreement (the “AVIC International Property Management Framework Agreement”, together with the “Beijing
Raise Property Management Framework Agreement”, the “Property Management Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which AVIC International and/or its associated companies will provide property management
services to the Group from 13 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the Rental Framework Agreement, the annual cap amounts in respect of the leasing of real
estate properties by the Group to AVIC International and its associated companies in the years ended 31
December 2014, 2015 and 2016 shall not exceed RMB35,000,000, RMB40,000,000 and RMB45,000,000
respectively.

Pursuant to the Tenancy Framework Agreements, the annual cap amounts in respect of leasing of real estate
properties agreed by each of Beijing Raise and its subsidiaries and AVIC International and/or its associated
companies to the Group in the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 shall not exceed (i)
RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively; and (i) RMB75,000,000, RMB80,000,000
and RMB85,000,000 respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements in relation to Leasing and
Management of Properties (continued)

Pursuant to the Property Management Framework Agreements, the annual cap amounts in respect of
the provision of property management services by each of Beijing Raise and/or its subsidiaries and AVIC
International and/or its associated companies to the Group in the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016 shall not exceed () RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000 respectively; and (i)
RMB60,000,000, RMB60,000,000 and RMB60,000,000 respectively.

As AVIC International (including its associated companies) and Beijing Raise (including its subsidiaries)
are connected persons of the Company, each of (i) the Rental Framework Agreement, (i) the Tenancy
Framework Agreements; and (iii) the Property Management Framework Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions of the Group pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). As the applicable percentage ratios for each of the above transactions exceed 0.1%
but are less than 5%, such transactions are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements, but are exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 January
2014.

Continuing Connected Transaction — Revision of Breakdown of Financial Assistance and Interest/
Guarantee Fee

On 27 January 2014, the Company proposed to amend the existing breakdown in relation to financial
assistance and interest/guarantee fee under the existing financial cap for the year ending 31 December
2014 in the financial assistance framework agreement between the Company and AVIC International
dated 5 September 2012 (the “AVIC International Financial Framework Agreement”). The amount of cap
of acceptance of loans/guarantees by the Group in the year ended 31 December 2014 was proposed to
be adjusted from RMB28,800,000,000 to RMB23,800,000,000, and the amount of cap of the provision of
loans/guarantees by the Group was proposed to be adjusted from RMB200,000,000 to RMB5,200,000,000;
the interest/guarantee fee for acceptance of loans/guarantees by the Group was proposed to be adjusted
from RMB442,000,000 to RMB341,000,000, and the interest/guarantee fee for provision of loans/
guarantees by the Group was proposed to be adjusted from RMB8,000,000 to RMB109,000,000. As the
applicable percentage ratios for the AVIC International Financial Framework Agreement exceed 5%, the
Company shall comply with the reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual
review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 27 January 2014 and 17 March 2014, and the circular of the Company dated 16 May
2014. The above connected transactions were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15 July 2014. For details, please refer to the
poll results announcement of the Company dated 15 July 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3.
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Discloseable and Connected Transaction — Capital Increase Agreement

On 16 April 2013, Shanghai Tianma (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Shanghai Zhang
Jiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/&5RT (5£8]) BRAF) (“Shanghai Zhangjiang Company”) and Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (EETZEE (&) BRAR]) (“Shanghai Industrial Investment”) (the “JV
Partners”) entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the JV Partners

fiiBPRAT]) (the “JV Company”) with a total registered capital of RMB5 million, the equity interests of which
were held as to 40%, 20% and 40% by Shanghai Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and
Shanghai Tianma, respectively.

On 4 March 2014, Shanghai Tianma entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Industrial Investment, pursuant to which
Shanghai Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Tianma have conditionally
agreed to make a capital contribution of RMB398 million, RMB199 million and RMB398 million to the
registered capital of the JV Company, respectively, which are in proportion to their respective holding
of equity interests of 40%, 20% and 40% in the JV Company (the “Proposed Capital Increase”). The JV
Partners shall make their capital contribution in proportion and simultaneously in two phases. In the first
phase, Shanghai Industrial Investment, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company and Shanghai Tianma will contribute
RMB120 million, RMB60 million and RMB120 million respectively in cash. In the second phase, Shanghai
Industrial Investment and Shanghai Zhangjiang Company will contribute RMB278 million and RMB139 million
in cash respectively while Shanghai Tianma will make contribution by way of injection of the construction in
progress of factory buildings for the JV Company (the “Injected Construction”) in the amount of RMB278
million. The holding of equity interests in the JV Company by the respective JV Partners shall remain
unchanged upon completion of the Proposed Capital Increase. The second capital contribution by Shanghai
Tianma under the Capital Increase Agreement shall be made by way of injection of the Injected Construction
to an extent of completion for not less than 25%, together with the land use right of an industrial land
located at Pudong New District Huiging Road in Shanghai with an aggregate area of approximately 120,000
m? to be contributed by Shanghai Tianma to the JV Company. Such capital contribution into the JV
Company which involves injection of assets other than cash would constitute a disposal of assets by the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Each of Shanghai Optical Communications Corporation (wholly-owned by Shanghai Industrial Investment)
and Shanghai Zhangjiang Company is a substantial shareholder of Shanghai Tianma. The JV Company
is owned as to 40% and 20%, respectively, by Shanghai Industrial Investment and Shanghai Zhangjiang
Company. The JV Company is a connected person of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Proposed Capital Increase and the transactions contemplated under the
Capital Increase Agreement (including the contribution of the Injected Construction by Shanghai Tianma
and the possible loan of a maximum amount of RMB100 million) constitute a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the applicable percentage ratios, when aggregate
with the establishment of the JV Company pursuant to the JV Agreement are more than 5% but less than
25%, the contribution of the Injected Construction by Shanghai Tianma contemplated under the Capital
Increase Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14.06 of the Listing Rules. The Capital Increase Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 6
June 2014. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2014, the circular,
dated 11 April 2014 and the announcement of the Company dated 6 June 2014 for the poll results of the
extraordinary general meeting, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4.

Continuing Connected Transaction — Xiamen Tian Ma Entrusted Management Agreement

On 4 March 2014, Shanghai Tianma (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and Xiamen Tian
Ma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (BFTRSMETFARAR) (“Xiamen Tianma”) entered into an entrusted
management agreement (the “Entrusted Management Agreement”), pursuant to which Shanghai Tianma
agreed to provide management services to Xiamen Tianma for a term commencing from 5 March 2014 and
ending on 29 February 2016. The caps of the management fees payable by Xiamen Tianma to Shanghai
Tianma during the periods of 5 March 2014 to 28 February 2015 and 5 March 2015 to 29 February 2016
would be RMB15 million and RMB15 million respectively.

As at 4 March 2014, Xiamen Tianma was directly owned as to, among others, 15.3% and 14.7% by
AVIC Shenzhen and AVIC International respectively. AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen are controlling
shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, Xiamen Tianma was a connected person of the Company
and the Entrusted Management Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder constituted a
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
had complied with, among others, the announcement requirement, and was exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2014.

Major and Connected Transaction — Acquisition of KHD in Germany

On 11 October 2013, AVIC International Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a total of twelve agreements (the “Agreements”) each
with certain independent third parties, pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, in
aggregate, approximately 9,456,000 shares (the “Sale Shares”) in the issued share capital of KHD Humboldt
Wedag International AG (“KHD”) (the “KHD Shares”) (representing approximately 19.03% of the then share
capital of KHD) at an aggregate consideration of approximately EUR60,993,000.

Following the entering into of the Agreements, the Purchaser, together with the Europe Project Management
Pte. Ltd., Europe Technology Investment Pte. Ltd. and Europe Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd (the “Singapore
Companies” (each indirectly whollyowned by Mr. Yap Lian Seng (“Mr. Yap”)), have launched the offer (the
“Offer”) jointly at the offer price of EURBG.45 per share to acquire the KHD Shares (save and except the Sale
Shares and the KHD Shares held by Max Glory Industries Limited (“Max Glory”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company).

On 11 October 2013, Max Glory, the Purchaser and the Singapore Companies (the Purchaser and the
Singapore Companies, collectively the “Bidders”) entered into a voting agreement (the “Voting Agreement”),
pursuant to which, among other things, the parties agreed that the Bidders would launch the Offer jointly
and to coordinate in respect of the Offer.

Golden Prosperity Group Limited (“Golden Prosperity”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mr. Yap entered into three option agreements (the “Option Agreements”) on the same date. Pursuant
to the Option Agreements, Golden Prosperity and Mr. Yap irrevocably granted to each other option to
purchase the entire issued share capital of the three BVI companies (the “BVI companies”), each of which
directly held each of the Singapore Companies respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5.
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Major and Connected Transaction — Acquisition of KHD in Germany (continued)

The Offer was completed on 16 January 2014, the date of publication of final results of the Offer,
under German law. Pursuant to the Voting Agreement, out of the 24,847,045 KHD Shares tendered for
acceptance of the Offer, 1,500,000 KHD Shares (representing approximately 3.0% of the issued share
capital of KHD) were taken up by the Purchaser (at the aggregate consideration of EUR9,675,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$101,100,000), and the remaining 23,347,045 KHD Shares were taken by the
Singapore Companies (at the aggregate consideration of EUR150,588,440.25 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,573,600,000)).

As Mr. Yap had been a director of the Purchaser for the past 12 months at the relevant time, Mr. Yap, the
BVI Companies and the Singapore Companies are connected persons of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules, and the transactions under the Agreements, the Offer, the Voting Agreements and the
Option Agreements (the “Acquisition”) constitute a connected transaction of the Company subject to, among
other things, reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

As the relevant applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the Listing Rules in respect of the
Acquisition is more than 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules and is subject to, among other things, the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

A written shareholders’ approval has been obtained from AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen for the
approval of the Acquisition pursuant to Rules 14.44 and 14A.43 of the Listing Rules on 25 November 2013.
As at the date of such approval, AVIC International held 437,264,906 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
representing 39.37% of the issued share capital of the Company, and it owned the entire equity interest in
AVIC Shenzhen, which in turns held 395,709,091 Shares, representing 35.63% of the issued share capital of
the Company. As a result, no general meeting was required to be convened by the Company to approve the
Acquisition.

On 30 April 2014, Golden Prosperity exercised all of the options under the Option Agreements against a
payment of $$1,500,000, following which the Company indirectly held 44,244,113 KHD Shares, representing
approximately 89.02% of the issued share capital of KHD. At the annual general meeting of KHD held on 27
May 2014, the majority of the members of the supervisory board of KHD have been appointed by the Group.
KHD is currently a subsidiary of the Company.

Further details please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11 October 2013, 4 November

2013, 27 December 2013, 16 January 2014, 30 April 2014, 27 May 2014 and 14 July 2014 and the circular
of the Company dated 26 March 2014 and 19 September 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6.

Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction - Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tianma) by Tianma and Proposed A Shares Placing of
Tianma

On 1 November 2013, Tianma entered into five separate framework agreements (the “Framework
Agreements”) with (A) the Company, Shanghai Zhangjiang Company, Shanghai State-owned Assets
Operation Co., Ltd. (E/BBBEELEERAR) (“Shanghai State Assets Company”) and Shanghai Optical
Communications Corporation (E/&J£BIE7AF]) in relation to the acquisition of 70% equity interest in
Shanghai Tianma (which includes the disposal of 21% equity interest in Shanghai Tianma held by the
Company to Tianma (the “Disposal)) (the “Shanghai Tianma Framework Agreement” and the“Shanghai
Tianma Transaction”); (B) Chengdu Industrial Group Company Limited (&P ILEZEEBARAFR) (the
“Chengdu Industrial Group”) and Chengdu Gaoxin Investment Group Company Limited (X&mii%EEE
BRRAF]) (“Chengdu Gaoxin Investment”) in relation to the acquisition of 40% equity interest in Chengdu
Tianma (the “Chengdu Tianma Framework Agreement” and the “Chengdu Tianma Transaction”); (C) Hubei
Province Technology Investment Group Company Limited ($itEEHIIREEBBRAF) (“Hubei Technology
Investment”) in relation to the acquisition of 90% equity interest in Wuhan Tianma (the “Wuhan Tianma
Framework Agreement” and the “Wuhan Tianma Transaction”); (D) AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen in
relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shanghai Optoelectronics (“Shanghai Optoelectronics
Framework Agreement”) (“Shanghai Opto-electronics Transactions”); and (E) AVIC International and AVIC
Shenzhen in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Opto-electronics (the
“Shenzhen Opto-electronics Framework Agreement” and the “Shenzhen Opto-electronics Transactions”)
(together, the “Transactions”).

Pursuant to the Framework Agreements, the consideration of the Transactions will be fully settled by
Tianma issuing new A shares to the vendors of the Framework Agreements (the “Consideration Shares”
and each a “Tianma A Share”) upon completion of the respective Transactions at an issue price of not less
than RMB12.69 per Tianma A Share, being the average closing price per Tianma A Share quoted on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the consecutive 20 trading days immediately preceding the commencement
date of suspension of trading of Tianma A Shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (i.e. the 20 trading days
from 5 August 2013 to 1 September 2013). The maximum number of Consideration Shares in aggregate to
be issued under the Shanghai Tianma Framework Agreement, the Chengdu Tianma Framework Agreement,
the Wuhan Tianma Framework Agreement, the Shanghai Opto-Electronics Framework Agreement and
the Shenzhen Opto-Electronics Framework Agreement would be 101,670,400, 48,038,700, 135,361,600,
138,272,300 and 25,971,900, respectively.

Based on the maximum number of Consideration Shares set out in the Framework Agreements and the
issue price of RMB12.69 per Tianma A Share, it was expected that the maximum aggregate consideration
for each of Shanghai Tianma Transaction, Chengdu Tianma Transaction, Wuhan Tianma Transaction,
Shanghai Opto-Electronics Transaction and Shenzhen Opto-Electronics Transaction would be approximately
RMB1,290,197,300, RMB609,611,100, RMB1,717,738,700, RMB1,754,675,500 and RMB329,583,400,
respectively.

The Transactions are not inter-conditional with each other.
On the same date, the board of directors of Tianma proposed to issue not more than approximately
149,772,000 new A shares of Tianma (the “Placing Shares”) to not more than ten placees in cash at a

placing price not lower than RMB12.69 per Placing Share (the “Placing Price”) after completion of the
Transactions for raising additional funds (the “Proposed A Shares Placing of Tianma”).
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6.
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Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction — Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tianma) by Tianma and Proposed A Shares Placing of
Tianma (continued)

On 30 April 2014, Tianma entered into five formal agreements (the “Formal Agreements”) pursuant to
the relevant Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the Formal Agreements, the aggregate consideration
is RMB1,241,816,300 for the Shanghai Tianma Transaction, RMB582,660,800 for the Chengdu Tianma
Transaction, RMB1,670,477,500 for the Wuhan Tianma Transaction, RMB1,685,682,300 for the Shanghai
Optoelectronics Transaction, and RMB315,764,900 for the Shenzhen Opto-electronics Transaction,
respectively. The consideration under the Transactions will be fully settled by Tianma issuing an aggregate of
433,129,000 A Shares as Consideration Shares at an issue price of RMB12.69 per Tianma A Share (subject
to adjustment) pursuant to the Formal Agreements. Following the entering into the Formal Agreements,
based on the aggregate consideration of RMB5,496,401,800 of the transactions, the placing price is
RMB12.69 and the maximum number of Placing Shares is 144,376,196.

On 6 May 2014, the asset valuation reports of each of Shanghai Tianma, Chengdu Tianma, Wuhan Tianma,
Shanghai Opto-electronics and Shenzhen Opto-electronics have been filed with the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission (the “SASAC”). On 26 May 2014, the overall proposal of the
Tianma Transactions and the Proposed A Shares Placing has also been principally approved by SASAC.

On 1 November 2013, Tianma, Chengdu Industrial Group and Chengdu Gaoxin Investment entered into
asecond JV supplemental agreement, pursuant to which, among others, the period for acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Chengdu Tianma set out in the first JV supplemental agreement (the “First JV Supplemental
Agreement”) be extended and Tianma shall participate in the bidding for the 30% equity interest in Chengdu
Tianma at the consideration as agreed in the First JV Supplemental Agreement within one year upon the
completion of the acquisitions of 40% equity interest in Chengdu Tianma by Tianma or the date of the
placing shares listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Chengdu Tianma Bidding”). Based on the formula
set out in the First JV Supplemental Agreement and on the assumption of 6.5% of annual interest rate for
each of the seven years since the incorporation of Chengdu Tianma up to the date of this report and the
registered capital of Chengdu Tianma of RMB1,200,000,000 remains unchanged at the time of bidding, the
bidding price will be approximately RMB523,800,000. The Board will propose at the extraordinary general
meeting to approve a maximum bidding price of RMB600,000,000 for acquisition of the remaining 30%
equity interest in Chengdu Tianma.

As the applicable percentage ratios of each of the Shanghai Tianma Transaction, Wuhan Tianma
Transaction, Shanghai Opto-electronics Transaction, Shenzhen Opto-electronics Transaction, Chengdu
Tianma Transaction and Chengdu Tianma Bidding exceed 25% but less than 100%, each of the Shanghai
Tianma Transaction (including the Disposal), Wuhan Tianma Transaction, Shanghai Opto-electronics
Transaction, Shenzhen Optoelectronics Transaction, Chengdu Tianma Transaction and Chengdu Tianma
Bidding constitutes a major transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules, which is subject to the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As the vendors to the respective Framework Agreements (save and except for Hubei Technology Investment)
and the counter-parties to the second JV supplemental agreement are connected persons of the Company,
each of the Transactions (excluding Wuhan Tianma Transaction) and Chengdu Tianma Bidding constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company, which is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Assuming all the Transactions have been completed, if Tianma proceeds with the Proposed A Shares
Placing after completion of the Transactions, the Company’s dilution in interest in Tianma after the issuance
of the Consideration Shares and the Proposed A Shares Placing respectively constitutes a deemed
disposal of interest in Tianma held by the Company under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios for the issuance of the Consideration Shares and the Proposed A Shares Placing
exceed 75%, the issuance and the Proposed A Shares Placing constitute a very substantial disposal of
the Company under Rule 14.06 of the Listing Rules and are therefore subject to announcement, reporting
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The Transactions and the
Proposed A Shares Placing have been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting.
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6.

Major and Connected Transaction and Very Substantial Disposal Transaction - Acquisition of 5
Subject Companies (including Shanghai Tianma) by Tianma and Proposed A Shares Placing of
Tianma (continued)

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11 November 2013, 8 May 2014 and
26 May 2014, the circular dated 29 January 2014 and the announcement of the Company dated 17 March
2014 for the poll results of the extraordinary general meeting, respectively.

On 24 July 2014, Tianma has been informed by China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) that the
overall proposal of the Transactions and the Proposed A Shares Placing have been conditionally approved
at the meeting of the Merger, Acquisition and Reorganisation Examination Committee of Listed Companies
(EMRARIHEEEHRZEE) of the CSRC held on 24 July 2014. On 22 August 2014, Tianma has received the
approval in writing from CSRC issued on 20 August 2014 on the overall proposal of the Transactions and
the Proposed A Shares Placing for a validity period of twelve months from the date of issue.

On 5 August 2014, Tianma has executed the 2013 dividend distribution plan. Following the distribution of
dividend by Tianma of RMB1 per 10 Tianma A Shares, adjustments have been made to the issue price and
the number of shares of Tianma to be issued under the Transactions and the Proposed A Shares Placing:

(A) in respect of the Transactions, the issue price of each Consideration Share has been adjusted from
RMB12.69 to RMB12.59, and the total number of Consideration Shares has been adjusted from
433,128,585 A Shares to 436,568,842 Tianma A Shares; and

B) in respect of the Proposed A Shares Placing, the Placing Price of each Placing Share has been
adjusted from RMB12.69 to RMB12.59, and the maximum number of Placing Shares has been
adjusted from 144,376,196 Placing Shares to 140,239,015 Placing Shares (during the vetting
process by CSRC and pursuant to Tianma’s need of working capital, the total amount of gross
proceeds to be raised under the Proposed A Shares Placing was requested to be reduced from
RMB1,832,133,933 to RMB1,765,609,199, therefore the maximum number of Placing Shares was
reduced accordingly and was eventually reduced to 140,239,015 Placing Shares following Tianma’s
distribution of dividend).

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24 July 2014 and 22 August
2014, respectively.

On 10 September 2014, the assets transfer in relation of acquisition of 5 Subject Companies (including
Shanghai Tianma) by Tianma was completed. The aggregation of 436,568,842 new Shares, of which
436,568,842 shares are restricted shares, are issued to 9 transferors (including the Company, AVIC
International and AVIC Shenzhen) by Tianma. Those new Shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
on 12 September 2014.

The final placing price for the relevant Proposed A Share Placing is RMB14.60, and the final number of
Placing Shares is, in aggregate, 120,932,133 A Shares of Shenzhen Tianma. The gross proceeds of Tianma
is approximately RMB1,765,609,000. Additional Shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange since
29 September 2014. Upon the completion of the acquisition of 5 Subject Companies (including Shanghai
Tianma) by Tianma and Proposed A Shares Placing of Tianma, the total share capital of Tianma Company is
1,181,738,475 shares. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 September
2014 and 25 September 2014, respectively.
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7.
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Connected Transaction — Capital Increase Agreement

On 28 April 2014, the Company entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”)
with AVIC Trust Company Limited (FFAEsEMDBRAF]) (“AVIC Trust”), pursuant to which the Company
and AVIC Trust have agreed to make a capital contribution of RMB62,678,000 and RMB20,892,000 in cash,
respectively, to the registered capital of GIB Company, which are in proportion to their respective holding
of equity interests of 75% and 25% in GIB Company (the “Capital Increase”). The holding of equity interests
in GIB Company by the Company and AVIC Trust shall remain unchanged upon completion of the Capital
Increase. As AVIC Trust, an associate of AVIC Industry, holds 25% of the equity interests in GIB Company,
GIB Company is a connected person of the Company for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Capital Increase and the transactions contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement constitute
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the percentage ratios
under the Listing Rules applicable are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Capital Increase and the
transactions contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement by the Company are subject to, among
other things, the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirement. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 April 2014.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements for the Continuing Connected
Transactions of the Group in the coming three years

The existing framework agreements, setting out the basic content of the transactions between the Group on
one hand, and AVIC Industry or AVIC International (including their respective associates, where applicable)
on the other hand, were entered into on 5 September 2012. As each of the aforesaid agreements would
expire on 31 December 2014, the Company (or its subsidiary) entered into: (i) the “New Aviation Industry
Sale Framework Agreement”, “New Aviation Industry Purchase Framework Agreement”, “New Aviation
Industry Agency Services Framework Agreement” and “New Aviation Industry Financial Framework
Agreement” with AVIC Industry; and (i) the “New AVIC International Sale Framework Agreement”, “New
AVIC International Purchase Framework Agreement”, “New AVIC International Agency Services Framework
Agreement” and “New AVIC International Financial Framework Agreement” with AVIC International on 16
October 2014. The Engineering Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the “New
AVIC International Construction Services Framework Agreement” with AVIC International on the same date.
Details of each of these framework agreements are set out as below:

No. Name of Agreement Content of Agreements Annual Cap Amount
2015 2016
(RMB) (RMB)
1.1 New Aviation Industry Sale Sales of goods 150,000,000 180,000,000 200,000,000
Framework Agreement
1.2 New Aviation Industry Purchase Procurement of goods 200,000,000 300,000,000 400,000,000
Framework Agreement
2.1 New AVIC International Sale Sales of goods 3,000,000,000 3,200,000,000 3,500,000,000
Framework Agreement
2.2 New AVIC International Purchase  Procurement of goods 3,500,000,000 4,000,000,000 4,500,000,000

Framework Agreement
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
8. Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreements for the Continuing Connected
Transactions of the Group in the coming three years (continued)

Name of Agreement Content of Agreements Annual Cap Amount
2015 2016
(RMB) (RMB)
1.3 New Aviation Industry Agency Provision of agency services 120,000,000 150,000,000 200,000,000
Services Framework Agreement
Acceptance of agency services 35,000,000 38,000,000 40,000,000
2.3 New AVIC International Agency Provision of agency services 160,000,000 200,000,000 220,000,000
Services Framework Agreement
Acceptance of agency services 120,000,000 150,000,000 160,000,000
1.4 New Aviation Industry Financial Provision of borrowings/guarantee 1,200,000,000 1,300,000,000 1,500,000,000
Framework Agreement
Acceptance of borrowings/ 4,500,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
guarantee
Provision of the collected interest/ 80,000,000 90,000,000 90,000,000
guarantee fees
Acceptance of the collected 300,000,000 350,000,000 350,000,000

interest/guarantes fees
2.4 New AVIC International Financial ~ Provision of borrowings/guarantee 3,000,000,000 3,500,000,000 4,000,000,000

Framework Agreement
Acceptance of borrowings/ 15,000,000,000 18,000,000,000 22,000,000,000
guarantee
Provision of the collected interest/ 200,000,000 230,000,000 280,000,000
guarantee fees
Acceptance of the collected 500,000,000 600,000,000 800,000,000
interest/guarantee fees
2.5 New AVIC International Provision of construction services 1,000,000,000 1,200,000,000 1,600,000,000
Construction Services
Framework Agreement

For details of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 October 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2014. The
abovementioned connected transactions had been approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2014.
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Connected Transaction — Establishment of a Joint Venture Company

On 11 November 2014, the Company has entered into a capital contribution agreement (the “Capital
Contribution Agreement”) with AVIC Aircraft Company Limited (PR 5 BE/AT]) (‘AVIC Aircraft”), Shanxi
Aircraft Property Development Group Co., Ltd PREAMZEFEZEREEEGRAF]) (“Shanxi Aircraft”), AVIC
Electromechanical Systems Company Limited (FA&ERF AR AR) (“AVIC Electromechanical Systems”),
AVIC International Aero-Development Corporation Limited (FABFEMZEEERARAF) (“AVIC ADE”) and AVIC
Avionics Systems Company Limited (FRIMZEEFRAEREFEAA) (“AVIC Avionics”) (collectively, the “JV
Partners”) to establish a joint venture company (the “Joint Venture Company”), which engages in the design,
testing, manufacture and sales of airplane (including aerocrafts) and other related businesses, technology
services, and import and export businesses, with a registered capital of RMB1.9 billion. The amount of
registered capital to be contributed by the JV Partners corresponds to their respective equity interests in
the Joint Venture Company; among other things, (1) AVIC Aircraft shall contribute RMB700 million in cash
and shall hold 36.84% equity interest in the Joint Venture Company; (2) Shanxi Aircraft shall contribute
RMB600 million in cash and shall hold 31.58% equity interest in the Joint Venture Company; (3) AVIC
Electromechanical Systems shall contribute RMB200 million in cash and shall hold 10.53% equity interest
in the Joint Venture Company; (4) the Company shall contribute RMB150 million in cash and shall hold
7.895% equity interest in the Joint Venture Company; (5) AVIC ADE shall contribute RMB150 million in cash
and shall hold 7.895% equity interest in the Joint Venture Company; and (6) AVIC Avionics shall contribute
RMB100 million in cash and shall hold 5.26% equity interest in the Joint Venture Company. As each of AVIC
Aircraft, AVIC Electromechanical Systems and AVIC Avionics is an associate of Aviation Industry, each of
AVIC Aircraft, AVIC Electromechanical Systems and AVIC Avionics is a connected person of the Company.
AVIC International is a controlling shareholder of the Company and AVIC ADE is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of AVIC International, and therefore, AVIC ADE is also a connected person of the Company. Pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated under Capital Contribution Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company. As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
the Listing Rules) are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Capital Contribution Agreement is subject
to, among other things, the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval requirement. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2014.
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10.

Discloseable and Connected Transaction - Investment Cooperation Agreement

On 17 December 2014, Xiamen Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an
investment cooperation agreement (the “Investment Cooperation Agreement”) with AVIC International,
Xiamen Torch Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone Management Committee (EFIAJESFEAMTESR
BRmEIEEEE), AVIC Shenzhen, Xiamen Jincai Investment Company Limited (EFffm&EREEREA
7)) (“Xiamen Jincai”) and Xiamen Jinyuan Investment Group Company Limited (EFi&EREEEARA
Al) (“Xiamen Jinyuan”) in respect of the investment project to be implemented by Xiamen Tianma Micro-
electronics Co., Ltd. (EFTIRBEMETARA 7)) (“Xiamen Tianma”) in respect of the construction of the 6th
generation LTPS TFTLCD and CF coloured filter production lines (the “Investment Project”). The estimated
total investment amount of the Investment Project will be RMB12 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$15
billion) which will be financed by the loan to be borrowed by Xiamen Tianma from bank(s) in the estimated
sum of RMBS6 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7.5 billion) (the “Bank Loan”) and the capital injection
into Xiamen Tianma in the sum of RMB6 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7.5 billion) pursuant to
the Investment Cooperation Agreement (the “Capital Injection”). Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation
Agreement, Xiamen Company, AVIC Shenzhen, AVIC International and Xiamen Jincai, all being shareholders
of Xiamen Tianma with respective equity interest of 6%, 15.3%, 14.7% and 64% therein, agreed to inject
a total of RMB6 billion. Upon completion of the Capital Injection by its shareholders, the total registered
capital of Xiamen Tianma will be increased from RMB2.8 billion to RMB8.8 billion. Apart from the Capital
Injection, the Investment Project will also be financed by the Bank Loan. Xiamen Tianma will borrow an
estimated sum of RMB6 billion from bank(s). Pursuant to the Investment Cooperation Agreement, Xiamen
Jinyuan will provide a guarantee of 80% of the Bank Loan in favour of the bank(s) and Xiamen Company
will provide a guarantee of a sum not exceeding RMB200,000,000 in respect of the Bank Loan. AVIC
International was a controlling Shareholder holding approximately 39.37% of the issued share capital of the
Company, and it owned 100% equity interest of AVIC Shenzhen, which in turn is a controlling Shareholder
holding approximately 35.63% of the issued share capital of the Company. AVIC International and AVIC
Shenzhen held, in aggregate, 30% equity interest in Xiamen Tianma. Accordingly, each of AVIC Shenzhen,
AVIC International and Xiamen Tianma is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transactions to be contemplated under the Investment Cooperation Agreement constitute
a connected transaction. Hence, the Investment Cooperation Agreement will be subject to, among other
things, the independent shareholders’ approval, reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules for the Investment Cooperation Agreement are more than 5% but less than 25%, the Investment
Cooperation Agreement also constitutes a discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 December 2014
and the circular of the Company dated 12 January 2015. The abovementioned connected transactions,
subject to the independent shareholders’ approval, were approved in the independent shareholders’ meeting
held on 10 February 2015.
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11.
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Continuing Connected Transaction — Concessionaire Framework Agreement and Aviation Industry
Property Rental (leasing) Framework Agreement

On 30 December 2014, Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (REIREIZIDAERRAR]) (formerly known as
Shenzhen Rainbow Department Stores Co. Ltd. (FIIKRILFEHEREEAR]) (“Rainbow Department Store
Company”) and Fiyta (a subsidiary of the Company) entered into a concessionaire framework agreement
(the “Rainbow Concessionaire Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Rainbow Department Store
Company agreed to allow Fiyta to occupy areas in the department stores owned and managed by Rainbow
Department Store Company and located in various cities in the PRC and to establish its own sales counters
for the sale of Fiyta watches and world famous watches, etc. for a term of 3 years commencing on 1
January 2015 and expiring on 31 December 2017. According to the Rainbow Concessionaire Framework
Agreement, the annual cap amounts in respect of the concessionaire by Fiyta to Rainbow Department
Store Company in the year ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 shall not exceed RMB32,000,000,
RMB35,000,000 and RMB40,000,000, respectively.

On 30 December 2014, the Company and Aviation Industry entered into a property rental (leasing)
framework agreement (the “Property Rental (Leasing) Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group agreed to lease property from Aviation Industry and/or its associated companies (other than AVIC
International and its associated companies) for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2015 and
ending on 31 December 2017. According to the Property Rental (Leasing) Framework Agreement, the
annual cap amounts in respect of leasing of real estate properties by the Group to Aviation Industry and/
or its associated companies (other than AVIC International and its associated companies) in the year ended
31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 shall not exceed RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000,
respectively.

On 30 December 2014, the Company and Aviation Industry entered into a property rental (letting) framework
agreement (the “Property Rental (Letting) Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed
to let property to Aviation Industry and/or its associated companies (other than AVIC International and
its associated companies) for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017. According to the Property Rental (Letting) Framework Agreement, the annual cap amounts
in respect of leasing of real estate properties by Aviation Industry and/or its associated companies (other
than AVIC International and its associated companies) to the Group in the year ended 31 December 2015,
2016 and 2017 shall not exceed RMB5,000,000, RMB5,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively.

As Rainbow Department Store Company and Aviation Industry are the connected persons of the Company,
the Rainbow Concessionaire Framework Agreement, the Property Rental (Leasing) Framework Agreement
and the Property Rental (Letting) Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company according to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the above transactions are more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
such transactions are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 December 2014.
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AUDITOR’S CONFIRMATION

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company appointed the auditors,
Pricewaterhoursecoopers, to carry out review procedures on the connected transactions in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information’ and with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditors provided to the Stock Exchange a copy of letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions confirming that:

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the relevant continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

with respect to the respective amount of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the respective amount of transactions have
exceeded the respective cap as disclosed in the previous announcements made by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

Discloseable Transaction — Provision of Guarantee

On 24 January 2014, Beijing Company executed a counter-guarantee agreement (the “Counter-guarantee
Agreement”) in favour of the Export-Import Bank of China (FBEEHAEETT) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which
Beijing Company guaranteed to pay all secured indebtedness in respect of US$47,250,000 (together
with interests and related costs, etc. if any) (as defined below) due and owing to the Bank by Taizhou
Shipbuilding (a joint stock company owned as to 45% by Beijing Company) in relation to the guarantee
of US$105,000,000 provided by the Bank for Taizhou Shipbuilding. The Counter-guarantee Agreement
commences from date of its execution (i.e. 24 January 2014) and will cease upon full repayment of the
secured indebtedness. The applicable percentage ratios in relation to the provision of guarantee provided by
Beijing Company to Taizhou Shipbuilding are in aggregate more than 5% but less than 25%, and therefore
the transactions contemplated under the provision of guarantee constitute a discloseable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the provision of guarantee is subject to
the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirement of shareholders’
approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 24 January 2014.
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2.
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Discloseable Transaction — Provision of Guarantee

On 17 March 2014, Beijing Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) executed a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement”) in favour of Taizhou Branch of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (3
EIRTTRY D BRR A RIZIMND1T) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which Beijing Company guaranteed to pay an amount
of RMB216,000,000 in respect of the loans and principal amount of the credit facilities of RMB480,000,000
(including interests, related expenses) (the “Provision of Guarantee”) provided by the Bank to Taizhou AVIC
during the period from 17 March 2014 to 16 March 2017 under the credit facilities agreement entered
into between the Bank and Taizhou AVIC dated 17 March 2014 (the “Credit Facilities”). The Guarantee
Agreement commenced from the date of its execution (i.e. 17 March 2014) and would cease upon 2 years
after the expiry date of the Credit Facilities. The applicable percentage ratios of the amount of guarantee(s)
provided by Beijing Company to creditors of Taizhou AVIC within 12 months from the date of the Guarantee
Agreement, are in aggregate more than 5% but less than 25%. The transactions contemplated under the
Provision of Guarantee constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the Provision of Guarantee is subject to the requirements of reporting and announcement,
but is exempted from the requirement of shareholders’ approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2014 for details.

Discloseable Transaction - Provision of Guarantee

On 25 April 2014, Beijing Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement”) with Taizhou Branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (3Xi#BR7T
A BRARZEINDTT) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which Beijing Company provided a guarantee (the “Provision
of Guarantee”) to the Bank in respect of the loan facilities in an amount of RMB49,000,000 under the capital
loan agreement entered into between the Bank and Taizhou AVIC dated 18 April 2014 (the “Debt”), together
with interests and other relevant expenses for Taizhou AVIC. The term of the Provision of Guarantee shall be
two years commencing from the expiry date of the Debt (i.e. 17 April 2015). As the applicable percentage
ratios, together with the amount of guarantee(s) provided by Beijing Company to creditors of Taizhou AVIC
within 12 months from the date of the Guarantee Agreement, are in aggregate more than 5% but less than
25%, the transactions contemplated under the Provision of Guarantee constitute a discloseable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Provision of Guarantee is subject to
the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirement of shareholders’
approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement
published by the Company dated 25 April 2014.

H Share Issue Mandate

On 6 June 2014, a special resolution was passed at the annual general meeting of the Company to
authorize the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional H Shares up to 20% of the aggregate nominal
value of H Shares of the Company in issue (the “New H Shares”) as at the date of passing such resolution
(the “New H Share Issue Mandate”). The Directors were authorized to issue a maximum of 55,531,599
New H Shares. The New H Share Issue Mandate was conditional upon the approvals of the CSRC, State
Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC and/or any other regulatory authorities (if applicable) as
required by the laws, rules and regulations of the PRC being obtained. The New H Share Issue Mandate will
be subject to the market conditions as determined by the Board. For details, please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 16 April 2014 and the poll results announcement for the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 6 June 2014.
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5.

Discloseable Transaction — Contract for Construction Works

On 26 June 2014, Wuxi Shennan Electric Circuit Company Limited (E$HREEIRARAF]) (“Wuxi
Shennan”) (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a general construction contract
(the “Construction Contract”) with Jiangsu Suyang Construction Company Limited (T#rérkziE:ZARE AT
(*Jiangsu Suyang”), pursuant to which Wuxi Shennan has agreed to engage Jiangsu Suyang for carrying
out the construction works in relation to a semiconductor packaging substrate project (the “Construction
Works”) at the maximum contract sum of RMB370,212,000. As one of the applicable percentage ratios
calculated under the Listing Rules in respect of the Construction Contract exceeds 5% but is less than
25%, the transaction contemplated under the Construction Contract therefore constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company and is subject to the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is
exempted from the requirement of shareholders’ approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26 June 2014.

Proposal of General Mandate to Issue Debentures Denominated in Renminbi in the PRC

With a view to broadening financing channels, reducing finance costs and improving debt structure of the
Company, on 9 October 2014, the Board convened a board meeting to consider and approve a resolution
in relation to the general mandate (the “General Mandate”) to be granted to the Board to issue debentures
denominated in Renminbi (the “Debentures”), in tranches, by way of medium-term notes and private
placement notes. The maximum outstanding repayment amount of the medium-term notes and private
placement notes to be issued under the General Mandate shall not exceed RMB2 billion and RMB1.5 billion
in aggregate respectively. Each term of maturity for medium-term notes shall not exceed 10 years, and each
term of maturity for private placement notes shall not exceed 5 years. Specific terms will be determined by
the Board with reference to the market condition and the Company’s needs for funding. It is expected that
the interest rate will not exceed the rate for the loans for the same tenure in the market at the time of issue.
Actual interest rate will be determined by the Board with reference to the market condition at the time of
issue. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9 October 2014, the circular
of the Company dated 24 November 2014 and the poll results announcement of the extraordinary general
meeting dated 30 December 2014.

Lapse of Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected Transactions involving Issue of Perpetual
Subordinated Convertibles Securities

On 27 December 2013, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement in respect of the Acquisition
Agreement 1 (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2013) with AVIC
International, and a supplemental agreement in respect of the Acquisition Agreement 2 (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2013) and the Acquisition Agreement 3 (as defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2013) (including equity interest purchase agreements,
PSCS (as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2013) and subscription
agreements) with AVIC Shenzhen to further extend the long stop date to 31 December 2014 (or such later
date as the respective parties may agree in writing) (the “Extended Long Stop Date”). For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2013.

The Company has received written approval from the SASAC in October 2013, stating its consent in
principle to the acquisition of the Revised Sale Interests 1 (as defined in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 October 2013) (including the issue of PSCS of approximately RMB552,815,000 to satisfy the
consideration thereunder), and the acquisition contemplated under the Acquisition Agreement 3 (including
the issue of PSCS of approximately RMB6,328,303,000 to satisfy the consideration thereunder). The
transactions contemplated under the Acquisition Agreement 1, Acquisition Agreement 2 and Acquisition
Agreement 3 (collectively, the “Acquisition Agreements”) are still conditional upon the fulfillment of various
other conditions, details of which are set out in the circulars of the Company dated 23 December 2011 and
5 July 2013.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (continued)

7.

Lapse of Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected Transactions involving Issue of Perpetual
Subordinated Convertibles Securities (continued)

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 21 November 2011, 8 February 2012,
27 June 2012, 11 October 2012, 16 May 2013, 26 August 2013, 30 October 2013 and 27 December
2013, and the circulars of the Company dated 23 December 2011 and 5 July 2013, all of which relate to
the very substantial acquisitions and connected transactions of the Company involving issue of perpetual
subordinated convertible securities.

On 31 December 2014 (i.e. the Extended Long Stop Date), as certain conditions precedent of the
Acquisition Agreements have not been fulfilled, e.g. approval of the Acquisition Agreements from the relevant
regulatory authorities not having been obtained, and the Company, AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen
have not agreed on any further extension of the Extended Long Stop Date, the Acquisition Agreements have
therefore lapsed on 31 December 2014 and ceased to have any effect.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
The Group has no material foreign exchange risk as the Group’s products are mainly distributed in domestic market
and its export business is mainly settled in US dollar or HK dollar.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following financial guaranties outstanding:

Outstanding
Guarantor’s relationship Guarantee’s relationship amounts

Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group guaranteed
RMB’000

Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Associated Company 692,623

Industry Limited
EMEfAAE T AR AF)

Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Zhengli Ocean Engineering Third party 33,590
Company Limited
(ETEF IIRABAT)

Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Tianma Microelectronics The guarantor holds 6% 176,000
Company Limited equity interests in the
(BFREHETERAT) guarantee

Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Radiance Catico Offshore Pte. Ltd ~ Associated Company 161,621

Engineering Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ CATIC Construction Engineering Controlled by the same 68,600
Company Limited company
(RRETRERRT)

Chengdu Raise Subsidiary of the Group ~ Real estate property buyer Third party 150,934

1,283,368
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continuea)

The Group provide financial counter-guarantee to the following parties as at 31 December 2014:

Outstanding
Guarantor’s relationship Guarantee’s relationship amounts
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group guaranteed
RMB’000
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group ~ Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) The guarantee holds 2.49% equity 77,887
Co., Ltd interests in the guarantor
(DERT (£E) BRAR)
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group ~ Shanghai State-owned Assets The guarantee holds 2.37% equity 73,992
Operation Co., Ltd interests in the guarantor
(DEEFEELERRAR)
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group ~ Shanghai Industrial Investment Third party 13,943

(Group) Co., Ltd
(DBT#KRE (5E) ARAF)

Tianma Subsidiary of the Group  Shanghai Optical Communication The guarantee holds 1.25% equity 25,000
Corporation (EEXBELRF) interests in the guarantor

Tianma Subsidiary of the Group ~ Chengdu Industrial Group Co., Ltd  The guarantee holds 2.5% equity 268,058
(BT EEEBERAT) interests in the guarantor

Tianma Subsidiary of the Group ~ Chengdu Gaoxin Investment Group ~ The guarantee holds 1.59% equity 170,322
Co., Ltd interests in the guarantor

(REEHEEEARAT)

629,202

On 20 December 2013, Humboldt Wedag Inc., Norcross (Georgia) (“HWUS”), a subsidiary of the Group, received
an arbitration claim that a customer in South America has submitted to the International Chamber of Commerce
(“ICC”). The arbitration claim aims to determine that the cancellation of the contract with HWUS by the customer is
effective and that HWUS and KHD should be ordered to jointly pay USD9,400,000 (RMB58,186,000) as a reduction
of the contractually agreed price and USD5,200,000 (RMB32,188,000) as compensation for maintenance costs
and reputation loss suffered. The arbitration claim also aims either to win indemnity as if the contract had not been
concluded (negative interest) or to win indemnity as if the contract had been fulfilled as agreed (positive interest).
Considering that the contract between HWUS (vendor) and the customer includes clauses excluding compensation
for consequential damages and a set value for the upper limit of total liability for the vendor — these clauses being
effective in the view of HWUS’s and KHD’s legal representatives in the arbitration proceedings — HWUS and KHD
assume that they will prevail on the issue of indemnity. The two arbitration claims above were combined in a single
arbitration proceeding. The negotiation before the court of arbitration continues. Evidence was taken in a hearing
with witnesses from both parties in Lisbon in January 2015. A decision from the court of arbitration is expected
during the course of 2015.
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MAJOR LITIGATION

There was not any major litigation or arbitration for the Company in 2014.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1.

130

Connected Transaction - Acquisition of Equity Interest in Zhong He Zhong

On 8 January 2015, RED Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a share
transfer agreement with CATIC Building Technology Company Limited (ZYITAEFTREHR AR A R) (“CATIC
Building”) (an indirect subsidiary of AVIC Shenzhen) to acquire 20% equity interest in Zhong He Zhong (Beijing)
Guang Dian Technology Company Limited (FFIFF (JER) KERHRARZAF]) (“Zhong He Zhong™) held by CATIC
Building for a consideration of RMB6,032,200 (the “Share Transfer Agreement”). Upon completion of the
above acquisition, RED Company will hold 60% equity interest in Zhong He Zhong.

As CATIC Building is a connected person of the Company, the Share Transfer Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refers to
the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015.

Very Substantial Disposal - Deemed Disposal of Interest in Tianma

On 28 January 2015, the board of directors of Tianma (a subsidiary of the Company) had resolved to issue
by way of non-public offer new A shares to not more than ten investors to raise funds by issuing up to a
maximum of 334,821,428 shares. Assuming all the new A shares are being issued, the equity interest of the
Company in Tianma (the “Share Issuance”) will be diluted from 25.76% to 19.88%.

According to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the Share Issuance constitutes a very substantial disposal of
the Company, which is subject to announcement, reporting and shareholder’s approval requirements. For
details, please refers to the announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2015, and the circular of the
Company dated 27 March 2015.

Disposal of an associate

Beijing Company originally held 45% interests of Taizhou AVIC, an associate of Beijing Company with
carrying amount of RMB84,124,000. On 25 December 2014, Beijing Company put the 45% interests of
Taizhou AVIC held by it to China Beijing Equity Exchange (“‘It R EH#ER SF1”) (‘CBE”) for bidding, the bidding
price was RMB91,811,000. On 29 January 2015, Taizhou Kou’an Shipbuilding Co., Ltd EMEO=MAHE
[RAR]) (“Taizhou Kou’an”), the holding company of Taizhou AVIC, entered into an agreement with Beijing
Company and exercised the pre-emption right to acquire the 45% interests of Taizhou AVIC held by Beijing
Company at a price of RMB91,811,000.

Discloseable Transaction — Provision of Guarantee by Shanghai Tianma

On 19 March 2015, Shanghai Tianma (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a
guarantee agreement with The Export-Import Bank of China (FREI#EHAER1T) (the “Bank”), pursuant to which
Shanghai Tianma provided a guarantee (the “Shanghai Tianma Guarantee”) to the Bank in respect of the
facilities in the aggregate amount of not exceeding RMB550,000,000 to be applied from time to time by
Shanghai Tian Ma Organic Light-Emitting Technology Company Limited (&KEA#EEE B RITAREA
Bl) (“Tianma Technology Company”) from the Bank from 19 March 2015 to 19 March 2021 under the loan
agreement (import fixed assets loan agreement) entered into between the Bank and Tianma Technology
Company. The term of the Shanghai Tianma Guarantee shall be from 19 March 2015 to 19 March 2021.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in relation to the Shanghai Tianma Guarantee
are more than 5% but less than 25%, the transactions contemplated under the Shanghai Tianma Guarantee
constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
Shanghai Tianma Guarantee is subject to the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted
from the requirement of shareholders’ approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2015.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Except for the code provision A.2.1, the Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code which was contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2014. For further details of the deviation from code provision A.2.1, please refer to the paragraph
headed “4. Chairman and Chief Executive” in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report. During the
period, the Company has introduced remedial measures and systems for existing drawbacks in order to further
improve its internal control.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules has been adopted as a code of securities transactions for the Directors and supervisors of
the Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries with all Directors and supervisors of the Company,
confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December 2014, all Directors and supervisors of the Company had
complied with the required standards of dealing in securities specified in the Model Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules to
fulfill the functions of reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting and internal control of the Company. The
Audit Committee members currently comprise all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong
Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei. The Audit Committee has reviewed and confirmed the Company’s results
announcement and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The figures in respect of this annual report of the Group’s results for the year have been agreed by the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to the Group’s financial statements for the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has obtained written confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors concerning their
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014.
The Directors believe that the independent non-executive Directors had remained independent based on the
requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the Board of the Company as at the latest
practicable date with respect to the publication of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. There is no change
in the Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Wu Guang Quan
Chairman

Shenzhen, 20 March 2015
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on
30 December 2014), and is chaired by Ms. Wong Wai Ling. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Audit Committee, a subcommittee of the Board, performed its duties in strict compliance with the Code
and has effectively monitored the Company’s financial incomes and expenses and its operating activities
for the year ended 31 December 2014. It has reviewed the Company’s financial statements and interim and
annual reports, as well as supervised the internal control and information disclosure of the Company, and
enhanced its communication with the auditors to ensure that they have imposed effective supervision on
the Company’s operation and management. The works of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2014 are summarized as follows:

[) Understanding the actual operations and the progress of major events of the Company, its controlling
companies and its subsidiaries, and reviewed the financial statements compiled by the Company;

) Overseeing the quality of internal auditing and the disclosure of financial information pursuant to
the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules for listed issuers, reviewing the interim and annual
financial statements prior to the submission to the Board, and communicating closely with the
auditors to reach a consensus in all material aspects of the audit report;

1) Examining the completeness of the Company’s financial statements and interim and annual reports
and reviewing the major opinions in respect of financial reporting of financial information set out in the
financial statements in accordance with the professional ethics of independence, objectiveness and
fairness;

V) Acting as the major representative for the communications between the Company and the external
auditor pursuant to the Code and monitoring their relationship; reviewing and examining the
independence of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit procedures in accordance
with the applicable standards;

V) Reviewing the implementation of the connected transactions of the Company in the year ended 31
December 2014;

VI) Providing guidance in respect of internal control, and considering and approving the working plan for
internal auditing for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The annual result and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 of the Group
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (continuea)
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014, the details of which are
as follows:

Subcommittee Audit Committee

Members Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei, Mr. Zhang Ping (resigned on 30
December 2014)

Number of meetings held 2

Date of meetings held 21 March 2014

21 August 2014

Proposals considered . The Proposal to Review the Auditor’'s Report, Results
Announcement and Report of Directors of the Company for 2013

2. The Proposal to Review the Compliance of the Connected
Transactions of the Company

3. The Proposal to Review the Enhancement of Corporate
Governance and Internal Control of the Company

4. The Proposal to Review the Interim Financial Report and the
Interim Report on Consolidated Results of the Company for 2014

o8 The Proposal to Review the Corporate Governance and the
Internal Control of the Company for the First Half of 2014

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises Mr.
Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed
on 30 December 2014), and is chaired by Mr. Wei Wei. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and the payment method for the Directors,
supervisors and senior management. It has also made an assessment on the disclosure of the remuneration
of the Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company in the Company’s annual report and
is of the opinion that the remuneration standard set for the Directors, supervisors and senior management of
the Company was in compliance with the relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration disclosures in the Company’s annual report were true and
accurate. The works of the Remuneration Committee in the year ended 31 December 2014 are summarized
as follows:

l) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy or scheme for all executive Directors, supervisors and other senior management
of the Company in accordance with laws, statutes and the articles of associations of the Company,
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors to ensure
that none of the Directors was involved in the determination of his remuneration. It was delegated the
responsibility by the Board to determine the amount of benefits in kind, pension and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;
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. REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)
) The Remuneration Committee has supervised the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure to formulate the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company;

[1) The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remunerations of the Company’s Directors,
supervisors and senior management for the year ended 31 December 2013, and considered that the
procedure for the determination of remuneration and distribution standard comply with the provisions
of the remuneration system;

V) The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the performance of duties by the Directors, supervisors,
and other senior management, and assessed their annual performance for the year ended 31
December 2018. It has also monitored the implementation of the Company’s remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2014, the details of
which are as follows:

Subcommittee Remuneration Committee

Members Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu
Wei, Mr. Zhang Ping (resigned on 30 December 2014)

Number of meeting held 1

Date of meeting held 21 March 2014

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Remuneration Policy of the Directors

and Senior Management of the Company for 2013

2. The Proposal to Review the Procedure for the Determination of
the Remuneration Policy of the Company
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) currently comprises Mr. Wu
Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Wei Wei (appointed on
30 December 2014), and is chaired by Mr. Wu Wei. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well as the
qualification and experience of the candidates. It also has reviewed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee considered that the structure of the Board complies with
the requirement of the Listing Rules, all of the Directors are competent to act as director of the Company,
including skills, knowledge and experience. All of the independent non-executive Directors met the
requirement of independence of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014.
The works of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2014 are summarized as
follows:

l) During the year ended 31 December 2014, the committee has considered and reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, including skills, knowledge and experience of the Directors, and
made recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change to the structure of the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

1) The Nomination Committee has considered the suitability of a candidate to act as a director on the
basis of the candidate’s qualification, experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company;
and

[11) The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors
under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014, the details of
which are as follows:

Subcommittee Nomination Committee

Members Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu
Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping (resigned on 30 December 2014)

Number of meetings held 2

Date of meetings held 21 March 2014

21 August 2014

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Structure, Size and Composition of
the Board
2. The Proposal to Review the Independence of Independent Non-

executive Directors

3. The Proposal to Review the Board’s Diversity Policy

4. The Proposal on the appointment or re-appointment or succession
of Directors
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The first meeting of sixth session of the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) was
held on 19 June 2012, in which new members of Supervisory Committee were elected. The Supervisory Committee
currently comprises Mr. Cao Jiang (chairman of the Supervisory Committee), Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Deng Bo Song.

On 30 December 2014, the Company held the extraordinary general meeting, in which Mr. Cao Jiang was
appointed as the chairman and member of the Supervisory Committee with the term of office from 30 December
2014 to the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, all members of the Supervisory Committee earnestly performed the
function of supervision in accordance with the regulations and requirements of the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the articles of associations of the Company and the procedure rules of the Supervisory
Committee. By means of exercising their functions independently pursuant to the laws through attending the
meetings of board of directors as a non-voting member and convening the meeting of the Supervisory Committee,
the members of the Supervisory Committee supervised and examined the operations of the Company in
accordance with the laws, the financial position of the Company, the implementation of resolutions passed in the
shareholders’ general meetings, the process of making major decisions by the Board, the legality and compliance
for the operation and management activities of the Company as well as the performance of duties by the Directors.
It was thus procured that the Company is operated legally with a view to safeguard the benefits of the Company,
its shareholders and employees.

The Supervisory Committee considers that during the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company’s operation,
financial auditing and result and daily operation and management complied with relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules and the articles of associations of the Company; the Board members are scrupulous about their duties,
without breach of laws or rules or damaging the Company’s benefits by utilizing their powers.

The Supervisory Committee expresses the following opinions for the performance of the operation of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2014:

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on the legal operation of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company strictly complied with the laws and statutes such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, articles of
associations of the Company and the Listing Rules, established sound internal control system. The operation of
the Company is normal and the decision-making procedure is in compliance with the relevant law and regulation.
The shareholders’ general meetings and the Board meetings were convened in accordance with the procedures
as provided in the relevant laws, regulations and the Company’s articles of association, where the contents of
the relevant resolutions were legal and valid. When fulfilling duties, the directors of the Company can consciously
safeguard the benefits of the Company and its shareholders, adhere to the principles of good faith and diligence,
and do not violate any laws or statutes, or damage the Company’s benefits.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on review of Company’s financial status

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the relevant information such as the 2014 interim report, 2014 annual
report and 2014 auditor’s report presented by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, with
unqualified opinion. The Supervisory Committee considered that the Company’s finance system and internal control
system are sound, the financial operation is normal and financial status is good, and that the auditor’s report can
truly, objectively and fairly reflect the financial position and operating results of the Company in the year ended 31
December 2014.
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The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Company

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company were in
compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations including the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Listing Rules as well as the articles of
association of the Company and the required review procedures have been performed to ensure that there was no
damage to the interests of the Company nor any impairment to the Company’s assets.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the connected transactions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 and considered that such transactions were in line with the
Company’s needs for business development and long-term growth, and strictly in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules, the articles of association of the Company and the Internal Reporting System for Major Events
and Connected Transactions issued by the Company. The Company has conducted the review and disclosure
procedures such that the interests of the Shareholders and the Company were not prejudiced.

We hereby report.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Cao Jiang
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, China
20 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 140 to
364, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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R-Z—ME&E+—-H=+—H As at 31 December 2014

BZE
—A—HL
BZ+=-HA=+—HL As at
As at 31 December 1 January
—E—F —E—=fF —E—=F
2014 2013 2013
Kt AEB¥Fir AREFr AR TFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E5) (#&&E75)
(Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
+ b {sF FRAE Land use rights 7 1,757,824 1,530,773 1,331,337
BhiR N B R Exploration and extraction rights 8 765,937 836,543 505,317
[EES Goodwill 9 952,556 392,554 273,546
mILEE Intangible assets 10 879,874 364,885 303,772
M EENEHE  Property, plant and equipment 11 13,583,312 10,454,696 10,900,556
B YE Investment properties 12 2,232,376 2,153,462 2,099,314
TEETRE Construction-in-progress 13 2,479,701 1,934,988 1,394,070
P A ABENIE Investments accounted for
‘& using the equity method 15 4,342,730 4,386,692 4,298,291
B 5 REAMEYWZIE Trade and other receivables 24 1,585,580 260,540 422,480
HtEES pﬂaéF Available-for-sale financial assets 19 257,940 291,090 259,819
ﬁkﬁfm——rméﬁ Deferred income tax assets 20 637,611 515,550 441,238
BEmIEREEE Other non-current assets 21 514,331 2,082,784 382,128
29,989,772 25,204,557 22,611,868
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 6,376,810 5,210,974 4,327,819
ERPYE Properties under development 23 1,808,116 2,317,086 1,256,078
f’f%&ﬁf@g% %18 Trade and other receivables 24 12,134,461 10,884,104 9,513,512
fﬂ&.:. HTiE }5 Amounts due from customers for
oI contract work 25 2,017,763 1,493,175 1,161,194
T;z”&fﬂﬁﬁL $82%% Financial assets at fair value
THREMNEmEE through profit or loss 26 4,242 5,405 3,110
R ITIER Pledged bank deposits 27 522,864 643,650 643,671
BE& MIEEEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 28 4,828,610 5,076,449 4,196,028
"*EET%{’EHQ'%Z Investments in associates
/NI classified as held-for-sale 29 90,624 = =
27,783,490 25,630,843 21,101,412
BEE Total assets 57,773,262 50,835,400 43,713,280
= EQUITY
AATEHZFEEA  Capital and reserves
B EREF#E attributable to owners
of the Company
R Share capital 30 1,110,632 1,110,632 1,110,632
&0 m (B Share premium 30 1,294,633 1,294,633 1,294,633
ﬁ{’@ﬁﬂ% Other reserves 31 655,789 422272 469,136
KARR Perpetual subordinated
A HARR 5 5 convertible securities 32 2,781,674 2,781,674 2,781,674
PPN Il Retained earnings
— DB FEERAF] - Proposed final dividend 48 111,063 - -
—EAth - Others 3,668,261 3,189,587 2,182,772
9,622,052 8,798,798 7,838,847
FEERRRER Non-controlling interests 14 8,767,461 4,973,140 4,309,921
R Total equity 18,389,513 13,771,938 12,148,768
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ReEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet
RZZE—MNFE+_H=+—H As at 31 December 2014

BZ
—A—AHL
BEZE+=-HA=+—HL As at
As at 31 December 1 January
—E—-mF —E—=%F =%
2014 2013 2013
Biat AR¥TFT AREFT AREFoT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g£&E7)) ($EE5))
(Restated) (Restated)
=N LIABILITIES
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
&k Borrowings 33 10,477,284 6,834,524 4,939,368
EEFEHRAE Deferred income tax liabilities 20 862,398 636,280 539,245
KAL) EE W A Deferred income on
government grants 34 761,479 766,578 784,994
Provisions 38 213,085 6,689 40,458
85 N EMEFIA Trade and other payables 37 22,883 44,871 46,128
RAIR K E T Retirement and other supplemental
BHEE benefit obligations 35 384,357 217,667 249,483
H3ERn#amsE Other non-current liabilities 36 166,803 1,105,347 1,256,762
12,888,289 9,611,956 7,856,438
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 LEAMEFIE Trade and other payables 37 14,600,170 13,827,261 11,847,757
FERA#TIZEE  Amounts due to customers for
RIE contract work 25 1,491,725 194,180 200,434
& Borrowings S5 9,429,473 13,204,529 11,548,985
BN EEFBIBZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TEHEMNEREE through profit or loss 26 66,895 - -
ENEAFR ST & (& Current income tax liabilities 226,956 220,872 106,526
RIKEEAFE T Retirement and other supplemental
BAEE benefit obligations 35 16,931 4,664 4,372
HEmrnsats Other current liabilities 36 663,310 - -
26,495,460 27,451,506 23,708,074
BeE Total liabilities 39,383,749 37,063,462 31,564,512
BRESNEE Total equity and liabilities 57,773,262 50,835,400 43,713,280

REVEE, (8f&) Net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 1,288,030 (1,820,663)  (2,606,662)

HEERMAEA®E Total assets less current
liabilities 31,277,802 23,383,894 20,005,206

BEM1E 151 2364 B T R FiR A MBS RRNEK D -
The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BE:RNAE Ex: hiE
Director: Wu Guang Quan Director: You Lei

F140ESAENIBBRECHN _E—AFE=A-_+AKETHE THUTEERRES -
The financial statements on page 140 to 364 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and
were signed on its behalf.
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NABERER

Company Balance Sheet

R-Z—ME&E+—-H=+—H As at 31 December 2014

BE+-A=+—-HL

As at 31 December

—E-NF —F—=
2014 2013
Kt AR¥FT AR Tr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - HE MR Property, plant and equipment 11 6,503 7,277
R B RARIRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 14 5,798,278 4,585,828
REZ N R E Investments in associates 16 298,198 298,198
RELBEMNKE Investments in joint ventures 17 2,371,409 2,371,409
At ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 19 1,400 15,224
8,475,788 7,277,936
REBEE Current assets
B 5 L E A el ZoE Trade and other receivables 24 2,046,219 797,762
HWENIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 61,742 206,467
2,107,961 1,004,229
BEE Total assets 10,583,749 8,282,165
s EQUITY
EATERFEAEMN Capital and reserves attributable to
B HE owners of the Company
A& A Share capital 30 1,110,632 1,110,632
[ &vpink | Share premium 30 1,294,633 1,294,633
E b # Other reserves 31 146,296 94,084
AR AR A AR 5 55 Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities 32 2,781,674 2,781,674
R BeF) Retained earnings
— o B FERF - Proposed final dividend 48 111,063 =
—HAb - Others 309,537 29,873
S Total equity 5,753,835 5,310,896
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Company Balance Sheet
R=Z—NF+=H=+—H As at 31 December 2014

BEt+t=-A=+—-HL

As at 31 December

— Tl =F—=
2014 2013
it AB¥Fir AREFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
af& LIABILITIES
kRBERS Non-current liabilities
&= Borrowings 33 1,527,000 1,075,000
HEM3EneaE Other non-current liabilities 36 - 800,000
1,527,000 1,875,000
RBAE Current liabilities
B 5 N HE A e oE Trade and other payables 37 920,914 123,269
&= Borrowings 555 2,382,000 973,000
3,302,914 1,096,269
e s Total liabilities 4,829,914 2,971,269
BEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 10,583,749 8,282,165
REFERE Net current liabilities (1,194,953) (92,040)
BEERABAR Total assets less current liabilities 7,280,835 7,185,896

BER 551612364 B MMt Rk E M B mR VAL S
The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BE R B HiE

Director: Wu Guang Quan Director: You Lei

F140E3BAEMNBBREREN T AF=A -+ RAKEFTSHME - WHUATEEKRESE -
The financial statements on page 140 to 364 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and
were signed on its behalf.
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-T—WNF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—F-mE =F—=

2014 2013

st AR¥FT AR Tr

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

(&E5))

(Restated)

WA Revenue 6 34,426,424 37,262,006

SHE R Cost of sales 41 (28,786,784) (32,256,324)

EF Gross profit 5,639,640 5,005,682

HEEM Distribution costs 41 (1,762,722) (1,429,199)

THER Administrative expenses 41 (3,060,765) (2,683,244)

wEMEARBEENE Fair value gain on investment properties 12 15,990 56,942

HAugA Other income 39 700,892 1,130,778

Hith iz — F 58 Other gains - net 40 343,413 112,670

T Operating profit 1,876,448 2,193,629

RE WA Finance income 43 513,415 291,029

ELEZWN Finance costs 43 (1,286,786) (1,063,631)

B A RN — S HEE Finance costs — net (773,371) (772,602)
FAREZRAARSGEN Share of profit of investments accounted

B i T for using the equity method 15 471,701 526,373

MRETEH ANRRI Profit before income tax 1,574,778 1,947,400

Frisfif s Income tax expense 45 (316,461) (268,560)

AEERF Profit for the year 1,258,317 1,678,840
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Consolidated Income Statement

HEZT—WF+ZA=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE+-ZA=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E—-E —ET—=F
2014 2013
it AR T T AREFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Cc=0)
(Restated)
FEARER - Profit attributable to:
RATIERTAA Owners of the Company 641,949 1,030,898
FEE IR AR R A 25 Non-controlling interests 616,368 647,942
1,258,317 1,678,840
RARERFHFEAFA Earnings per share attributable to the
FEL B RR & F (A owners of the Company during the
AREITSR) year (RMB per share)
—EAR — basic 47 0.5530 0.9032
—EE — diluted 47 0.3357 0.5391

BEMTEE151 2364 B MM T B2 SR8 WS R AR S °

The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NE ZE—=F

2014 2013

Wit AR¥Fx AREF T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ds) Dividends 48 111,063 =
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T—WNF+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
st ARMFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(Fe&E5)
(Restated)
KEERF Profit for the year 1,258,317 1,678,840
Ht2EWES - Other comprehensive income:
TEEFHEZ B EE  Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
BT ERBENET Remeasurements of post-employment
RIBRFA R benefit obligations, gross of tax 85 (21,380) (3,870)
B ERBENET Remeasurements of post-employment
iR benefit obligations, tax 20 7,475 4,709
BAEMEERRE Y ER Gain on transfer of owner-occupied
EEoEs - REBRER property to investment property,
gross of tax - 11,773
BAMEEAREMER Gain on transfer of owner-occupied
BErRa R property to investment property, tax - (2,943)
HEA[fEER DR Items that may be subsequently reclassified
Bk E A to profit or loss
AENESREENAR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BEWZ @ AMBRFR financial assets, gross of tax - 10,864
AL ESREER Fair value gains on available-for-sale
AREEKE - BX financial assets, tax - (2,716)
ST E 2R Currency translation differences (447,160) (68,126)
BEAHEESRMEER Recycle of fair value gains on available-
AREEKE  AMBHF  for-sale financial assets, gross of tax (14,263) (5,430)
BonHEESMmEEN Recycle of fair value gains on available-
NREBERE BN for-sale financial assets, tax 3,566 1,357
FE(LEE = AT Share of an associate’s other
Hih2mies comprehensive income 31 (47) (325)
B[Ol e (h B A ) Recycle of share of an associate’s
Hith 2 E Y other comprehensive income 31 12,098 =
FREMEEKER Other comprehensive income
(HIBRBIRR) for the year, net of tax (459,711) (54,707)
FRAEZEA KRG Total comprehensive income
(FOBRFEFR) for the year, net of tax 798,606 1,624,133
FEth - Attributable to:
—RARESEEA — Owners of the Company 257,925 987,635
— IEIRRR AR R AE RS - Non-controlling interests 540,681 636,498
FRAZEA R Total comprehensive income
for the year 798,606 1,624,133

BEFH 15612364 A MM it Ra% T4 6 MG MR MNMAR D

The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TEEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZT—WF+ZA=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

EOREREEAELR
Attributable to owners of the company
XARB
ThkES FER
Perpetual REER
& BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfi AIRHE Non- hEs
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
NEBTT ARBTL  ARETT AREFT AREFI AREFT ARETT ARHTT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000 ~ RMB000  AMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
158 Group
R-E-zE-A-ANEH Balance as at 1 January 2013
(MEHZH) (as previously reported) 1,110632 1,294,633 2,781,674 (380,075) 2,762,828 7,569,692 3,989,077 11,558,769
ARERITERARNY 2 Effect of business combination under
common control - - - 849,211 (580,056) 269,155 320,844 589,999
RZZ-Z%-A-BMEE Balance as at 1 January 2013,
&Ej| as restated 1,110632 1,294,633 2,781,674 469,136 2,182,772 7838847 4309921 12,148,768
2EkE Comprehensive income
RERE Profitfor the year - - - - 1030898 1030898 647942 1678840
Ath2ENE Other comprehensive income e - - (43,263) - (43263 (11444 (B4707)
2EANE Total comprehensive income = = = (43,263) 1,030,898 987,635 636,498 1,624,133
HEREEANRS Transactions with owners
HEIRRERRNS S Transactions with non-controlling interests - - - (10,387) - (10,387) (38,079 (48,466)
EBe R AREEERRE Share of reserves of an associate arising from
BaRSmELNGEE it transactions with non-controling interests - - - (1129 - (t129) - (1129
KEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - 41438 41438
HENBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - - - (280100 (23010)
R RERTE Capital contributed by non-controling interests = = = = = - 13912 123912
REEfEE Appropriation to other reserves - - - 24,083 (24,083) - - -
ZT-=%ke Dividends for 2013 - - - - - - (11540)  (77540)
HERBEANRAAE Total transactions with owners - - - (3,601) (24083 (27,684) 26,721 (963)
RZE-=F+-B=1-HH Balance as at 31 December 2013,
g LE) as restated 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 42212 3189587 8,798,798 4973140 13,771,938
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REERSBXR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZZT—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

ARAREREARS
Attributable to owners of the company

XARB

aRES FER

Perpetual RRER
B&  BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfi AIRNE Non- hEs
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity

i NERTT ARBTT  ARETL ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETL  ARET

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
R-B-MmE—A—AfEe: Balance as at 1 January 2014,
FEL ]| as restated 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 422272 3189587 8,798,798 4,973,140 13,771,938
2EHE Comprehensive income
TERRR Profit for the year - - - - G494 641949 616368 1,208,317
Hfp2EdE Other comprehensive income - - - (384024 - (384024 (5687)  (49.THM)
2EEKR Total comprehensive income - - - (384,024) 641,949 257,925 540,681 798,606
HERBEANRS Transactions with owners
HFARRREENR S Transactions with non-controling interests ~ 31(a) - - - 2907121 - 2007121 3023965  5931,086
AlkEE Merger reserve 31(b) - - - (2320979 - (2320979 - (2320979
EEBEDTREEAR  Share of reserves of an associate arising
FRERRAMELN from s transactions with
FafE non-controlling interests 15(a) - - - (20813 - (20813 - (20813
LEHEAE Disposals of subsidiaries 49 - - - = = = (1,413) (1413)
FERRRERTA Capital contributed by non-contraling
interests = = = = 5 = 60,267 60,267
WEERBAA Acquisition of subsidiaries 52 - - - - = - 272660 272,660
RREEE Appropriation to other reserves 31 - - - 52,012 (52,212) - - -
“E-TERE Dividends for 2014 - - - - - - (101,839) (101,839)
RERREANRZAH Total transactions with owners - - - 617,541 (62,212) 566,329 3253640 3,818,969
RZE-RE Balance as at 31 December 2014
TZA=T-AMER 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 655,789 3,779,324 9,622,052 8,767,461 18,389,513

BEME 151 2364 B T R FiR A MIBHRRNEX D -
The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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GERTRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZT—WF+ZA=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
Hat ARBFIT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(gE5)
(Restated)
LETHELNESRE  Cash flows from operating activities
REXBELNRS Cash generated from operations 49 2,654,521 2,181,368
2FE Interest paid (1,176,196) (1,020,994)
BFEH Income tax paid (278,887) (203,056)
EEEHEANIESFEE  Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,199,438 957,318
RETHELEMNEEMRE  Cash flows from investing activities
R TIRIE A TR Payment for the additions of
construction-in-progress (1,845,472) (1,442,871)
HBEYE  BEIKRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment 11 (700,827) (486,684)
BE A Purchase of land use rights 7 (45,870) (234,899)
BEERTEE Purchase of intangible assets 10 (39,669) (39,218)
HibIEREEE Payment for the additions of

ANV R other non-current assets (220,322) (145,632)
g 1E0) =pNCI Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of

MR ENR S cash acquired = (167,514)
U BE T B N Bl PSR Proceeds from acquisition of subsidiaries,

HBREMES net of cash paid 52 2,705,087 =
[RIEEE N R EE Capital injection to associates (128,510) (8,890)
MEEEETE Capital injection to joint ventures 15(b) (8,636) (25,904)
HERBARK Cash inflow/(outflow) from disposals of

BemA/ (Rd) subsidiaries 49(e) 598 (7,979)
@B UEE —RH B ATH  Release of guarantee deposits for

REEES acquisition of a subsidiary - 216,618
R 7P/ A R FEAT 3B Prepayment for the establishment of

subsidiaries - (6,192)
W RE R B A RIFE kI8 Prepayment for the acquisition of

subsidiaries - (1,876,460)
BENHIESHEE Purchase of available-for-sale

financial assets 19 (6,600) (14,891)
HEWE - BB MRE Proceeds from disposals of

FriSaua property, plant and equipment 49(b) 66,428 11,228

HEREMEMSHRIE Proceeds from disposals of

investment properties 92 29,007
B & B TS 5UE Proceeds from disposals of

intangible assets 818 69
HEAHEESREE Proceeds from disposals of

Frf5 508 available-for-sale financial assets 49(d) 54,040 50,035
HESSPEMESIIE Proceeds from disposals of joint venture 49(c) 213 151,863
U AT A8 Rh Government grants received 393,775 309,406
B UF B Interest received 107,363 80,400
BT B Loans to related parties (1,121,861) (104,772)
B EEER Repayments of loan from related parties 71,027 235,141
B YRS Dividends received 207,591 397,549
IRIBIERAR K Payment for environmental

restoration costs - (28,780)
BEFRDFTAREFE Net cash used in investing activities (510,735) (3,109,370)
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GEBREHRER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZZT—NF+ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2014

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EZ-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
st ARETFIT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(g&E5)
(Restated)
RMEEHELNRELRE  Cash flows from financing activities
RITIEFRFTIS FRIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 17,727,226 19,120,237
BEPBITER Repayments of bank borrowings (20,421,279) (15,569,537)
E2 AR =R Borrowings from related parties 405,032 995,203
m A e 7 (BB 1A X Repayments of borrowings from
related parties (363,899) (1,440,664)
FEPEAR IR R HE 2R 1A Capital contribution to subsidiaries from
MEBARNEE non-controlling interests 49(a) 60,267 123,912
IR T 0B A B FERE AR Dividends paid to non-controlling
i R A AR B interests of subsidiaries (48,569) (81,348)
HIZEIR R AR S RERS A2 5 Transactions with non-controlling interests 1,730,096 (48,466)
BMEEH(FIA) EEH  Net cash (used in)/generated from
H& 55 financing activities (911,126) 3,099,337
HeRRSEEYHN Net (decrease)/increase in
(R2),/#inFE cash and cash equivalents (222,423) 947,285
FUNERERELSEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 5,076,449 4,196,028
SN R ZHE Currency translation differences (25,416) (66,864)
FROES RIRLEBEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,828,610 5,076,449

BEMIEE151 2364 E MM T AR E R A M MERNMEKE S -
The accompanying notes on page 151 to 364 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

—REHR
THRBRZERRDERAR([AAR]])
RIEPEARILMBE([FE )R
MERRAR EROEBTEHERX S
BRARERET o

RZE—=F+—A—H ' Ax2aWB
RAREMEFROHBERAR(NXRED
RUEREE AT ER D RIFI L HIE
BUEEGSE REARXEMEBALE
T E1T M B 3 #9433,129,000 & AP I 19
([ZEXBERS]) - BALER RN
EATIMERAT

@ HMEBLERI(EE)ABRAD
A P BEBEEELERBR AT
EESNBEARBFENLEXR
EWMEFAERAAN(NLEXRE])
T0% AR - K

) HRURBRBIERESEARAD
ARKBEHREEEERAA
RANKBREMETFEARAQA
(TRCEPR S 1) 40% I Az « &

© BEBHLAREREEEER
ARBENREXFUETHR
DA (TRERS |) 0% B AR
%R

d BEEFBEMERMERERE
RAB(THAMEIER ) RHBHzE
ARG R 2B (TR
FENLEBTMAETARAA
(TEBXEF ) 2ERARES
K

@  BEREFMBEERRFHRIFEE
BRIPMAEEFERAB (R
YHEF )2 EBAARES

GENERAL INFORMATION
AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was established as a joint stock limited company in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 1 November 2013, Tianma Micro-electronics Co.
Ltd. (“Tianma”), a subsidiary of the Company entered
into five separate framework agreements for acquiring
the interests in the related companies in consideration
for which Tianma will issue and allot approximately
433,129,000 A Shares to the related selling parties
(“Tianma Transactions”). The related selling parties and
the interests in the related companies are as follows:

(a) Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (“ E/&
RIL(EE)ERATF”), Shanghai State-owned
Assets Company Limited (“ /B BEERLLH
[EA&]") and Shanghai Optical Communications
Corporation (“_E/&} @A 7]") in relation to the
acquisition of 70% equity interest in Shanghai
Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Tianma”); and

(b) Chengdu Industrial Group Company Limited (“A%
HIEKEEBAMR AR and Chengdu Gaoxin
Investment Group Company Limited (“AER =T
KEEB AR AR in relation to the acquisition
of 40% equity interest in Chengdu Tianma
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Tianma”);
and

(@) Hubei Province Technology Investment Group
Company Limited (“HitERIFRKREEEERE A
a]”") in relation to the acquisition of 90% equity
interest in Wuhan Tianma Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Wuhan Tianma”); and

(d) AVIC International Holding Corporation (7 B #7122
RATE BRI AR A F) (“AVIC International”) and
AVIC International Shenzhen Company Limited
(P BIM = =R I B R A F]) (“AVIC Shenzhen”)
in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Shanghai AVIC Opto-electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Opto-electronics”); and

(e) AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Shenzhen AVIC Opto-electronics Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Opto-electronics”), respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

152

—RER (2)
RZFBE—=F+—A—H RKFEEEZ
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 1 November 2013, the board of directors of Tianma
proposed to issue not more than approximately
149,772,000 new A Shares to not more than ten
investors in cash at a placing price not lower than
RMB12.69 per share after the completion of the Tianma
Transactions for raising additional funds ancillary to the
Tianma Transactions.

On 22 August 2014, the board of directors of Tianma
announced to adjust the issue and placing price from
RMB12.69 to RMB12.59, and the total consideration
shares was adjusted from approximately 433,129,000 A
Shares to approximately 436,569,000 A Shares, and the
maximum number of placing shares was adjusted from
approximately 144,376,000 A Shares to approximately
140,239,000 A Shares.

Prior to the Tianma Transactions, Tianma held 30%
equity interests in Shanghai Tianma, 30% equity interests
in Chengdu Tianma, 10% equity interests in Wuhan
Tianma. Shanghai Opto-electronics and Shenzhen Opto-
electronics were held as to 51% equity interests by AVIC
Shenzhen and 49% equity interests by AVIC International
respectively. Tianma, the Company, AVIC Shenzhen and
AVIC International are under common control of Aviation
Industry Corporation of China (“PEfZE T2 E£E QR
(“Aviation Industry”).

As Tianma could control Shanghai Tianma and Chengdu
Tianma through the agreements with other shareholders,
Tianma and the Company accounted for investments in
Shanghai Tianma and Chengdu Tianma as subsidiaries
before the Tianma Transactions. Tianma and the
Company accounted for investment in Wuhan Tianma as
an associate before the Tianma Transactions.

The Tianma Transactions was completed on 28 August
2014. Upon completion of the Tianma Transactions,
Shanghai Tianma, Wuhan Tianma, Shanghai Opto-
electronics and Shenzhen Opto-electronics became
wholly owned subsidiaries of Tianma, while Tianma held
70% equity interests in Chengdu Tianma.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

For accounting purpose, the acquisitions of equity
interests in Shanghai Tianma and Chengdu Tianma
was accounted for as transactions with non-controlling
interests, the acquisition of equity interests in Wuhan
Tianma was accounted for as business combination
involving entities not under common control, and the
acquisitions of equity interests in Shanghai Opto-
electronics and Shenzhen Opto-electronics was treated
as business combinations involving entities under
common control and accounted for on the basis of
merger accounting.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed
circuit boards and watches, property development,
international engineering, trading and logistic services
and development mining resources in the PRC.

The office address of the Company is 25/F, Hangdu
Building, CATIC Zone, Shennan Road Central, Futian
District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue on 20 March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and IFRS Interpretations
Committee applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The
accounting policies and bases adopted in the preparation
of these financial statements differ from those used in the
statutory accounts of the Group which are prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises (2006) of the People’s Republic of China
(“CAS 2006”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.
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REEXE %) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BETBOR MR EE) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures:

(a) AEBER=-ZE—HFE—H—H (a)  The following standards have been adopted by
k2 & F s E I BUF R & XA the Group for the first time for the financial year
TR beginning on or after 1 January 2014:

o BIFR &t RIFE325% [ £ &l . Amendment to 1AS 32, ‘Financial
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instruments: Presentation’ on offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. This
amendment clarifies that the right of set-off
must not be contingent on a future event.
It must also be legally enforceable for all
counterparties in the normal course of
business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment
also considers settlement mechanisms. The
adoption of this newly effective standard
does not have significant impact to the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment
of assets’, on the recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets. This
amendment removed certain disclosures of
the recoverable amount of cash generating
units (“CGUs”) which had been included
in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13. The
adoption of this newly effective standard
does not have significant impact to the
Group.

Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ on the novation of
derivatives and the continuation of hedge
accounting. This amendment considers
legislative changes to ‘over-the-counter’
derivatives and the establishment of central
counterparties. Under IAS 39 novation
of derivatives to central counterparties
would result in discontinuance of hedge
accounting. The amendment provides relief
from discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a hedging instrument meets
specified criteria. The Group has applied
the amendment and there has been no
significant impact on the Group financial
statements as a result.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(@)

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting
for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability
is within the scope of IAS 37 ‘Provisions’.
The interpretation addresses what the
obligating event is that gives rise to the
payment a levy and when a liability should
be recognised. The Group is not currently
subjected to significant levies so the impact
on the Group is not material.

Other standards, amendments and
interpretations which are effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
are not material to the Group.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation as from the
Company’s first financial year commencing
on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance
with section 358 of that Ordinance. The
Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.

FRERRIERBRAERAT 2014FEHE 155



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. RBEXE &) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) AREHBWTERZEHEMWATES EM (b) The following new standards, amendments and
BR-ZZT—NF—A— BB/ interpretations have been issued but are not
T EENARERBFTEL effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
BT R2E - 2014, and have not been early adopted by the
Group.
RIATHER 2%

PR B s i 5 AR 1457 BR B R IEAR B
IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”
BRI RE ERIFE 1SRN KRB S SR LSRN ST RIBNERT
Amendment to IFRS 11 on accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations

Bl

B RRER]

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 on clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

B gt ERIE 169 RBEIR @5 ERIFE 41 REANRE - £EMEDAIER]

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 on Agriculture: bearer plants

BB B 15 R 5 AR BRI ZE 105 SR BIRR & 5t 2RI S5 28557 B pA 1 & & B HL Bk 8 8 A
&g AR ENEELESIRANERT

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 on sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture

BUPR & 5 2R SE27 5% B A U8 L B IS TR BV A s A V1B R T

Amendment to IAS 27 on equity method in separate financial statements

B B IS iR 5 RIS [N E R ERMB EE RE R IELE XK 1K
1&al

Amendment to IFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’

BIFR A ISR E ERIE 7R @M T A : HEE IHEFT

Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’

RerERIE 1995 R B REF IEET

Amendment to IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’

@ s R 3458 R HABT IS RS IBIBET

Amendment to IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’

BURR B 75 i 5 22 RSB 155R% [ R A B P & KR Ueas

IFRS15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

B B TS SR 5 RISk @B T A

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) (continued)
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, except the following set out below:

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
deals with revenue recognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users
of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity’s contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains
control of a good or service and thus has the
ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits
from the good or service. The standard replaces
IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction
contracts’ and related interpretations. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 and earlier application
is permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of
IFRS 15.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected
to have a material impact on the Group.

Application of merger accounting

The acquisitions of equity interests in Shanghai Opto-
electronics and Shenzhen Opto-electronics disclosed
in Note 1 were regarded as a business combination
involving entities under common control, since the
Company, Shanghai Opto-electronics and Shenzhen
Opto-electronics were all under common control of
Aviation Industry.

Thus, the financial information of Shanghai Opto-
electronics and Shenzhen Opto-electronics has been
consolidated into the financial statements of the
Company under merger accounting in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” (“AG
5”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). No adjustment has
been made to the net assets or net profit to achieve
consistency of accounting policies as a consequence of
the combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Application of merger accounting (continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting,
as prescribed in AG 5. These consolidated financial
statements include the balance sheets, the income
statements, the statements of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows of the acquired companies as if they had
been in existence throughout the year, or since its date
of incorporation. Comparative figures as at 31 December
2013 and for the year then ended have been presented
on the same basis.

Accordingly, the financial information of the comparative
period presented in this consolidated financial information
has been restated.

The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from
the common control combination on the consolidated
balance sheets:

The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2014:

RitRE
¥ ENSE
Amounts LBXETR
without FIIXEFHEH
taken into Merger of
consideration Shanghai
of the effect Opto-electronics
of merger  and Shenzhen g &=l
accounting Opto-electronics Adjustments As stated
ARETFT ARET7 AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(a)
ErBHEE Non-current assets 27,949,197 2,042,837 (2,262) 29,989,772
mEEE Current assets 27,721,917 2,103,466 (2,047,893) 27,783,490
BEE Total assets 55,677,114 4,146,303 (2,050,155) 57,773,262
FrBaE Non-current liabilities 12,052,562 835,727 - 12,888,289
RHaE Current liabilities 26,388,070 2,155,283 (2,047,893) 26,495,460
Bak Total liabilities 38,440,632 2,991,010 (2,047,893) 39,383,749
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2. wmEEEE) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
EREE(E) Application of merger accounting (continued)
R-ZE—mE+-_A=+—0HEEE The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
EBEER: (8) 2014: (continued)

Rtk EH
BHYENSE

Amounts LERXETR
without RIIXEFHNEH

taken into Merger of
consideration Shanghai
of the effect Opto-electronics
of merger  and Shenzhen RE &E5|
accounting Opto-electronics Adjustments As stated
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(a)
BRA Share capital 1,110,632 1,880,000 (1,880,000) 1,110,632
R RE Share premium 1,294,633 - - 1,294,633
KRB B EH Perpetual subordinated
convertible securities 2,781,674 - - 2,781,674
HihfEE Other reserves 200,885 (114,070) 568,974 655,789
ROBEAE Retained eamings 3,937,207 (612,899) 455,016 3,779,324
ANTNEREA AEERA Capital and reserves attributable
LiEtE to owners of the Company 9,325,031 1,153,031 (856,010) 9,622,052
SRR IR R Non-controlling interests 7,911,451 2,262 853,748 8,767,461
BrEn Total equity 17,236,482 1,155,293 (2,262) 18,389,513
BREENEE Total equity and liabilties 55,677,114 4,146,303 (2,050,155) 57,773,262
MENAE A Net current assets 1,339,847 (51,817) - 1,288,030
BEERTHER Total assets less current liabilities 29,289,044 1,991,020 (2,262) 31,277,802
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2. HmEEESE) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
EREE(E) Application of merger accounting (continued)
RZEBE—=F+_A=+—HWELE The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
EAER: 2013:

Kt RAH

SHYENEE
Amounts HEXETR
without RIIXEFHAH

taken into Merger of

consideration Shanghai

of the effect ~ Opto-electronics
of merger and Shenzhen e FEY]
accounting  Opto-electronics Adjustments Restated
AREFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(@)

ERPEE Non-current assets 22,758,020 2,433,549 12,988 25,204,557
TMEEE Current assets 24,243,315 1,869,139 (481,611) 25,630,843
BEE Total assets 47,001,335 4,302,688 (468,623) 50,835,400
EnBa Non-current liabilities 8,421,561 1,178,873 11,522 9,611,956
mEEE Current liabilities 25,862,154 2,061,183 (471,831) 27,451,506
BafE Total liabilities 34,283,715 3,240,056 (460,309) 37,063,462

160 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. wHEEEE) 2
FEREstEs (&)
R-F—=F+_A=1+—HWEKEEE
ERER: (B)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Application of merger accounting (continued)

The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2013: (continued)

Rt REH
eHTENEE
Amounts FERETR
without RYIXEFHEH
taken into Merger of
consideration Shanghai
of the effect  Opto-electronics
of merger and Shenzhen ki ]
accounting  Opto-electronics Adjustments Restated
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(a)
BA Share capital 1,110,632 1,880,000 (1,880,000) 1,110,632
B s E Share premium 1,294,633 - - 1,294,633
KRR AR ES Perpetual subordinated
convertible securities 2,781,674 - - 2,781,674
Bt Other reserves (404,201) (68,352) 894,825 422,272
AAEFE Retained earnings 3,535,079 (749,632) 404,140 3,189,587
ANT)EREA ANEERA Capital and reserves attributable
NkE to owners of the Company 8,317,817 1,062,016 (581,085) 8,798,798
SRR R Non-controling interests 4,399,803 616 572,721 4,973,140
MR Total equity 12,717,620 1,062,632 (8,314) 18,771,938
BREENEE Total equity and liabilities 47,001,335 4,302,688 (468,623) 50,835,400
RHFEaRG Net current liabilities (1,618,839 (192,044) (9,780) (1,820,663
BEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 21,139,181 2,241,505 3,208 23,383,894
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2. RBLEE &) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
EREE(E) Application of merger accounting (continued)
LT ARRIEHIEHEEE WS RTE The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from
B RHER the common control combination on the consolidated

income statement:

HE-Z-—WFE+-_A=+—BILFE The consolidated income statement for the year ended
HERE MK ¢ 31 December 2014:
REtREH
EHYENSE

Amounts HBXETR
without RIIKEFHE B

taken into Merger of
consideration Shanghai
of the effect Opto-electronics
of merger  and Shenzhen Fif K&
accounting Opto-electronics Adjustments As stated
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(a)
WA Revenue 30,509,522 5,101,686 (1,184,784) 34,426,424
KEERF Profit for the year 1,121,237 138,369 (1,289) 1,258,317
HEZ—=F+-_A=+—HLHFE The consolidated income statement for the year ended
MERE Mk 31 December 2013:
Rt Rabt
SHTENEE
Amounts HEXETR
without FIIXEFHE G
taken into Merger of
consideration Shanghai
of the effect  Opto-electronics
of merger and Shenzhen e BES
accounting  Opto-electronics Adjustments Restated
AEETT ANEETT AEETT ANEETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
(@)
'ON Revenue 33,437,638 4,624,811 (800,493) 37,262,006
AEREF Profit for the year 1,164,675 520,036 (5,871) 1,678,840
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2. wHEEEE)
FEREstEs (&)
AT RARZHGHAGEARERER
FREEF R -

HE_Z—NEF+_A=+—HBILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Application of merger accounting (continued)

The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from
the common control combination on the consolidated
statement of cash flows:

The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year

WirEIREMER ¢ ended 31 December 2014:
RatRabt
BtENSHE
Amounts
without
taken into aptest
consideration -4
of the effect Impact of
of merger merger KE|
accounting accounting As stated
AR¥FTT AR¥FT ARHFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEEETSIREFE  Net cash generated from
operating activities 788,810 410,628 1,199,438
REEBFTAIREF5  Net cash used in investing
activities (111,569) (399,166) (510,735)
BEEBFTAIAS)FE  Net cash used in financing
activities (908,561) (2,565) (911,126)
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RBLEE &) BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
ERastEst(42) Application of merger accounting (continued)
BE—_E—=%+—_A=+—HBI&EE The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
MEZEEHERER ended 31 December 2013:
Ret ket
RN 7ok
Amounts
without
taken into GPFEE
consideration EnfoZt
of the effect Impact of
of merger merger KE5
accounting accounting Restated
ARETT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2B EEFTISAMIR S F 58 Net cash generated from
operating activities 129,618 827,700 957,318
KEETHTAEIE®F%  Net cash used in investing
activities (2,948,886) (160,484) (8,109,370)
BB EB TS Net cash generated from
e F8 financing activities 3,618,174 (518,837) 3,099,337

(a)

EBRERSEFEBRARE
BRERAHFEMELOAE - =
BOAREMBHRERA HEHERE
T BAREEAKE - LBXE
FRARICEF2HRNERAR
AIRR 5 - Y R B &R P 1E
HE AR 2 -

AR TR R A BH R A2
B BRE N H Y AR
o35 4 2 0 B R 3
BRI EARE -

The above adjustments represent adjustments
to eliminate the share capital of the combining
entities against the investment cost. The
difference has been made to the merger reserve
in the consolidated financial statements, and
the adjustments to eliminate the intercompany
transactions, receivable and payable balances
between the Group, Shanghai Opto-electronics
and Shenzhen Opto-electronics were eliminated.

No other significant adjustments were made to
the net assets and net profit or loss of any entities
or businesses as a result of the common control
combination to achieve consistency of accounting
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

3.1 Consolidation
3.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Except for
business combinations applying business
combination involving entities under
common control as detailed in Note
3.1.1(a) below, subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

De-facto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the
Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Group the power to
govern the financial and operating policies,
etc.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(@)
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Business combination involving
entities under common control

For business combination involving
entities under common control, the
consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if
they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to
the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement
includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where
there is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control
combination.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

Business combination involving
entities under common control
(continued)

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies
is adopted by those entities. All
intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or
businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to
be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
IAS39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.
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control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Consolidation (continued)
3.1.2 Separate financial statements

3.1.3

170 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

3.1.83 Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition
profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit/(loss) of investment
accounted for using the equity method’ in
the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to
the extent of unrelated investor’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution arising in

investments in associates are recognised in
the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

3.1.4 Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as of 1 January 2012. Under
IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive
income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

3.2

3.3

Foreign currency translation

(a)

®)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
related to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(®)

(c)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Changes in the fair value of debt
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in
profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(@)

Group companies (continued)

- Income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

— All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency transaction
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
transaction differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

is provided using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives, after deducting the

estimated residual value. The estimated useful

lives are as follows:

Land use rights in Japan Permanent
and Malaysia

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Motor vehicles

Computer and electronic
equipment

Mining structures*®

Other equipment

10 to 50 years
3 to 5 years

5 to 30 years
5to 18 years
3 to 10 years

10 to 20 years
5 to 13 years

Mining structures comprise the main and
auxiliary mine shafts and underground tunnels.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’
in the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the income statement as part
of a valuation gain or loss in ‘fair value gain on
investment properties’.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be
made when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by:

(@) commencement of owner-occupation,
for a transfer from investment property to
owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a
view to sale, for a transfer from investment
property to properties under development;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from owner-occupied property to
investment property; or
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Investment property (continued)
commencement of an operating lease
to another party, for a transfer from
inventories to investment property.

(d)

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, which is measured as fair

value,

(@)

Any resulting decrease in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any resulting increase in the carrying

DIRA TN R ERIE amount is treated as follows:
(i) EIEINER N ED () To the extent that the increase
LRI ZMERER reverses a previous impairment

(i

B R E B 1R - SR AN
ERDER - N8
SmERNEEIL T

loss for that property, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount recognised in profit or

BEHEKEmME loss does not exceed the amount
[B] 18 & 7£ I & & 72 needed to restore the carrying
HEEEER T amount to the carrying amount that
EEmMEDER would have been determined (net

FER)NTHE -

1 85 T B 1 38
4 87 H 2 R
IR - RAERS
BTN E B
B REBHER
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of depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised.

Any remaining part of the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and increases the
revaluation surplus within equity.
On subsequent disposal of the
investment property, the revaluation

Em N EGRRA surplus included in equity may be
EHEEREBEF o transferred to retained earnings. The
HEMBRERE transfer from revaluation surplus

REHFBALHE
AL -

KRR BEFENRENFEER
RERME  ZOERORBEA
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to retained earnings is not made
through profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment property
carried at fair value to owner-occupied
property, the property’s deemed cost is its
fair value at the date of change in use.
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Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of
the CGUs, or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and
is not subsequently reversed.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Intangible assets (continued)

(®)

(c)

(@)

(e)

Trademarks and licenses

Separately acquired trademarks and
licences are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
and licences have an infinite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss. Trademarks and licenses
impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value
of Trademarks and licenses are compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and
is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes
are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful lives of
5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis.

Cost associated with developing
or maintaining computer software
programmes which do not generate
economic benefits are recognised as
expense as incurred.

Patents

Patents are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 10-
25 years.

Maritime rights of use

Maritime rights of use are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of 10-50
years.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Intangible assets (continued)

U Contractual customer relationships
Contractual customer relationships
acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method from 5-10 years
over the expected life of the customer
relationship.

Exploration and extraction rights

Exploration and extraction rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of exploration and
extraction rights is calculated on unit of production
method basis.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no
individual ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the rights to use certain land and the
premiums paid for such rights are recorded as
land use rights.

Land use rights which are held for self-use are
stated at cost and amortised over the remaining
period of the leases on a straight-line basis.

Land use rights which are held for development
for sale are inventories and measured at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Land use rights are
transferred to properties under development upon
commencement of development.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Construction-in-progress
Construction-in-progress represents plant and
other property, machinery and equipment under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes
the costs of construction, the costs of plant and
machinery, and interest charges arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during
the period of construction or installation and
testing. When the assets concerned are available
for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policies as stated above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not
ready to use — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

3.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivable
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Financial assets (continued)
3.11.1 Classification (continued)

(@)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period, these are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and other
receivables comprise ‘trade and
other receivables’ and ‘pledged
bank deposit’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Note 24 and Note 27 and Note 28).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment
securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

PRBERERRAERAT 2014FEHRE 185



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

186

TESTTBERBRER)

3.12

3.13

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

ST BIKH

35 7 1 B V& A] 58 B 1T R HE A
AR SH PR & B MBI B R &
EREERBABERARKEE

B AEREELEBBEMRER
HOMFEREEABRAZ
|- AIEARFIAITHENTF
RERARKEMH RN A EEZHB
BHRARBBRED  EHEBX
WER - ARIHARRREF A
BIRBBIEATT

ERMEERE

@  KEEHKAS R EE
A& BN E S H R AT
MEAFERBEEREDR
R-—BHEREEXIRES
MEELRBE -EEF
EREREERR/NT
HMREERBLE—RXZ
REMHBEHBRRBE(E
KREHR]) > MR (KX
F)EREREZIARZA
TREEMNMGBITARARAS
MEBRHTER LG E
st FRSRMEEXS
BEEMARNA HBRBER
ELRERE

MEREABEEBAX
—HEBALEHBREARY
B  BHOFREEE
MEBHARE  WEBARE
WEXNETEMHTKE
Mo UERAABREESEN
BEBRAETREBR SR
BEHBAIFENRED - fl
MRREREE KR E
EXEREREIEIRR ©

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

3.13

Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13
@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13
(b)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13
()

(@)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as held-to-maturity
financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payment and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
position intention and ability to hold it
maturity. If the Group were to sell other
than an insignificant amount of held-
to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified
as available for sale. Held-to-maturity
financial assets are included in non-current
assets, except for those with maturities
less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as
current assets.

Assets classified as derivative financial
instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The Group’s
derivative instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
in the fair value of the Group’s derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Trading derivative are defined
as a current asset and liability.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to
the sale proceeds of properties in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expense and the anticipated costs to completion,
or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises land
use rights, construction costs, capitalised finance
costs and professional fees incurred during the
development period of a normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

If a property under development becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment. Property under development for
future use as investment property is classified as
investment property under construction.

Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to owners of the Company
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received (net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects) is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s owners.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities
Perpetual convertible securities issued by
the Group gives the right to the holder to
convert those securities into a fixed number
of the Company’s shares at any time at a
fixed exercise price per share. The perpetual
convertible securities have no maturity date and
are not redeemable. These securities are equity
instruments.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition and construction of a property,
plant and equipment that needs a substantially
long period of time of acquisition and construction
for its intended use commence to be capitalised
and recorded as part of the cost of the asset
when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs have been incurred, and the activities
relating to the acquisition and construction that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when the asset under
acquisition or construction becomes ready for
its intended use, the borrowing costs incurred
thereafter are recognised in income statement.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
when the acquisition or construction of a property,
plant and equipment is interrupted abnormally and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, until
the acquisition or construction is resumed.

For a borrowing that is specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amounts of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are the
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on
the temporary investment of these borrowings.

For the other borrowings related to acquisition,
construction and production of a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation shall be the lower of the actual
borrowing costs incurred and the amount
of qualifying asset not financed by specific
borrowings multiplying capitalisation rate. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average interest
rate of these borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.283 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised when incurred.
When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the
contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that they have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is determined based on the completion
of a physical proportion of the contract work by
reference to the cost incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated
budgeted cost for each contract.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses).
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(®)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit
The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and
defined contribution pension plans and post-
employment medical plans.

(@ Pension obligations
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as
age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit (continued)

@

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of the defined
benefit plan, recognised in the income
statement in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an
asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised
immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost
is included in employee benefit expense in
the income statement.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contribution to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the
further payments is available.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Employee benefit (continued)

®)

()

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-
retirement healthcare benefits to their
retirees. The entitlement to these benefits
is usually conditional on the employee
remaining in service up to retirement age
and the completion of a minimum service
period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit
pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are
valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits and early retirement
benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (i) when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (i) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that
is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present
value.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26

Research and development

Research expenditures is recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on
development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use;

° management intends to complete the

intangible asset and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development can
be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development cost previously recognised
as an expense is not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.27

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties
and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods
Sale of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer. The customer has accepted the
products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Contract revenue
Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised by using the
“percentage of completion method” (Note
3.23).

(c) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties
leased out under an operating lease is
recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

(d) Services income
Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

3

FESTHEMEE)
3.28 WARR(E)

3.29

3.30

3.31

@ REKA
P B A T W BRI ) A
I HETE By R

IR 2.5 K

AR BRIk B B B IR B
EARRBIRERAE(ER) 8
B AR A S B N AR R A B 15 3R
RAERRAE -

BT HERE

2R A IR M AR E BT # B  A)
WE - MAKEAREETE AN
IR - BUF SRR RO RS IR
HAREERR -

B2 AR 7K B R RO RS A RE R E A
B WERBRBENKAEAMS
HARI7E e R P R o

BYE - BB MREBBOBF
MESIAFRR B AEERSBITHE
BERBETRA - WIREBEERN
BRI FERABERETT AKRER

PR
MBEERANBRED AGEN
FEARBEEBEBARERRE
BTENRAREERTIERN
SRR RZBARMIEH T E
R EH - RS HERE - B
BEREAOBBELARRHER
B R R P RRBRIAR K
=E R (AR ) pLHER R E
REAREREOFHRRER
ERT RS RATEEHATE -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.28

3.29

3.30

3.31

Revenue recognition (continued)

M Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders,
where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. After initial recognition,
an issuer of such a contract shall measure it at
the higher of the best estimate of the obligation
and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation calculated to
recognise the fee income earned on a straight line
basis over the life of the guarantee contract.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.32 Leases

@

Where the Group is the lessor

Finance lease

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset
to the lessee. At the commencement of
the lease term, the Group recognises the
minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group as a finance lease receivable and
records the unguaranteed residual value as
an asset at the same time. The difference
between (a) the aggregate of the minimum
lease payments and the unguaranteed
residual value and (b) their present value
(presented in the balance sheet as finance
lease receivable, net) is recognised as
unearned finance income. Minimum lease
payments are the payments over the lease
term that the lessee is or can be required
to make plus any residual value guaranteed
to the lessor by the lessee, or a party
related or unrelated to the lessee.

Unearned financial income is allocated to
each period during the lease term using
actuarial method that allocates rentals
between finance income and repayment of
capital in each accounting period in such a
way that finance income is recognised as
a constant periodic rate of return (implicit
effective interest rate) on the lessor’s net
investment in the lease. Lease agreements
for which the base rent is based on floating
interest rates are included in minimum
lease payments based on the floating
interest rate existing at the commencement
of the lease; any increase or decrease
in lease payments that result from
subsequent changes in floating interest rate
are contingent rentals and are recorded as
an increase or a decrease in lease revenue
in the period of the interest rate change.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.32 Leases (continued)
(a) Where the Group is the lessor (continued)

Operating lease
Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the Group are classified as
operating leases. Payments received
from lessees under operating leases (net
of any incentives grant to the lessee) are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

(b) Where the Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

(a)

()

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s activities are principally
conducted in RMB. Although majority
of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, the Group is still
subject to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which
are denominated in non-RMB, including
US Dollars (“USD”), European Dollars
(“EUR”), Kenia Shilling (“KES”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”), Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR”),
Arab Emir. Dirham (“AED”), Algerian Dinar
(“DZD”), Korean Won (“KRW”), Malaysian
Ringgit (“MYR”), Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”), India Rupee (“INR”), Singapore
Dollars (“SGD”), Confederation Helvetica
Franc (“CHF”), Uganda Shilling (“UGX”) etc.
The Group entered into forward contracts
to hedge certain the foreign exchange
risk. In addition, the conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the PRC
government.
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(a) TWHERERE) (a)  Market risk (continued)

(i) SNE JE e (48 ) (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
REBEINETENEE The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
EEREREBERSHEE currency denominated monetary assets
HEBREEST : and monetary liabilities at the respective

balance sheet dates are as follows:

—E-NmE —T—=F
t=A=t+-H +=A=t+—H

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
($EE5))
(Restated)

EE Assets
X7 UsD 3,440,509 3,153,001
BT EUR 1,656,007 809,725
EEELL INR 331,042 -
B JPY 285,880 121,603
BREELES KES 237,272 34,092
HEBREL LKR 165,323 404,341
Br] ) Kz 1) 25 28 49 R DzD 124,667 72,903
] Bk 2 36 7 49 AED 116,661 130,520
BE[E KRW 70,155 3,841
BT HKD 57,246 48,419
BRAEST MYR 49,944 18,452
N T SGD 31,860 4,228
EHAh Others 129,402 104,796

6,695,968 4,905,921
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BEREREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) TWHERERGE) (a)  Market risk (continued)
(i) ShESE [ (42 ) (i Foreign exchange risk (continued)
—E-NmEF —T—=
+=ZA=+-HB +ZA=+—-H
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E7))
(Restated)
=F Liabilities
ET uUsD 4,316,110 4,038,743
BL T EUR 2,059,530 1,313,888
S| JPY 549,530 462,682
HEBREL LKR 386,450 741,113
BERLES KES 372,536 54,302
¥ T SGD 226,687 23,494
BT HKD 219,295 257,395
o] By 2 26 iy 4 AED 153,943 169,493
Fr] 8 K2 1) 2 28 49 R DZD 129,411 61,964
BRAESE MYR 47,841 567
ENEEL INR 43,684 =
B2 [E KRW 571 1,037
Efh Others 34,356 28,531

8,539,944 7,153,209

TERBERIARELARBI
R T AR I THE 5% 0 88
RE D - AHRE D
EBEAIINETENEE
HE  YEFEMRSEHN
ERBEEHIMEAE -

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis on profit before tax of a 5%
increase in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year the end for the respective
changes in rate.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) SNEE R (4B ) (i Foreign exchange risk (continued)
—F-NFE —FT-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g E5)
(Restated)
HETTIERAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against USD
FEBRBRNR N Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 43,780 44,287
B TTIE R FAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against EUR
FEBRRDR 0 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 20,176 25,208
HHT B R E L fE R 5% appreciation in exchange rate
F{E5% against LKR
FEBRBRNR 0 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 11,056 16,839
K BEEXRAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against JPY
FEBRTRNR N Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 13,183 17,054
HATTERFAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against HKD
FERRNR 0 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 8,102 10,449
B3 [on] Bt 2 P iy 4 2R 5% appreciation in exchange rate
F{E5% against AED
FE R AN Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 1,864 1,949
HR R A MERER 5% appreciation in exchange rate
F{E5% against DZD
FERRTAN Increase/(Decrease) in the profit
Gk d) before tax for the year 237 (547)
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk of its A share investments in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange which are
classified on the consolidated balance
sheet as available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 19). The exposure of the price risk
of available-for-sale financial assets is not
material to the Group.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The table below summaries the impact of
changes in interest rate at 31 December
2014 with all other variables held at
constant on the Group’s profit for the year.

Fl=
Interest rate
EFH10% T #%10%
10% higher 10% lower
FERFCRL), /G
(Decrease)/increase
in profit for the year

ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(eE75) (G
(Restated) (Restated)
TFENFRE TR Borrowings at variable rates
REVERAS (1% ), 5t A (Charged)/credited to finance costs (49,555) 49,555

AEBBROFEKER
BAPAB FES3I EE o

The interest rates and terms of repayment
of borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 33.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with
initial term of over three months, restricted cash,
and trade and other receivables.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. None of
cash at bank, bank deposits and restricted cash
of the Group that were fully performing has been
renegotiated during the year.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The top 5 customers accounted for
more than 15% of the balance of trade and
other receivables as at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: 23%).

The Group normally grants credit terms of not
more than 1 year to existing customers without
collaterals. Aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 24. Management
makes periodic collective assessment as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements:

AEEHSER
Group Maximum exposure
—B-NE —T=F
2014 2013
AR®FT AEETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(18 5&751)
(Restated)

BEAESEBEBRINERR Credit risk exposure relating to off-

EERRE : balance sheet items:
B TS HEAR Financial guarantees

1,912,570 1,070,112

(c) RBEZEAR
FEBEFTEEBERARRE
VAR B H & @A AR B BIR
TEE(BEEHARYRITE
FBERCEEREERPDED
[z o

TREBEEEARTHEZAH
AHENDN  BAEBERAR
ANEITESREBEN RBEHE
HBAR -  ZRABRBENESER
BHIARRBARSRE - HNRRER
MFEIK - R+ @A AE
Hm SR B L AR A4S BR AR o

(c)

Liquidity risk

The board of directors of the Group manage the
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash to meet
the normal operating commitments and sourcing
adequate funding through banking credit facilities,
including short-term and long-term bank loans.

The table below analyses the Group’s and
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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BEEREREZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) HBESEARE) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
HME 122F 2555 BiB5E
Lessthan  Between1  Between 2 Over e
iyear and2years and 5 years 5 years Total
ARETLE ARETR AREFT AREFT  ARETZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
piN-3 | Group
R=F-ME+=B=+-H At 31 December 2014
B3 Borrowings 11,008,340 4,017,953 4,750,465  3477,2714 23,254,032
B S REMERNTE Trade and other payables
(TefEEeRAaRE) (excluded non-financial liabilities) 10,970,596 22,883 - - 10,993,479
HEbafk Other liabilities 670,427 50,078 166,905 3,886 891,296
BERANALE Principal amount of financial
guarantee contracts 809,609 70,000 731,340 301,621 1,912,570
@it Total 23458972 4,160914 5648710 3,782,781 37,051,377
INES 1526 2E5F iR E
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over Bzt
Tyear and2years  and 5 years 5 years Total
NEEFT  AREFT AREfT  AREFT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&5)) (&5)) (&&5)) (&&5)) (mE5))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
RZB-=#£+-B=+-0 At 31 December 2013
(S Borrowings 13,895,526 2,456,519 2,942,694 1,003,494 20,388,233
BAREMENTE Trade and other payables
(PefEFeRaR) (excluded non-financial liabilties) 8,788,398 44,871 - - 8833269
Eft3EnBak Other non-current liabilties 128,434 941,070 94,355 14209 1,178,068
FRERGNALE Principal amount of financial
guarantee contracts 345,130 70,000 352,960 302,022 1,070,112
@it Total 23,157,488 3,512,460 3,390,009 1,409,725 31,469,682
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2014. See Note 12 for disclosures of investment
properties that are measured at fair value.

-1 et =R Eh
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETE AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets

BN f2 BIEE B8 2550 Financial assets at fair value
ENemEE through profit or loss 4,242 - = 4,242
AtHEEREE Available-for-sale financial assets - - 257,940 257,940
BmEE Total assets 4,242 - 257,940 262,182
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31

BEEERBE- December 2013.
£ F-H E=H At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ANEETT ANEETT ARETT ARETZT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
RAABEFE BB Financial liabilties at fair value
THRNETRmEE through profit or loss - 5,405 - 5,405
ARHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 26,958 - 264,132 291,090
HMEE Total assets 26,958 5,405 264,132 296,495
ERE—REE KT BNE There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
B o during the year.
() Z—peE T A () Financial instruments in Level 1

REBMSEENEHT
AMAnBEREERER
MTMIZHREE - FR™
15 E R 8 5 & E B i R
S XBE - BREA
TEEE  RERBHR
ERBERSHRENTIS -
A B W E R E MR A
FEEETHERMER
7 AREMBEMEE
FTRMMSERE/ERE
BE ZEILAINAE—
R B-—RABENIA
BERRIIKLEBESFR
ZF LR R R LA
R E -

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1. Instruments included
in Level 1 comprise equity investments
in listed A shares of companies listed on
Shenzhen or Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments;

o The fair value of interest rate swaps
is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves;

° The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to
present value;

° Other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Note that all of the resulting fair value
estimates are included in Level 2 except for
certain forward foreign exchange contracts
explained below.
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4 BEEREREZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d AREEMGFE) (d)  Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)  FE=REHITA (i) Financial instruments in Level 3
TREVNHE-_T—NF The following table presents the changes in
+—A=+—HLEFESE Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
—RTEANEEF - December 2014,

At HE

TREE

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

AR¥FTT

RMB’000

FYEER Opening balance 264,132
NE Additions 6,600
HE Disposals (12,792)
FERERR Closing balance 257,940

TRENBZ2=-ZT—=
+-A=+—"HIFESE
=RTEMES) -

The following table presents the changes in
Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2013.

AT E

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

AR TFr

RMB’000

FEEA Opening balance 236,370

NE Additions 17,204
R (AR Transfer to investments accounted for

ANERMIEE using the equity method 15,000

HE Disposals (4,442)

FRERR Closing balance 264,132
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided

£X
g aEFRRERemE(eEn by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
,?Qé?ﬁ{iﬁqﬂﬁﬁj—\ﬁ’]fmib& borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
EmEER]) ﬂfﬁi&iﬁ borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
MatE - EREFEIR R J(ZZDT sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
AEEBERIR)NAEGBFET capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
"o consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
RZE—NNFR_T—=F+= The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and
A=+—H®MEREELENT : 2013 are as follows:
—E-mE —E-=fF
2014 2013
AREFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5 E5)
(Restated)
fE SRABEA() Total borrowings (i) 21,071,804 21,425,962
W IBENIBEEEBY Less: cash and cash equivalents
(H1zz28) (Note 28) (4,828,610)  (5,076,449)
BEFHE Net debt 16,243,194 16,349,513
B Total equity 18,389,513 13,771,938
BARMRE Total capital 34,632,707 30,121,451
BEABELE Gearing ratio 47% 54%
0] BEXBEREAREK (i) Total borrowings comprised borrowings

19,906,757,000 L (—ZE—=
£ AR ¥ 20,039,053,000
(FIzES3) AR * T AR
| (& 0 A R #5783,345,000
—E—=F: AR¥
6,340,000 7t ) (Fff 3£ 36)
Q3 B A AR 5 B E A fE
T RIA R A K% 381,702,000
ZE—=ZF: ARK
6900075)(M7137)Eh

MR ATHEFZ JIF
Hof\ E/\\mv

S ¢

of RMB19,906,757,000 (2013:
RMB20,039,053,000) (Note 33), borrowings
included in other liabilities of RMB783,345,000
(2013: RMB1,046,340,000) (Note 36), and
borrowings included in trade and other payables
of RMB381,702,000 (2013: RMB340,569,000)
(Note 37).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(@)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables with reference to the extent and
duration that the amount will be recovered.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification
of potential impairment requires the use
of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

®)

(©)

Mineral resources reserves

Mineral resources reserves and the
amortisation method are key factors in the
calculation of amortisation of extraction
rights. Mineral resources reserves are
also an important element in testing for
impairment. Changes in mineral resources
reserves will affect amortisation recorded
in the financial statements for extraction
rights. A reduction in proven developed
reserves will increase amortisation charges.
Proven reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward,
based on new information, such as from
changes in economic factors, including
product prices, contract terms, evolution of
technology or development plans.

Impairment of exploration and extraction
rights and property, plant and equipment
Exploration and extraction rights and
property, plant and equipment are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and depreciation. These carrying amounts
are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.
In estimating the recoverable amounts of
assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with
the mining rights and depreciation and
discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions,
the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact
on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position. Management considered
that there was no impairment charge
required to be made to the carrying value
of the exploration and extraction rights,
and property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2014.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(@)

(e

Investment property valuation

The Group’s certain investment properties
are located in areas where there are no
active property market, in such cases, the
fair value is estimated by discounted cash
flow method, which involves a number of
key assumptions, including market rents,
occupancy rates, discounts rates. The
assumptions require the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value
of investment and fair value gain/loss on
investment property in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets
Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in
the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may
be different.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

®

9
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Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment annually
or, whenever there is an indication of
impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3.10. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. These calculations
require the use of estimates (Note 9).

Construction contracts

The Group uses the percentage-of-
completion method to account for its
contract revenue. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the contract
costs incurred to date compared to the
estimated total costs for the contract.

Significant assumptions are required to
estimate the total contract costs and in
making these estimates, management has
relied on past experience and industry
knowledge. Management monitors the
progress of the construction and reviews
periodically the estimated total costs for
each contract as the contract progresses.

If the actual costs differ from
management’s estimates, the revenue,
cost of sales and provision for foreseeable
losses would be adjusted.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.2  Critical judgments
(@) Consolidation of entities in which the Group
holds less than 50%

(i)

The Group’s equity interests held in
a subsidiary, Fiyta Holdings Limited
(the “Fiyta”), was 41.49%, other
equity interests are widely held
by public interests. The Group’s
voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of
other shareholders give the Group
the power to govern the financial
and operating policies. As such,
the directors of the Company
considered that the Group has
maintained de facto control of
Fiyta despite its equity interests
in Fiyta are below 50% and the
Group continued to report them as
subsidiaries.

The Company held 25.76% equity
interests in Tianma and has
reached an agreement with AVIC
International and AVIC Shenzhen,
who held 6.88% and 7.16% equity
interests of Tianma respectively, to
act in concert with the Company
when casting votes in Tianma’s
shareholder meeting. As such, the
Company held 39.80% voting rights
of Tianma and other equity interests
are widely held by public interests.
The Company’s voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of other shareholders
give the Group the power to govern
the financial and operating policies.
The directors of the Company
considered that the Group has de
facto control of Tianma despite its
equity interests in Tianma are below
50% and the Group reported them
as a subsidiary.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.2  Critical judgments (continued)

(®)

(c)
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Joint arrangements

The Group’s joint arrangement is structured
as a limited company and provides the
Group and the parties to the agreements
with rights to the net assets of the limited
company under the arrangements.
Therefore, this arrangement is classified as
a joint venture.

Determination of the fair value of
consideration shares issued for business
combination

As stated in Note 52(c), Tianma acquired
90% equity interests in Wuhan Tianma by
issuing ordinary A shares. According to
relevant regulations of China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”)
and Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the
consideration shares issued are not
transferable for a period of 12 months
commencing from the date on which the
consideration shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The restriction
is a characteristic of the consideration
shares and, therefore, would be transferred
to market participants. On this basis,
management believe the fair value of the
consideration shares would be measured
on the basis of the quoted price for
ordinary A shares of the Tianma that trades
in Shenzhen Stock Exchange, adjusted to
reflect the effect of the restriction.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

5.2  Critical judgments (continued)

(c)

Determination of the fair value of
consideration shares issued for business
combination (continued)

In consideration of the extent of
adjustment, management referred to
the issuing price for additional A shares
placing (“2014 Tianma Placing”) which
were issued to 10 independent investors
on 15 September 2014, right after the
completion of acquisition of Wuhan
Tianma. The A shares issued for 2014
Tianma Placing are subject to same
restriction of sales from the date on which
the shares are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. The issuing pricing for
2014 Tianma Placing is RMB14.6 per
share, management believe the price
observed in this similar transaction is an
approximate representation of the fair
value of consideration shares issued for
acquisition of Wuhan Tianma.

FRERRIERBRAERAT 2014FEHE 225



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

226

SEIE L
ARAEZERIBRERRE - B2
EREKEFTSEMNORE (AAELR
BE IR TE)EERZEDE -

E=ESREMNAREREEY - AKHE
N AAERBD

«  BTIBHRER-LERMER
SETE  DUEHRREEN

. TEHRGmHHEER —FTHETF&K
SUERMRARMEHEHE

. Mo EE BB E — IR TI2RG - i
ERMEMEEBE

. BHMR-RPmES  MARE
KR D AR

. BRREEFAZ -REXHAEE
A& BT 3%

EFSRBENFHEZEE D AHIRE o

DHEETERRIHERE - BRK
FRE ME - BELRE KED
X KERIR FE BETDE B
ZREMEYRAENERE KB EE
) o

7 BB U AR IR BT 40 B8 77 165 78 B0 R K K%
fRIFERE °

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. Management
has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used
to make strategic decisions.

The board considers the business from a product
perspective. The Group is organised into five business
segments:

° High-tech Electronic Products — manufacture
and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed circuit
boards and standard parts

o Retails and High-end Consumer Products —
manufacture of middle to high-end wrist watches
and chain store sales of luxury watches

° Real Estate and Hotel — providing construction
services, real estate development and hotel
operation

° Trading and Logistics — trading of commodities,

ship building and providing logistic services

° Resources Investment and Development —
investment and development of agriculture related
resources business

The board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the profit.

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights,
exploration and extraction rights, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, construction-in-
progress, inventories, properties under development,
trade and other receivables and cash and equivalents.

Inter-segment revenue are carried out according to the
terms and conditions agreed by both parties.
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6 oHERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
MEEgiRENEE_E—NFE+ A The segment information provided to the board of
=+ —HIEFENARE DSBS ILE directors for the reportable segments for the year ended
BT 31 December 2014 is as follows:
REENDHERSTAT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment information is as

follows:
BE-2-MEt-AZt-ALEE
Year ended 31 December 2014
2ER BRRER
B REHER E
ENHER Retalsand HEEEE Resources
High-tech  High-end Real EZ8Y%  Investment
Electronic ~ Consumer Estate Trading and and RPEER s
Products ~ Products  and Hotel  Logistics Development Unallocated Total
ARRTE  ARETT ARETL AREFn  ARETr  AREFr  AREFn
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMB’000  RMB’000
PHEE Segment results
RESNIZFEMA  Revenue from external customers 13,067,654 3,221,007 5,891,369 11,780,260 466,134 - 34,426,424
AHERA Inter-segment revenue 709 24,364 305,449 120,009 - - 450,531
riE Segment results 623,313 222,555 461,683 (206,257) (177,013 (108,128) 816,153
HAAHi259) Other income (Note 39) 465,614 32,555 65 158,472 30,639 12956 700892
2/ (BE)- Other gains/(losses)-net (Note 40)
FE(Wit) 277,760 62 899 (22,728) (1,699) 89,113 343413
REMERAEE(EE)  Fair value (loss)/gain on investment
) properties (Nofe 12) (5,761) 19,360 8,713 (6,322) - - 15,990
i/ (58) Operating profit/{loss) 1,360,926 274,532 471,951 (76,835) (148,067) (6,059) 1,876,448
BARARSE(Hi#43)  Finance costs, net (Note 49) (240,544) (92,769) (68,254  (132,438)  (102474) (136,892  (773,237T1)
EEEREREARS  Share of (osses)/profit of
%A (BB)/&H investments accounted for using
(Wit15) the eouity method (Note 15) (92,760) (848) 4485549 116,666 - 94 471,701
FERM%(M245)  Income tax charge (Note 45) (120,852) (31,417)  (165,313) (514) 1,635 - (316,461)
REERH /(6B Profit/loss) for the year 906,770 149,498 686,933 (93,121) (248,906) (142,857 1,258,317
nEEE Segment assets 23488296 3275889 7,282,676 15,664,052 2445827 1273792 53,430,532
BRESEABRE  Investments accounted for using
(Wit15) the equity method (Note 19) 328,824 42300 3,534,439 407,029 - 30,048 4,342,730
BEE Total assets 28817,120 3318279 10,817,115 16,071,081 2445827 1303840 57,773,262
BaE Total liabilties 11,053,561 1,934,536 6,920,876 14,023,783 2475190 2,966,803 39,383,749
BAfES Capital expenditure 1,358,276 4,675 104,304 521,085 194,424 576 2,223,840
e Non-cash expenses
-% BER - Depreciation of property,
REE(Hi149) plant and equipment (Note 49) 1,454,142 21,101 78,937 99,228 78,525 1351 1,733,284
— TR AR - Amortisation of land use rights
(Hit49) (Note 49) 10,304 747 11,480 15,737 1,060 - 39,328
- HRREREE - Amortisation of exploration and
(fi49) extraction rights (Note 49) - - - - 9,494 - 9,494
~ B AESH(M49) - Amortisation of infangible assets
(Note 49) 55,184 714 126 42,285 1,405 - 99,714
-HMERSAEESE - Amortisation of other non-current
(Hi49) assets (Note 49) 32,149 9,158 2,767 12 11,412 - 55,498
~SRRE(49) - Provision for bad debts (Note 49) (1,680) 2,215 1,740 53,923 58,048 - 114,306
-REGERE - Provision for inventory
(Wit49) obsolescence (Note 49) 97,254 346 72 13,756 - - 111,428
~EUEFANTRE ~ Provision for amounts due from
FBREW49) customers for contract work
(Note 49) - - - 62,278 - - 62,278
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DEER () 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-E3-=E+-B=t-HILFE(EE))
Year ended 31 December 2013 (Restated)
&4
BT BRHEER BRREs
SREER  Retalsand B
High-tech Hgh-end EREE BZE05E Resources
Blectronic ~ Consumer  Real Estate  Trading and Investmentand A2 EJER st
Products Products ~ and Hotel Logistics ~ Development  Unallocated Total
NGEFT  AEETT  ARETT  AREFT  AEETT  ARETT ARETT
RMB000  RMBOO0O  RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  AMBOO0  AMBO00
(mE7)) (&mE3))
(Restated) (Restated)
PHEE Segment results
RESNIZEEMA  Revenue from external customers 11,059,896 3,041,122 4,187,299 18,600,479 373,210 - 37,262,006
DEREA Inter-segment revenue 501 24,624 - - - - 25,151
r S Segment results 504416 221653 214,847 88,189 (89,209) (46,663 893,239
ERA Other income 684,710 20,784 201 384,357 36,938 1788 1,130,778
Atz /(BE)—F8  Other gains/osses) - net (2813 41 209 79,382 108 35,373 112,670
RAMERNRBEKE  Farvalue gain on investment
properties 3,263 7268 23791 22620 = = 56,942
meEH/ (B8) Operating profit/oss) 1189576 252,116 239,048 574,548 (52,157) (9502 2193629
HENKFE Finance costs, net (136,952) (85,286) G179 (232,519) (6,207 (179919 (772602)
b RERE Share of profit of investments
NEARE R accounted for using the equity
method 5515 1589 427,99 90,538 = 735 526373
HERA Income tax charge 45,956) (25,455) (77927)  (114,113) (5,109) - (268,560)
KEFER/(BB)  Pofitoss) for the year 1012183 142964 537,308 318454 (143473)  (188,686) 1,678,840
NHEE Segment assets 15,308,665 3546498 8212830 15628158 2782412 970,145 46448708
BRESIABOHEE  Investments accounted for using
the equity method 190925 43238 3314535 802,039 - 35055 4386692
g Total assets 15499500 3580736 11,527,365 16430197 2782412 1,006,100 50,835,400
iaaf Total labilties 0604792 1989246 7307640 12804320 2349845 2917610 37063462
BT Capital expenditure 602,924 17946 96,639 576,878 661,349 1333 1,957,089
LR Non-cash expenses
-% BER - Depreciation of property,
RiETE plant and equipment 1,242,268 21,102 72,329 80,147 56,967 1,187 1,474,000
- D REESE - Amortisation of land use rights 17613 - 11,540 1511 435 - 31,009
-HERRREEY - Amortisation of exploration and
extraction rights - - - - 15,716 - 15,716
-BEERR - Amortisation of intangble assets 38,283 1417 84 9,444 12366 = 50,594
-EMEREEESES - Amortisation of other non-current
assets 43851 6,989 3,966 70 141 = 55,017
-5EAR - Provision for bad debts 8,989 2257 5,850 108,326 27% - 128218
-REREEE - Provision for inventory
obsolescence 111,015 6,466 - 6,954 - - 124,435
-EUMEFANTE - Provision for amounts due from
FERE customers for contract work - - = 38276 = - 38,276
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6 DEER (&) 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
REBZSERERIFEMNTEH - Hkgrh The Group entities are principally domiciled in the PRC.
DA H MBS & i [& FY 9N 2B B i 2 The result of its revenue from external customers in PRC
ZIABENT - and other countries and districts are disclosed as follows:

—ZT—NF ZE—=F
2014 2013
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(geE5)
(Restated)
A Revenue
R A 3 Mainland China 21,579,414 25,915,480
&% Hong Kong 1,273,308 1,864,894
(S Europe and America 4,022,303 2,566,156
RO MR East Asia and Southeast Asia 3,708,832 4,982,587
Hi Others 3,842,567 1,932,889
W R A BEE Total revenue per income statement 34,426,424 37,262,006
WAREPREBRETHE - H1EF Revenue is allocated based on the country in which
BN PEABBAIA10%H U customers are located. No revenue derived from a
Ao single external customer has exceeded 10% of the total
revenue.
—EB-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARHEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&:7)
(Restated)
MREMTARIELEHRIEEES Total of non-current assets other than
HERBEEHE financial instruments and deferred
tax assets
AR R A B, Mainland China 21,195,790 18,438,761
i Hong Kong 911,798 538,384
FES Europe and America 634,433 58,166
EEEYNE ] East Asia and Southeast Asia 7,334 437,669
HAh Others 416,556 277,705
23,165,911 19,750,685
F AR EARNIRE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 4,342,730 4,386,692
27,508,641 24 137,377
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6 HPBERHE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—ZT—NF —F—=
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(1&=51)
(Restated)

EARM T H Capital expenditure

AR B A A, Mainland China 2,083,055 1,947,897
a5 Hong Kong 1,368 791
(H#ES Europe and America 20,690 2,456
HAftb Others 118,727 5,925

2,223,840 1,957,069

BEARMES BIREEMER#EIT R Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

WABDIAT - Revenue consists of the following:

—E—-mE —E2—=F

2014 2013
AE¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&=E75)
(Restated)

BRER D EHWRA DI Analysis of revenue by category
EmiiE Sale of goods 27,374,059 33,288,080
BEEY Construction contracts 6,548,184 3,369,404
He A Rental income 110,594 245,612
ARFS U A Services income 206,194 189,903
HAh, Others 187,393 169,007
Uz R WA 4258 Total revenue per income statement 34,426,424 37,262,006
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7 i {55 FH #E 7 LAND USE RIGHTS

KEE

Group
—ZT—F —E-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&:5))
(Restated)
R—A—BMERmEFE Net book value at 1 January 1,530,773 1,331,337
RE Additions 45,870 234,899
U B8 — B B A B (M15562(c)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 52(c)) 259,442 =
By Amortisation (39,328) (35,463)
HE Disposals (38,933) =
A+ A=+—H/EEFE Net book value at 31 December 1,757,824 1,530,773

KEH

Group
% @HmFE _—FT=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7)
(Restated)

REBIEIN » LAB0ES04 Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of

HEF 30 to 50 years 1,757,824 1,530,773
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T fERRE ) 7 LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)
B AR #39,328,000t (ZF—= Amortisation charges of RMB39,328,000 (2013:
£ : ARE#¥31,099,0007T) (Kfs%41) 2 RMB31,099,000) (Note 41) were included in the
ATHER B EFABENLERE administrative expenses, and no amortisation charges
TEAEHETH(ZZE—ZF: AR were included in construction in progress (2013:
4,364,0007T) ° RMB4,364,000) and capitalised.
ANEEH T HEBEAMN TR EAH o The Group’s land use rights are in mainland China.
AR B R AR+ (E BRI ™ The respective land use rights in mainland China were
HaktwERRERY  FRHAERE granted by the Town Planning and Land Administration
Z BAEET30E50% Bureau for periods of 30-50 years from the date of grant.
R-ZE—WNF+_A=+—H8 5T As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings
TEFEAEERERFESEARE were secured by the land use rights of the Group
645,641,000 c( ZFE—=F : AR with net book value totalling RMB645,641,000 (2013:
504,031,0007T ) K £ {8 FA #E fE K48 - RMB504,031,000). Details of the secured borrowings are
EAEFAFIBEAMEES3 in Note 33.
BV R R BB A 8 EXPLORATION AND EXTRACTION RIGHTS
TEE
Group
—ZT—NE —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
R—A—BMERmFE Net book value at 1 January 836,543 505,317
= Additions - 106,282
W —HENB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary = 240,660
s Amortisation (9,494) (15,716)
SN E = Currency translation difference (61,112) L
R+=—A=+—HBHEEEE Netbook value at 31 December 765,937 836,543
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BER KB REE)

BT ARB9 494,000 (ZE—=
£ AR¥15,716,0007T) (MtsE41) 25t
ARFEEGAWERNEEERAAR -

R-ZE—NF+_-_A=+—8 &X&H
HENE R ARERIELNT&IE

= B mF E A R ¥ 211,357,000
T(ZT—=%F: ARK
213,074,0007T ) B B TE R ER 1 B
#492.4553F A BHHBREFE o
FZIBUNFEEFEARATE
N o

> Bk Mm% E A R % 202,450,000
T(ZETE—=Z%F: AR¥
210,226,0007T ) #) #HIEF £k 1 B
#7284,526F 5 A B Ry AR T TR o
RN FEETEE SN
BRI o

— BREFE AR ¥66,300,0007T (=
T—=4%: AR¥66,301,0007T)
R EE NG T AR
B AR TE A o ZHM RN T EE
mEEREME/E -

> ik | OF B A K % 285,830,000
R — = — — 45 AN
346,942,0007T ) &) R HEFA LR HE A
#31,020 A R E R AR EE © 3%
A& FAMboukoumassi, Kouilou
Province, the Republic of the
Congo °

HHEMFARENAERFRRSE105F -
EEERREETELEERARANER
TEFER K PR o

R-ZE—MWE+_A=+—H ' EFTE
TERARNERN TR FAFEEER
o REREFEEAARKG4,477,0007T
—ET—=%: AR%¥65,077,0007T) °
IR SR E B SR FIFESS -

EXPLORATION AND EXTRACTION RIGHTS
(continued)

Amortisation charges of RMB9,494,000 (2013:
RMB15,716,000) (Note 41) were included in the cost of
goods sold in the consolidated income statement for the
year.

As of 31 December 2014, the exploration and extraction
rights of the Group comprised the following:

- the extraction rights of a phosphorus mine of
net book value of RMB211,357,000 (2013:
RMB213,074,000) has a site area of approximately
2.4553 sqg. km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming City of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

- the extraction rights of a potassium mine of
net book value of RMB202,450,000 (2013:
RMB210,226,000) has a site area of approximately
284,526 sqg. km. It is located in Lenghu District,
Haixi Prefecture of Qinghai Province, the PRC.

- the extraction rights of a phosphorus mine
of net book value of RMB66,300,000 (2013:
RMB66,301,000) has a site area of approximately
6.85 sq. km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming City of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

= the exploration rights of a potassium mine of
net book value of RMB285,830,000 (2013:
RMB346,942,000) has a site area of approximately
1,020 sq. km. It is located in Mboukoumassi,
Kouilou Province, the Republic of the Congo.

The useful life of the exploration and extraction rights is
5-10 years. Management expects to be able to renew
the exploration and extraction rights without significant
cost.

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings were
secured by the exploration and extraction rights of the
Group with net book value totalling RMB64,477,000
(2013: RMB65,077,000). Details of the secured
borrowings are in Note 33.
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(5SS 9 GOODWILL

AEE
Group
AR TFr
RMB’000

BEZE-ZZE—=H+Z"H=+—HLFEE + Year ended 31 December 2013,

KE| as restated

R-_E—=%F—H As at January 2013 273,546
W iE —FRIFT B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 119,008
RZEBE—=%+=_A As at December 2013 392,554

BE-Z—NF+=-HA=+—HILEFEE Year ended 31 December 2014
RZZE—HF—H—H As at 1 January 2014 392,554
W BB B A R (Ma#52(b) ~ (c) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 52(b), (c)) 621,010
& — IR BB R & (A 5F49(e) i) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 49(e)(ii) (4,308)
INENTE EEE Currency translation differences (56,700)
RZE—NF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2014 952,556

HERER-ZEZNFRESEFIME
BRERAB([ETEBFMER])60%MK
BRI ——FWERMBEREE
RAF(IBEMER])69.77% M #E « B
—ZE——FUEENLT Technologies Ltd.
(INLTR A ) 2 HBARfE Rk £ M E B R 5
(EB)BERAAB(TEBER]) 28k
- RZE-=FWEEMERMMAER
AR RMENR]) 2 HREARK =
T — 4 F Y B KHD Humboldt Wedag
International AG([KHDJ)89.02% %1 X
HE X F 0% E -

HMBReEABMMA K@ ESRBERE
REEE BRATEREEEMRYE
BMEDFHOMBRB AT AR SR
ERBET BBOFHNESRER
BTt e fhEHE R R HEE -

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 60% interest of
Qinghai CATIC Resources Company Limited (“Qinghai
CATIC Resources”) in 2008, 69.77% interest of AVIC
Weihai Shipyard Company Limited (“Weihai Shipyard”)
(PRECEMBRAR AR in 2011, 100% interest of NLT
Technologies Ltd. (the “NLT Company”) in 2011, 100%
interest of Superior Metal Hardware Products (Shanghai)
Company Limited (“Superior Metal”) (82 E R4 (-
) BBRAF]) in 2011, 100% interest of Deltamarin Oy
(“Deltamarin”) in 2013, 89.02% interest of KHD Humboldt
Wedag International AG (“KHD”) in 2014, 90% interest of
Wuhan Tianma in 2014.

The recoverable amount of other CGUs is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. Those calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
forecasts prepared by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below.
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BE ) 9 GOODWILL (continued)
BEALBERBBEEKRANREREES The key assumptions used for fair value less costs to sell
HENEFEREJWOT and value-in-use calculations are as follows:
EBTHER
Qinghai FUSME NLTA SHEE REXE
CATIC Weihai NLT Superior B E M Wuhan
Resources Shipyard Company Metal  Deltamarin KHD Tianma
EEFE Net book value
(AEEFr)  (BMB000) 5,240 227,107 6,331 27,889 109,202 315,305 261,482
BIEAE Gross margin 28.89% 15.63% 20% 17.00% 37% 13.77% 9%
BRE Growth rate 5% 3% 0% 3% 3.5% 3% 2%
B & Discount rate 7.40% 14.50% 11% 8.42% 12.43% 10.37% 12%

HERZEARSMELEDBRZES
EEAEEBENT o

EEEBREBARREREHMBREN
TEHE T TEE 2B AIE - FrER A A i
3532 & 2 B 2 R SR 45 P TEOB — Bk o
FIER MBI R ARIATANIR R - Wk
HAERLE D SEENERRE

RETHENER  ARAREZA/E
ARHEERES

iR AR RERR B —HEFR
—E—=Ff+-A=t+—BERENHE

FH1E10% » BIZANE E A R B 2R E K
B A R#302,324,000( —E—=

) o

MR —_E—NEER_T—=F+_AH4

=+ — HEAIRREIN2% - BIAREE A #E
27 2R B B A R # 650,239,000 7T
—T =4 @)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

The directors of the Company consider that no
impairment charge was required after performing the
impairment assessment.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates as at 31 December
2014 and 2013, the Group would have recognised
RMB302,324,000 impairment loss on the goodwill (2013:
Nil).

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December
2014 and 2013, the Group would have recognised
RMB650,239,000 impairment loss on the goodwill (2013:
Nil).
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10 EBREEE 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BERH
CE HER
EjBB  Capitalised FUE BIERR EFER
Computer development  Trademark Maritime Ef|  Customer =0 @
software costs andlicenses rights of use Patents  Relationships Others Total
AGEFT  ARETE  ARETT  AREFr  ARETR  AREFT AREFr ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE-BE-F-A At January 2014
A Cost 240,454 1,448 62,261 25,670 185,138 9,755 5,943 530,669
ZirdRiE Accumulated amortisafion
and impairment (125,414) - (121) (6,187) (30,813) (108) (2,535) (165,784)
RERE Net book amount 115,040 1,448 61,534 19,483 154,325 9,647 3,408 364,885
HE-g-mE Year ended
+ZB=1-AItEE 31 December 2014
ENEEFE Opening net book amount 115,040 1,448 61,534 19,483 154,325 9,647 3,408 364,885
EizE Exchange differences (4,794) - (29,807) - (31,006) (33,686) - (99,293)
YEHB AT Acquistfion of subsidiaries
(Wson) () (Note 520), ) 28,205 - 198,620 - 174870 213,450 - 675,145
e Additions 39,268 - - - 346 35 - 39,669
tE Disposals (818) - - - - - - (818)
B Amortsaion charge (£3,935) - - (126 Q1479 (32015 (170 (99,714
EXREFE Closing net book amount 132,986 1,448 230,347 18,267 217,057 216,531 3,238 819,874
RZ5-MF At 31 December 2014
R
A Cost 302,335 1,448 231,074 25,670 329,348 249,554 5,943 1,145,372
ZirdRAE Accumulated amortisafion
and impairment (169,349) - (121) (7,409) (52,291) (33,023) (2,705) (265,498)
RERE Net book amount 132,986 1,448 230,347 18,267 217,057 216,531 3,238 879,874

236 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

10 EREE(#) 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
BEKLH
s EER
EEE  Copialised fUE BukRE XFPBE
Computer  development ~ Trademark Maritime 4| Customer =0 £
software costs  andlicenses  rights of use Patents  Relationships QOthers Total
NEETT  AREFT  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZ5-=% At 1 January 2013,
-B-B @&5  asrestated
A Cost 200810 048 7,086 25810 162,991 - 5,043 42,448
ZirdiRAE Accumulated amortisation
and impaimnent (85,065 - 7o) 4722) (15.949) - P13 (108676)
BERE Net book amount 124,745 948 6,359 20,948 147,042 - 3,730 303,772
Bz-E-cF Year ended 31 December
+zA=1-8 2013, as restated
LEE &S
ENRESE Qpening net book amount 124,745 %48 6,359 20,948 147,042 - 8730 308,772
EiER Exchange differences (3.929) - - - (15,494) - - (19,423)
KEHEAR Acquisiion of subsifaries 2,991 - 55,175 - 40,651 - - 9,217
B Addtions 27,963 500 - - 1,000 9,755 - 39,218
HE Disposals (69) - - - - - - (69)
3 Amartisation charge (36,061) - - (1,469) (18,874) (108) (322) (56,830)
EXRERE Closing net book amount 115,040 1,448 61,534 19,483 154,325 9647 8,408 364,885
WoB-=k At 31 December 2013,
tZA=t-B:  asrestated
gy
i Cost 236,166 1,448 62,261 25,670 189,148 9,759 5,943 530,391
ZirERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impaiment (121,126) - 720 (6,187) (34,829 (108) (5%)  (165506)
BERE Net book amount 115,040 1,448 61,534 19,483 154,325 9,647 3,408 364,885

B AR 99,714,000 (= &
— =4 : AR ¥50,594,0007T ) (K=
AMBRAREZT(ZE—=F: AR%
6,236,0007C) A Bl st ARFEEITHE A
MERNLERIR -

Amortisation charges of RMB99,714,000 (2013:
RMB50,594,000) (Note 41) and Nil (2013:
RMB6,236,000) were included in the administrative
expenses and capitalised in construction-in-progress for
the year respectively.

PRBERZERROERAE 2014FERE 237



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

11

238

ME - - BMERFE 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AREE Group
“E-QmE
2014
ElR
B3
HENE  BERRE Computer
#6  Machinery RE and  FREEH R
#F  Leasehold and Motor electronic Mining Other g
Buildings improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment  structures  equipment Total
ABETL ARETR ARETL ARETL  ARETL  ABEFT  AREFT  AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BZ-5-ME1ZF  Yearended 31 December 2014
ST-ALEE
S Cost
L) At beginning of year 5565665 302371 9442530 199,029 350,058 268,237 125028 16,252,913
BEEIRER Transfer from construction-in-
(Hi#13) progress (Note 13) 546,613 - 767,707 1,126 12,115 - 80,212 1,407,773
WERHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Wits2) (Note 52) 854,946 - 1,958,802 1,47 5314 - 25730 2,846,039
HE Additions 89,307 94,222 380,227 28,890 96,764 - 1,47 700,827
BEDAETR Transfer to construction-in-
(Wit13) progress (Note 13) (8221) - (2902 - - - - (6,123)
HEMELA Disposals of subsidiaries
(H:496)) (Note 49(e) - - - (164) - - - (164)
HtbtE(Hia9t)  Other disposals (Note 49(b) (8,387) - (68,489) (9,660  (12,277) - (11,778)  (110,590)
EHEE Exchange differences (81,848) - (11,315) (1,887) (5,998) (5,432) (16)  (106,496)
EX At end of year 6,963,075 396,593 12,466,561 218,581 445,976 262,805 230,588 20,984,179
2RIE Accumulated depreciation
E4) At beginning of year 853,654 179170 4,243,323 116,910 221,468 69,773 91,491 5,781,789
REEGHR Charge for the year 321,187 83,238 1,238,355 23,146 50,750 - 16,608 1,733,284
HEMBLR Disposals of subsidiaries
(Hit496)) (Note 49(e) - - - (143) - - - (143)
EHEMa9t)  Other disposals (Note 49(b)) (1,206) - (23179 (6,208) (6377) - (9,139)  (46,108)
ESES Exchange differences (76,247) - (265) (2,315) (5,638) - - (84,465)
X At end of year 1,097,388 262,408 5,458,235 131,390 266,203 69,773 98,960 7,384,357
HE Impairment
EOREX At beginning and end of year 5,524 - 10,160 406 328 - 10 16,428
REEHR Charge for the year - - - - 82 - - 82
£X Atend of year 5,524 - 10,160 406 40 - 10 16,510
BEFE Net book amount
X At end of year 5,860,163 134,185 6,998,166 86,785 179,363 193,032 131,618 13,583,312
) At beginning of year 4,706,487 123,201 5,189,047 81,713 122,262 198,464 33,522 10,454,696
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11 Y- BMERRZEE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
REB(E) Group (continued)
Z3-=F(EE])
2013 (Restated)
EHRE
Fikf
AEnE  BERER Computer
% Machinery HE and  FEEEN R
BF  Leashold and Motor ~electronic Mining Other ]
Buildings  improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment structures  equipment Total
NREFT  AREFr AREfr ARETr ARETr ARETr  AREFT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
BEZ-E-=F Year ended 31 December 2013
t-AZT-ALEE
S Cost
) At beginning of year 5,227,281 204707 8,967,488 192,575 326,992 268,237 116,488 15,323,768
EEEIRER Transfer from construction-in-
progress 330,480 - 207,442 - 6,074 - 85 614,081
WEE—RIBAT  Acquistion of a subsidiary 187 - 189 139 4,39 = 513 6,680
AE Additions 63,884 77,664 217,829 21,778 37,408 - 8,121 486,684
ERaREE Transfer to investment properties  (22,869) - - - - - - (22,869)
BRSIRIR Transfer to construction-in-
progress (7,062) - - - - - - (7,062)
HEMBLR Disposals of subsidiaries = = 62) (1,900) (423 . = 2,385)
EfhitE Other disposals (2,544) - (68,979) (14,073 (14,309) - (38) (99,943)
ERES Exchange differences (2369 - (11,377) (746)  (10,080) - (146)  (46,041)
£X At end of year 5,565,665 302,371 9,442,530 199,029 350,068 268,237 125,023 16,252,913
2ENE Accumulated depreciation
&) At beginning of year 666,419 106,257 3,218,046 96,527 195,360 48,810 78,077 4,407,496
RERE Charge for the year 202,797 73913 1,090,450 33,430 44,383 20,963 13,445 1,479,381
BEDLANE Transfer to investment properties ~ (8,794) - - - - - - (8,794)
BETEETR Transfer to construction-in-
progress (1977) - - - - - - (1,917)
L ENBAT Disposals of subsidiaries - - U] (1,602) (362) - - (1,971)
Ephe Other disposals (4,797) - (65166) (10445 (11919 - B (02346
EX At end of year 863,654 179170 4,243,323 116,910 227,468 69,773 91,491 5,781,789
HE Impairment
E4) At beginning of year 5,524 - 9919 - 213 - - 15,716
REEHR Charge for the year - - 241 406 5 - 10 2
EX At end of year 5,524 - 10,160 406 328 - 10 16,428
RARE Net book amount
£X At end of year 4,706,487 123201 5,189,047 81,713 122,262 198,464 38,522 10,454,696
) At beginning of year 4,555,338 119450 5,739,623 97,048 131,359 219,427 38,411 10,900,556
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11 9% BERREE) 11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RAF] Company
—2-mE
2014
BERRE
Machinery AE
gs and Motor ®xm
Buildings equipment vehicles Total

ARKTT  AREFr  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BZ_2-DNfF Year ended 31 December 2014

TZA=+—BLEE
B Cost
F14 At beginning of year 19,000 2,979 4,327 26,306
NE Additions - 576 - 576
FXR At end of year 19,000 3,555 4,327 26,882
2RNE Accumulated depreciation
=) At beginning of year 13,656 1,197 4,176 19,029
KEERIE Charge for the year 855 453 42 1,350
FX At end of year 14,511 1,650 4,218 20,379
REFE Net book amount
TR At end of year 4,489 1,905 109 6,503
2] At beginning of year 5,344 1,782 151 7,277
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11 ¥ BERXEE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
WNT(4E) Company (continued)
—T-=F
2013
BERE
Machinery R
BT and Motor k)
Buildings equipment vehicles Total

AREFT ~ ARBTT  ARETT  ARETTL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE-FE—=F1+=-B=+1— Year ended 31 December 2013

ALEEE
B Cost
=) At beginning of year 19,000 1,646 4,327 24,973
NE Additions - IF338 - 1,333
FX At end of year 19,000 2,979 4,327 26,306
2RFE Accumulated depreciation
=) At beginning of year 12,801 907 4,134 17,842
REERE Charge for the year 855 290 42 1,187
N At end of year 13,656 1,197 4176 19,029
REFE Net book amount
ER At end of year 5,344 1,782 151 7,277
E4) At beginning of year 6,199 739 193 7,131
ARE Group
@ AEBENDE BERRERE (@)  The property, plant and equipment of the Group

SERCARTIER were stated at historical cost.

PREMRZERRAERAT 2014FERE 241



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

11

242

M¥E-  BMERREE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
rEBE(E) Group (continued)
(b) WEBRIATOERERNLH L (b) Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed
3 - in the following categories:
—F-mE ZF=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
HERA Cost of goods sold 1,488,808 1,246,447
1THEH Administrative expenses 216,795 210,918
HEER Distribution costs 27,681 16,635
EEITR Construction-in-progress - 5,381
1,733,284 1,479,381
(© REBHEFEZMRFEALML o (c)  The Group’s buildings are mainly situated in the
mainland China.
(d) R-ZE—WFE+-_A=+—8" (d) As at 31 December 2014, certain bank
ETRITEFEVE  BERR borrowings were secured by the property, plant
15 (MI3E33(a) ) fELA N IR and equipment (Note 33(a)) as follows:
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFE Net book value
grtes Buildings 1,213,671 1,426,288
2SR 5 Machinery and equipment 294,643 =
1,508,314 1,426,288
e HBEZZET—HNF+_A=+— () As at 31 December 2014, the Group

B AEBDEHRERER®EFE
A AR ¥ 284,883,000 (= =&
—=ZF+=-—A=+—H8: AR¥
278,103,0007T ) HIIEFHEERERS ©

was still in the progress of obtaining title
certificates of buildings with a net book value
of RMB284,883,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB278,103,000).
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12 BEYE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE
Group
—E-NF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREE At fair value
—A—BEV&s Opening balance at 1 January 2,153,462 2,099,314
BEWE - WE KR Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 25,848
INE Additions 50,618 =
o B8 — RSB B A B (H15252(c)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 52(c)) 13,286 =
A BERARFRE Net gain from fair value adjustment 15,990 56,942
HE Disposals (980) (28,642)
T RA=+—HHEXR&AH Closing balance at 31 December 2,232,376 2,153,462
(a) RIESERNEEYHESTEOT ! (a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for

investment properties were as follows:

—F-—QmFE —FT-=F

2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HeWA Rental income 177,432 196,187
ELXHASWARNYED Direct operating expenses from properties
HEKLERX that generated rental income (41,766) (46,462)
TEAESWARNYER Diect operating expenses from properties
HELERY that did not generate rental income (8,321) (9,144)
127,345 140,581
R=ZF—NF+_-_A=+—8 " £A5£H As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no unprovided
MERRBEERRENABEHEESHEE contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
—E—=%+=-A=+—QH: &) - (31 December 2013: Nil).
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REWE7) 12

(b)

(c)

ERFRNREYE (b)
RZZE—WmF+=_A=+—8"
ETHRITEFAERBEBRAEE
¥B5RAR([ERBEEDAAE

E# AR #889,850,000L (=&
—=F+=-H=+—8: AR¥
1,200,649,0007T ) B 1% & ¥ 1

IR o IR A B R

330

HEZRH (c)
ETREVMEEERHAKEHEE

A FEBA - FBASTA I

HE -

REFAIBELEHEE - REY
BHREPERBNREMEREE
WHEREMT

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties pledged as security

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings
were secured by the investment properties of
the Guangdong International Building Industrial
Co., Ltd. (“GIB Company”) at the fair value of
approximately RMB889,850,000 (31 December
2013: RMB1,200,649,000). Details of the secured
borrowings are in Note 33.

Leasing arrangements
Certain investment properties have been leased
to tenants under long-term operating leases with
rentals payable monthly.

Minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not
recognised in the financial statements are as
follows:

—E-NF —E—=F

2014 2013

ARB¥Fir AREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F LA Not later than one year 306,471 213,947
—FUERAFNAA Later than one year and not later than

five years 510,553 472,069

HFLE Later than five years 332,661 286,749

1,149,685 972,765

AEENREM RGN FE

The investment properties of the Group are
situated in the PRC.
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REWE#)

(d)

REWMEN A REE
AEBOHKREMED AEERTD
& ENEARDREITELML
@'M#EM#&%%%#_
T-MOERZE-—Z=ZF+ZA
:+*Emﬂﬁfﬁ BfAlsE
SATRBEMERAABENRSE]
TREBEEEZESN AR EETD
BRHREWE - TRRREE
T

. FREEEXRABRAR
%Lmﬁf(*§§ﬁﬂ%
—&) e

. BE-—RMEBENRE
S BERBEMNAHEER
(%FWYW%%W%FW

BH)BEMFRAE(S
%M

. W IERBAI BTN 5 BE
BETWEEXBERAE
(BT 8BEEAE) (F=
&) o

12

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d)

Fair values of investment properties

An independent valuation of the Group’s
investment properties has been performed by
valuer, China United Assets Appraisal Company
Limited, to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 December 2014
and 2013. The revaluation gain is included in ‘fair
value gain on investment properties’. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

PRBERERRAERAT 2014FERE 245



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 BEWE#)
(d) BREVEMAREEE)

12

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d) Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

R=F-N&+=A=+—H
FERAUTEEREFEQAAEE

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2014 using

EEEER
SEEmE LN
HWE HhE KX
(E—%) Gk BX
Quoted BAE TR
prices in (B=#) WAE
active Significant (B=%)
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(AE#FT) (AEREFT) (AEHFiT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
®EHNLEETE  Recurring fair value
measurements
WEYEE Investment properties
—HABF— — Office buildings — PRC - 386,892 1,350,696
—HEM—h — Manufacturing sites — PRC - - 449,681
—fFE— — Dwelling houses — PRC = 11,909 33,198

AERENBRERNE L EHEH
MEHHIBEREBDERERAA
BEBRANEARESL -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

RER  F—H F_MRE=

SPALRIE:S L

transfer.

the year.
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12 REWHE#)
(d) BREVEHAAEEGE)

RHAEAXT BB A B EA
AR EE(E=R)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d)

Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

WAETF EEH =
Office Manufacturing Dwelling
buildings sites house
(AR¥TFT) (AREFT) (AREFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
By aEeR Opening balance 1,336,703 439,356 33,198
A Purchases 17,601 12,517 =
AR EEARTBE Net losses from fair value
adjustment (3,608) (2,192 -
HIR 46 Closing balance 1,350,696 449,681 33,198
REZFHAFR Total losses for the year included
FiBEERMRE in profit for assets held at
ME A BERE] the end of the year, under
BT HBER “fair value gain on investment
properties’ (3,608) (2,192 -
REEFAFER Change in unrealised losses for
FTEEE R the year included in profit for
REREEE assets held at the end of the
year (3,608) (2,192 -
AEEFL 1 EAE Valuation processes of the Group

AEENRENENR -_FT—NF
tT-_A=+—-BHAEBRNBL
BXGEMETHE  RGEM
FRENRBARAIBRER - BT
ERAEEREDEOE D
ERETEE - TAREMERHNU
HEARARERENTAER °

REBEBEHERE —ZEHK &
EMBHBRENERAB LG
BEEETHGE - ZEEEER
EEegRt - RZE—NFE+=
A=+—H ZEMENIAE
BEEAFTHEETEARARE

-
E °

The Group’s investment properties were valued at
31 December 2014 by independent professionally
qualified valuers who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investments properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a
team that reviews the valuations performed by
the independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the board
of directors. As at 31 December 2014, the fair
values of the properties have been determined by
China United Assets Appraisal Company Limited.
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12 BEWE#)

(d)

REMENAABEGE)

1B
RARBEBRSE_HFNRE
MEME  HERBHEELBOE
BE - HAINAELBYES
EREBERA(FINYERER)F
ZREFHAR - ZMEEHENR
EZHANER/TFITKNERS -

RARBEBRRE=ZFANKE
MEME  HERBEATAE
R A NEYLFERYERRSRER
AEE - 2FBAERE :

ARBEE
BERA

REDEER L -
AREE  WAEMF
ERENGR - AbE
K RIMEBREIESHS -
BIansE U E MR
ZHEE

R = RERERBEERE
RN HEEERREN

IGRHE

fht=EX REEARAEEER
LB R i

SRR

wERKN  BREIDEROEHAE
REHM 5 #HFERR

HBERE

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(d)

Fair values of investment properties
(continued)

Valuation techniques

For investment properties which fair value
hierarchy level is Level 2, the valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square meter.

For investment properties which fair value
hierarchy level is Level 3, the valuations were
determined using discounted cash flow projections
based on significant unobservable inputs. These
inputs include:

Based on the actual
location, type and quality
of the properties and
supported by the terms
of any existence lease,
other contracts and
external evidence such
as current market rents
for similar properties;

Future rental cash
inflows

Discount rates Reflecting current market
assessment of the
uncertainty in the amount

and timing of cash flows;

Based on current and
expected future market
conditions after expiry of
any current lease;

Estimated vacancy
rates

Maintenance costs Including necessary
investments to maintain
functionality of the
property for its expected

useful life;
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12 KREYWE &) 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(d) REMWENAARBEE) (d) Fair values of investment properties
(continued)
EAR & BEMNENER I Capitalisation rates Based on actual location,
ANNREE - Wit kfh size and quality of the
BEHBNTSEE properties and taking

into account market data
at the valuation date;

RREE  AREBREREK - Z Terminal value Taking into account
EXRMEHEHEHR assumptions regarding
& o maintenance costs,

vacancy rates and
market rents.

RAFE - (SERMILEES - There were no changes to the valuation
techniques during the year.

13 HEEIRE 13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
AEH
Group
—E-ImF —Zz—=
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
F 4] At beginning of year 1,934,988 1,394,070
B - BE R EEE Transfer from property, plant and
(H1at11) equipment (Note 11) 6,123 5,085
U BE — I B A Jl(A17762(c)) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 52(c)) 55,573 =
NE(a) Additions (a) 1,893,146 1,151,956
EEBRSYE  RE MRS Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Fiaz11) (Note 11) (1,407,773) (614,081)
EREHMIERESEE Transfer to other non-current assets (2,356) (2,042)

2,479,701 1,934,988
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13 HTERIE#E) 13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS (continued)
(a) AREFZRERERE  BEX (a) Included in the additions were mainly costs
&R TIREA R © incurred for the construction of production plants,
modernisation and renovation projects.
FREFAEEZEIRENERNLIE Bank loan interest capitalised in the
TERF B A& ART74,948,000 construction-in-progress during the year
TL(sFEL)(ZE—=F: AR amounting to RMB74,948,000 (Note 43) (2013:
#53,904,0007T) © EALFE A RMB53,904,000) and the capitalised interest rate
5.48%(=F—=% : 6.73%) ° was 5.48% (2013: 6.73%).
14 RHEBEXRNRKRE 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company
—2-mE —F=F
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®"E KA Investments at cost:
— A RRIKG — shares in listed companies 550,288 432,838
—FE LTI RAE — unlisted equity interests 5,247,990 4,152,990

5,798,278 4,585,828

RZZT—NE+=-F =+ —
B EWRRBRMMTELNA
A R #6,311,400,000 ¢ ( = =&
—=ZF+-A=+—H8: AR¥
3,829,647,0007T) °

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H -
ARABRTHEENB AR (ES
REBZENBRREAEEFK
AR AEEEESABTIERAE
REC)) o o A AR o

As at 31 December 2014, the market value of shares in
listed companies approximated RMB6,311,400,000 (31
December 2013: RMB3,829,647,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had equity
interests in the following major subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, materially contributed to the net
results of the Group or constituted a material portion of
the assets or liabilities of the Group.
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14 RHEBLATEINKRE#) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERAEER
RRERHEN
EEARLT ERRLA
BN MA£E  Proportion
BRI BEN  of ordinary
Proportion  EEMRLL A shares
BRORARE/ of ordinary  Proportion directly
HhER HRRIBFR shares  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued £RHE directly shares non-
WEARZHE share capital/ TEE Country of incorporation held by the heldby ~ controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and nature of business Company the Group interests
pNG 1131738475 BRAE ROLARAIES  HER 25.76% 2.76% 74.24%
Tianma ARBITRL B REFHLEM) WERHERRETA
1,181,738,475 Ordinary  Joint stock company Shenzhen, PRC
shares of RMB1 each (listed on the Shenzhen  Manufacture and sales of liquid
Stock Exchange) crystal displays
REERERAA(TRHER]) 210,000000REHREE R HELRS 92.99% 92.99% 7.01%
Shennan Cirouit Co, Ltd. (5CC') ARBITHEER  Joint stock company HERRERERR
210,000,000 Ordinary Shenzhen, PRC
shares of RMB1 each Manufacture and sales of printed
circut boards
g 767 STOREMEE RARARNRIEE  FER 41.49% 41.49% 5851%
Fijta AR ERR REMLm) HERHEER
392,767,870 Ordinary Joint stock company Shenzhen, PRC
shares of RMB1 each (listed on the Shenzhen  Manufacture and sales of watches
Stock Exchange) and clocks
AefgRERAR(HHER]) ARH500000000m  2EEELT hER 100% 100% -
Shenzhen AVIC Resources Co., Ltd. RMB500,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ EEIREERHREERE
(‘AVIC Resources') Shenzhen, PRC
Investments and development of
agriculture-related resources
business
ERER AR®500000000m  AREFAT LT 75% 75% 25%
GIB Company RMB500,000,000 Limited liabilty company ~ JB/E R4S

Guangzhou, PRC
Hotel and property operations
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14 RHEBLARNRKRE#)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERmEER
REEREEN
ERHALR EERLA
BN MAZE  Proportion
BRI BEN  of ordinary
Proportion  EEMRILA shares
BRIREAHE/ of ordinary  Proportion directly
HRER HMEIERR shares  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued EHME directly shares non-
HEAR%E share capital/ SEER Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and nature of business Company the Group interests
MIEERERERAA(RERR])  ARKI1200000008  2EEAAR HERY 100% 100% -
Shenzhen Aero Fasteners AFM Company  RMB120,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ ZiE RIEEZED
Limited (*AFM Company’) Shenzhen, PRC
Manufacture and sales of standard
parts
TERERMIRERAA(ERAR])  ARBO00000000T  2EEALA hE R 100% 100% -
China National Aero-Technology Beiing ~ RMB800,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ BZEBREENE
Company Limited (‘Beijing Company’) Beijing, PRC
Trading activities and shipbuilding
TR EREEERERAT AR 60,000,007 EREEAT hER 97.5% 97.5% 2.5%
(g8Ra)) RMB60,000,000 Limited liabilty company ~ EBEFREKFENRBEEE
China National Aero-Technology Trade Beijing, PRC
and Economy Development Company Trading of electronic and computer
Limited (‘TED Company’) equipment and tender
management
HERERERNERARD(EMAR]) ARK00000000T  2EEERAF HEEN 100% 100% -
China National Aero-Technology RMB300,000,000 Wholly owned company ~ MHER - BERiE
Guangzhou Company Limited BEIREEINRN
(“Guangzhou Company’) Guangzhou, PRC
Trading and logistics of machinery
vehicles, medical faciliies and
hitumen engineering
PERZREEFARAA(ENRA)) ARWG0000000T  2EEAAA hEEF 100% 100% -
China National Aero-Technology Xiamen  RMBS550,000,000 Wholly owned company S - AN EE 595
Corporation (“Xiamen Gompany’) Xiamen, PRC

Trading and logistics of shipping,

stone materials
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14 RHEBLATRNRKRE#)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERmFER
REEEHEN
ERHALR BRI
BEN MAKEE  Proportion
BRI BEH  of ordinary
Proportion LB A shares
BRORARE/ of ordinary  Proportion directly
&R HRALARR shares  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued £RHE directly shares non-
WEARZHE share capital/ SEER Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and nature of business Company the Group interests
R ERIER TRARAR ARG80000000  REEAAT hER 100% 100% -
([EmIR)) RMBA80,000,000 Wholy owned company ~ BZ%% BEER  RHERE -
China National Aero-Technology RENMHEE ISR
Engineering Company Limited Beijng, PRC
(‘Engineering Company’) Construction activities, project
management, Real estate
development, construction
material trade and rendering of
abour service
IR REEERRAT ARE60,000,00070 BREFAA hELR 90% 90% 10%
([2%wE]) RMB60,000,000 Limited liability company ~ EiERE
Beijing AVIC Ruixin Investment Beijing, PRC
Management Company Limited Real estate development
(‘Beijing Ruixin’)
ARPRERREFERAA AR 30,000,000 BREEAA hERE 51% 51% 49%
([EZRE]) RMB30,000,000 Limited liabiity company ~ BHELRE
X'an AVIC Raise XiKong Real Estate Xi'an, PRC
Company Limited (‘Xi'an Raise”) Real estate development
RBTHREERARAR(KIBRE]) ARK1200000000  BREAAR hERH 60% 60% 40%
Chengdu AVIC Raise Real Estate RMB120,000,000 Limited liabiity company ~ BHEZRE
Company Limited (‘Chengdu Raise”) Chengdu, PRC
Real estate development
PRERTERSRARAA(FR]) ARKI00000000T  2BEAAA hELR 100% 100% -
AVIC International Renewable Energy ~ RMB100,000,000 Wholy owned company BB BERRRE
Development Co., Ltd ('RED Beijing, PRC

Company’)

Trading of renewable energy
equipment
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14 RHEBLAEINKRE#) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERmFER

RREZERH

EfHFAT EERLA

BN MAZE  Proportion
LERILA ¥EH  of ordinary

Proportion  EEMRILA shares
BRIREAHE/ of ordinary  Proportion directly
HRER HMEIERR shares  of ordinary held by
Particulars of issued EHME directly shares non-
HEAR%E share capital/ SEER Country of incorporation held by the heldby  controlling
Name of subsidiary Registered capital Type of legal entity and nature of business Company the Group interests
A ARB4300000000  ARELAT HEIRE 69.77% 69.77% 30.23%
Weihai Shipyard RMB430,000,000 Limited fiabiity company ~ SHERE
Weihai, PRC
Ship building
TRERHRERERAR (ThfM]) 285576 00REREN  ROARREMRES  HIK 73.87% 73.87% 26.13%
AVIC Intenational Maritime Holdings LER SPHERARLS)  BENE
Limited (*AVIC Maritime”) 285,576,000 Ordinary Joint stock company Singapore

shares and no par value (isted on Singapore  SNip building
Exchange Ltd)
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14

REBRANKRE#E)

R REEEEATEIE

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The non-controlling interests comprised the following:

TEHE

Group
—ZE—NF —ET—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
A5 Tianma 6,324,350 2,940,537
egniE Fiyta 1,102,732 1,082,797
IERAF] Beijing Company 243,088 12,953
FEIR AVIC Resources 231,092 227,119
BN A E] Guangzhou Company 226,153 204,132
KEImE Chengdu Raise 146,572 82,215
FS=/NE] TED Company 143,906 109,966
TR Xi’an Raise 110,524 83,255
b SNG] AVIC Maritime 105,758 103,981
B SCC 94,428 84,839
& R RS GIB Company 71,756 61,746
el RED Company 29,373 43,263
=R NG] Xiamen Company 16,331 7,822
b BB Beijing Ruixin 11,741 8,695
B T2 Engineering Company 11,628 33
B8 A R Weihai Shipyard (101,971) (30,213)
8,767,461 4,973,140
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14 ARBATNKRE#E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
TXHEHINEEEHAEEMSBEANIE Set out below are the summarised financial information of
72 NG S 5RO 2 B S BT B R B B RS B AT each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are
Fo material to the Group.
(a) XEB (a) Tianma
BEBEXVE Summarised balance sheet

—F-QmE —FT-=F

2014 2013
AR¥EFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&=E7))
(Restated)
E Current

BE Assets 5,142,729 4,201,688
=N Liabilities (4,775,041) (4,442,619)
mEVEE,/(BfE)EFHE Total current net asset/(liabilities) 367,688 (240,931)

FERE Non-current
BE Assets 10,594,613 7,647,004
=L Liabilities (2,356,342)  (3,016,641)
EMEEELFAE Total non-current net assets 8,238,271 4,630,363
EEFE Net assets 8,605,959 4,389,432

256 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

14 AHRBATINKRE#E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@ XE#E) (a) Tianma (continued)

PERAREHE Summarised statement of comprehensive income

—E-mF —E-=F

2014 2013

ARMTFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&E5)

(Restated)

WA Revenue 9,209,551 8,235,921

BRETIS BRI Profit before income tax 769,511 814,628

FriSfif X Income tax expenses (87,125) (21,431)

HEmamkas Other comprehensive income (58,408) (35,134)

2 HAAK Total comprehensive income 623,978 758,063

DEEIFER IR EEZZAEME Total comprehensive income
s allocated to non-controlling
interests 391,075 475,106

IR F IR AR RS I AR 8. Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 31,227 43,236
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14 RHEBLAEINKRE#)
(@ XE(#&E)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) Tianma (continued)

HEemEXME Summarised statement of cash flows
—2-mFE —T=fF
2014 2013
ARMEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
EEIBELANEESRE Cash flows from operating
activities
WEEREENRE Cash generated from operations 1,525,475 2,581,253
ERFE Interests paid (183,449) (88,005)
EFTEH Income tax paid (32,853) (12,783)
BEETHEANRES FEE Net cash generated from operating
activities 1,309,173 2,480,465
REESELR,(FTH) Net cash generated from/(used in)

ReFw investing activities 304,980 (364,404)
BB EEFTAIRES ) FEE Net cash used in financing activities (2,013,984)  (1,600,828)
BHERBEESEEYN Net (decrease)/increase in cash

(R, and cash equivalents (399,831) 515,233
FYNRERBEEED Cash, cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 1,228,745 749,649
BE MBS EBMENEER Exchange losses on cash and cash
equivalents (18,783) (86,137)

FRORE MRS EFEY

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 810,131 1,228,745
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14 RHEBLATRNRKRE#)

(b)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FREEE (b)  Fiyta
BEBEXHE Summarised balance sheet
=F-mFE —F=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFor ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TRE Current
BE Assets 2,706,639 2,677,251
afg Liabilities (1,478,381)  (1,445,929)
MENE EEFE Total current net assets 1,228,258 1,231,322
B Non-current
BE Assets 1,024,306 926,112
af&E Liabilities (555,996) (579,904)
B EELFE Total non-current net assets 468,310 346,208
EEFE Net assets 1,696,568 1,577,530
ZEMAREZBZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—%-mFE —F-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFor ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 3,278,143 3,065,746
BRPT1S AT A Profit before income tax 198,898 167,889
FrS RS2 Income tax expenses (31,417) (25,455)
HAth 2 Other comprehensive income (9,348) 1,091
eI Total comprehensive income 158,133 143,525
D= IFEM I RS2 Total comprehensive income
e allocated to non-controlling
interests 92,224 84,753
IR IR IR AR SR AE S RO AL B, Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 22,981 22,981
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14 ARBATNKRE#E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) TRIBE(E) (b)  Fiyta (continued)
HEemEXME Summarised statement of cash flows
—E-mEF ZE—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIHELENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
HEERELERNIRS Cash generated from operations 324,404 195,599
BARFE Interests paid (97,055) (88,456)
BRETEH Income tax paid (30,239) (28,095)
EIEEEANIRE FE Net cash generated from operating activities 197,110 79,048
KEESFRARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (187,249) (118,283)
MEERSELANRESFRE Net cash generated from financing activities 2,552 7,031
BERBESZEEYN Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
/(R ) B8 cash equivalents 12,413 (32,204)
FUNRENMREEED Cash, cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 102,688 140,421
ReREeEEBMER Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash
Weas/(E518) equivalents (220) (5,529)
FRONREMIBEEEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year 114,881 102,688
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15

FRAEREARNKRE 15

REERBRERNSEOT

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as

follows:

rEE

Group
—2-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A F(a) Associates (a) 2,043,172 2,076,063
HE (D) Joint ventures (b) 2,299,558 2,310,629
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 4,342,730 4,386,692

RS RERNSRRAT

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:

AEE

Group
—E—-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ik /NG| Associates 290,796 245,503
S hE Joint ventures 180,905 280,870
R+=—_A=+—H At 31 December 471,701 526,373

HHERZERROERAE 2014FZHwE

261



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 fFAESZZEARNKRE &)

262

(a) RBEQTNRE

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates

AEE
Group
—E—-NNEF —F—=F
2014 2013
AR¥Fr AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
F 1) At beginning of year 2,076,063 1,887,517
EE() Capital injection (i) 407,135 8,890
ERENB AR Transfer to subsidiaries (542,782) -
B U 8. Dividends received (78,035) (34,464)
FEIGINE T E =58 Share of currency translation differences 1,839 1,239
HEETHEESREE Transfer to available-for-sale financial
assets = (15,000)
ERESEAFELER  Transfer to investments in associates
CRIEEMEE QT classified as held-for-sale financial
& (Hi29) assets (Note 29) (90,984) =
FEAGES: = A T A Share of profits of associates 290,796 245,503
PRGBS 2 N 5] B IEFERR Share of reserves of an associate
R 5 MEER arising from its transactions with non-
R (Ha231) controlling interests (Note 31) (20,813) (17,297)
FE(E — A E A RAY Share of an associate's other
Hith 2 mEkam comprehensive income (47) (325)
ER At end of year 2,043,172 2,076,063

() ABEFEREBRER-Z—HEMN
T fE R ERIRERBE (2%
28l A AR 269,805,000 + AR
# 8,820,000 7T & A & # 120,000,000
L) B AAEBEEE QT EERE
BRIl B BR A Bl (Shanghai
Tianma Organic Light Emitting Display
Technology Co., Ltd.)JE& o Tt {F
M IREE A A R38,385,0007T -
HERB AR231,420,0007T 5 AU

(i) Capital injection is mainly due to Shanghai Tianma
completed its capital injections to Shanghai Tianma
Organic Light Emitting Display Technology Co.,
Ltd. in 2014, an associate of the Group, with the
land use rights, construction-in-progress and cash
amounted to RMB269,805,000, RMB8,820,000 and
RMB120,000,000 respectively. The book value of the
land use right was amounted to RMB38,385,000, the
valuation surplus amounting to RMB231,420,000 was
credited into income statement.
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15 FEAESZEARNRE®R) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(@ REEXANREE) (a)
AT&EHIR-—_F-—HF+_-A
=T HEERRVAEEES
ROAREEBZE QR - THHE
DA B{EREBRAEMRE A
EEAAKEREA AR
AEMAERT AR TR E RN -

F:g MER - —=F 8

Investments in associates (continued)

Set out below are the associates of the Group
as at 31 December 2014, which, in the opinion
of the directors, are material to the Group. The
associates as listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which
are held directly by the Group; the country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal
place of business.

Nature of material investment in associates in

ERARMNERREME 2014 and 2013:

EEMY e

HMELER EREOL

Place of business/ % of BEEME HELE
EREE country of EHR ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity incorporation Type of legal entity interest relationship  method
PhERGERAR(PHMmE]) B BRI A R (R 22.35% Mk g
AVIC Real Estate Company Limited ~ ARETAH FERR G L) Note Equity

(“AVIC Real Estate”) PRC, Joint stock company
Limited liability company ~ (listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange)

BiaE - R EN E AR RIRH
MEBEERS - ERPEA
Bt hE - RI=ZANM

NIRD G @ R ER o

ERES N o= s - — 5]
& B A P b E (H ORIINEE
AR LEM)ERNAREE
A AR #1,332,649,000T (=&
= =45 — F Efr — B AR RS
904,963,0007T) °

HMBE AR /RILART - B
AT ERE o

BiEENEERNEE QA NES
BERNHRALRE -

BX

Note: AVIC Real Estate engages in real estate
development and provision of property
management services. It develops its business in
China’s southwest, northwest, central-south, the
Yangtze River Delta and Huan Bohai regions.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in AVIC Real Estate, which
is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
was RMB1,332,649,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB904,963,000).

Other associates are private companies and
there is no quoted market price available for their
shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the associates.
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15 FRHEZEAERMNEE &) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REEATRNREE) (a) Investments in associates (continued)
BEBEXHE Summarised balance sheet
—E—mE —E—=F
it AVIC Real Estate 2014 2013
AR¥Fir AREFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
E Current
B RIS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 892,441 1,393,210
HEMREEE Other current assets
(TBIERS) (excluding cash) 13,560,173 11,326,179
MENEEBE Total current assets 14,452,614 12,719,389
eHMAaE(TeiEEs Financial liabilities (excluding
FEFIE) trade payables) 4,354,106 1,964,700
HEirgaE(eiEE S Other current liabilities (including
ERFIE) trade payables) 5,588,870 6,209,421
MENE RERE Total current liabilities 9,942,976 8,174,121
IEFRE Non-current
BE Assets 5,610,031 4,998,656
TRIBE Financial liabilities 5,360,445 4,923,127
EIEREaE Other non-current liabilities 604,788 508,036
JEmB B EERE Total non-current liabilities 5,965,233 5,431,163
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15 FRAESRZEZARNRE®) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(a) REENTINRE(EZ) (a) Investments in associates (continued)
ZEMABLEZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—ZT-NE —E—=F
R i ith 2 AVIC Real Estate 2014 2013
AEB¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 6,226,260 6,224,574
e L EH Depreciation and amortisation 23,415 28,007
mE WA Finance income 9,395 6,654
A R Finance expense (328,037) (271,329)
KR AT S B AT SR Profit before income tax 683,056 740,996
Frigfif > Income tax expenses (203,735) (241,570)
REERF Profit for the year 479,321 499,426
Hih 2 mEER Other comprehensive loss (6,392) (1,452)
S HEAR S Total comprehensive income 472,929 497,974
B /i 2= IR A9 IR B Dividends received from AVIC Real Estate 29,818 14,909
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15 fFAESZZEARNKRE &) 15

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) REZELATNREE) (a) Investments in associates (continued)
EEHIMA FFXEEE (E) Summarised statement of comprehensive income
(continued)
278 EE Rl ZEHE AL ER Reconciliation of the summarised financial
FR i 2 e e O RR TE{EL Y S0 BR information presented to the carrying amount of
the Group’s interest in AVIC Real Estate:
—E-mE —E-=fF
A it AVIC Real Estate 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FUEEFE Net assets at beginning of the year 4,112,761 4,035,560
AN g A Profit for the year 479,321 499,425
Hh 2 EEE Other comprehensive loss (6,392) (1,452)
AE Capital injection - 245,500
BT R IE R R 5 Transaction with non-controlling interests (299,934) (480,764)
HIEAS Special fund 2,072 1,686
A% 2 Dividends (133,392) (187,194)
BMREEFRE Closing net assets 4,154,436 4,112,761
B FEIEIRAR R i Less: non-controlling interests (647,437) (871,197)
Pt EESRFEEA Net assets attributable to owners
EEEEFE of AVIC Real Estate 3,506,999 3,241,564
Rt ER RS Interest in AVIC Real Estate (2014:

ZZT—YF : 22.35% ; 22.35%; 2013: 22.35%)

TE—=1 :2235%)

783,814 724,490

AREE Carrying value

783,814 724,490
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15 FAESEARNRE®) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) REELENKRE (b)  Investments in joint ventures
AEH
Group

—B-MF —E—=F

2014 2013

AEB¥TFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

F 4] At beginning of year 2,310,629 2,410,774
P MmERIER AT Increase in the share of net assets of

([FRBEREE AVIC Vanke Company Limited

SREIE N (“AVIC Vanke”) - 31,767

EE Capital injection 8,636 25,904

WE—ENB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary = 3,232

(SR 9N Dividends received (182,826) (839,052)

FE(LINEE S 3= 58 Share of currency translation differences (487) 1,175

EEEB AR Transfer to subsidiary (17,086) (2,309)

& (H15E49(c)) Disposals (Note 49(c)) (213) (101,732)

EihE &S ERT Share of profits of joint ventures 180,905 280,870

FR At end of year 2,299,558 2,310,629

ATHIR-_F—BOE+_-A
=S+t -HEERRVUAEEES
ANAEEEZERE - THae
EERAEH LT ABRARSBAE -
EERAKEREA &I
MR AE T2 &R0 -

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group
as at 31 December 2014, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group. The
joint venture as listed below has share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held
directly by the Group; the country of incorporation
or registration is also its principal place of
business.
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15 fFAESZZEARNKRE &) 15

(b) MNEELENKREE)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)

—TENEN_TE—=FRE% Nature of material investment in joint venture in
PENERRENE 2014 and 2013:
Y/ ARAIER REREZAM  BHEME
EREB Place of business/ LEER % of Nature of the HEN
Name of entity country of incorporation  Type of legal entity ownership interest  relationship Measurement method
“E-RmFE -T-=F
2014 2013
miER f ANHLREHER 4742%  47.12% M s
AVIC Vanke PRC Contractual jointly Note Equity
controlled entities
KiaE - AmBRIABRAR  TBH Note: AVIC Vanke is a limited liability company

ERMERERES LR
B BECEERYEERE
BE N ARES o

ERELERMLART » B
DAL EIERIE -

AEEREEEDESE THIEE

o

principally engaged in real estate development
and operation, land development, construction,
hotel and property management, investment and
consultation services etc.

All joint ventures are private companies and
there is no quoted market price available for their
shares.

The Group has the following commitments relating
to its joint ventures.

R+=-—HA=+-—H

As at 31 December
—F-QmFE —FT-=F
2014 2013
AREFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

METEFREE Guarantees in respect of mortgage

& R ER facilities for certain purchasers 791,896 60,879

BX

S

MEEAEENGZELENE
BRNHRARE -

AT E SRS RHR A A A
REBITEERBE -

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture.

Set out below is the summarised financial
information of AVIC Vanke which is accounted for
using the equity method.
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15 fFAEZEARNKRE &)

(b)

15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

REELENRE(E) (b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)
BEBEXHE Summarised balance sheet
—EF-mFE _"—T-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE Current
RekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,121,788 2,218,226
EimeEE(T8iEIR %) Other current assets (excluding cash) 15,472,458 16,476,865
mEEESE Total current assets 16,594,246 18,695,091
cREaE(TRIEES Financial liabilities (excluding trade
FEATFRIE) payables) 1,074,741 2,377,960
HEmnsaE(aEE 5  Other current liabilities (including trade
FERTFRIR) payables) 10,192,530 9,554,158
mEBaEeRE Total current Liabilities 11,267,271 11,932,118
R Non-current
BiE Assets 380,413 253,165
TREBE Financial liabilities - 1,250,000
HM3EmeaE Other non-current liabilities 6,502 3,433
JEmB B EERE Total non-current liabilities 6,502 1,253,433
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15 FRHEZEAERMNEE &) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
(b) MRNEELENKREE) (b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)

ZEWALEZZE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
—E—mE —E—=F

2014 2013

AR¥TFT AREFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

WA Revenue 6,337,396 6,770,615

Pree ks Depreciation and amortisation 812 762

RE WA Finance income 79,229 35,459
MERY Finance expense (56,838) (18,772)
BRPTS AT 7 Profit before income tax 992,485 1,195,580
PSR Income tax charge (462,295) (386,141)
REE R Profit for the year 530,190 809,439
EmeEmiias Other comprehensive income = -

FHEBAWZE Total comprehensive income 530,190 809,439

B A i E R E A AL B Dividends received from AVIC Vanke 182,826 299,957
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15 FRAESRZEZARNRE®) 15 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) REELENKREE) (b) Investments in joint ventures (continued)
FENHEEREERERR Reconciliation of the summarised financial
FRERHERA REENER information presented to the carrying amount of

the Group’s interest in AVIC Vanke:
—E-mFE —T—=F
2014 2013
AEB¥FT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
FNEEFE Net assets at beginning of the year 5,762,705 4,795,292
REEHF Profit for the year 530,190 809,439
BEEARTHBERR Repayment of capital to owners of
oA A subsidiaries - (17,400)
TE Capital injection - 1,000,000
A% B Dividends (592,009) (824,626)
HREEFE Closing net assets 5,700,886 5,762,705
W IEERRAR R A Less: non-controlling interests (958,008) (920,937)
FHERESREEA Net assets attributable to owners of
EBEEESE AVIC Vanke 4,742,878 4,841,768
RELDERNERS Interest in joint venture (2014: 47.12%;
ZZT—PUF  47.12% 5 2013: 47.12%)
ZE—=F 1 47.12%) 2,234,844 2,281,441
BREE Carrying value 2,234,844 2,281,441
REEE NTINRE — KD T 16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES -
COMPANY
RAF
Company
—EF-mFE ZFT-=F
2014 2013
AR¥Fir ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

"E BN Investments at cost:

— _Em AR, — shares in listed companies 288,087 288,087

—IE E T ARRE — unlisted equity interests 10,111 10,111

298,198 298,198

S 2ed—=mlaE SHllE = = — [F 0 As at 31 December 2014, the market value of shares

ML ATHBNTEY A AR in listed associates approximated RMB1,332,649,000

1,332,649,0007T (ZE— =% : AR L S e eI 00).

904,963,000) °
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REEQRBNRE -

RoZE—mE+—A=+—8 ' AQF
ATIUB A A B S

EANNCIIE D) 16

INVESTMENTS

COMPANY (continued)

IN ASSOCIATES -

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had direct
interests in the following associates:

TERH/
AR EE DY

ML/ KL A FEfL I E Principal activities/
- INGEA Date of incorporation/ Attributable EE place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Type of legal entity and operation
—g-mE -F-=F%
2014 2013
(IR EERREERAR) —hJ\RET-ATEH 50% 50% BREMLARA RERHELR
CATIC-SMP Machinery 15 November 1986 Limited liability company ~ JE5H -
Corporation Limited Manufacture and sales of
dry cleaning machines,
PRC
(RIFETRERBRAR) —“NWE-R+tAR 30% 30% BEREMLAHA HEREE TG B
Shenzhen Shenrong Engineering 17 January 1989 Limited liability company ~ Manufacture and sales of
Plastics Co., Ltd. plastic casings, PRC
(P REBEETNRARAR) —2RAF-A-1/A 39.51% 3951% ERELAR BFBERENNE  FIER
(M) 26 February 2005 Limited liablity company 4% - =
Shenzhen CAERO Digital Display Research and development
Inc. (“CAERQ") and sales of digital
displays, PRC
PRE “AWARFRAZTAA 22.35% 22.35% RHBBAT NEREREE RE -
AVIC Real Estate 29 May 1985 (RIERMERRE) FEREEEE &
Joint Stock Company Property developing and
(Listed on the Shenzhen  construction, investment,
Stock Exchange) retailing and hotel

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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17 REELENKRE-ARAQT 17 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES -
COMPANY
b N
Company
—E-mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARMTFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
"E RN Investments at cost:
F4) At beginning of year 2,371,409 2,385,857
= Disposals - (14,448)
FR At end of year 2,371,409 2,371,409
R-_E—NEFE+—_A=+—8 ' KR 7 As at 31 December 2014, the Company had direct
RTHEECEREEERER interests in the following joint venture:
IEER/
HMRRE £ S
Principal activities/
HRARL/RLAH JEb IR place of
RELEER Date of incorporation/ Attributable HMER LEEF incorporation
Name of joint venture establishment equity interest Registered Capital ~ Type of legal entity  and operation
~§-0F “F-=%
2014 2013
miER S e il 4712%  47.12% AR3820030000m AWHAREHIEE MEREREE &
AVIC Vanke 15 March 2007 RMB3,820,030,000  Contractual jointly Property development
controlled entities and construction,
PRC
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18 REF/ENESHMITE 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
NEF : The Group:
R-ZE-—WNE+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2014
BE  Wxs BEBIELXIE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
BANERE
ZRER
AR A
CHEE

Financial AfHE

assets at CREE

EXK  fairvalue Available-

WA through for-sale
Loans and profitor  financial #@st
receivables loss assets Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AEBETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets

(H1iE19) (Note 19) - - 257,940 257,940
EBEAnBEERER Financial assets at fair value through

RN REE profit or loss (Note 26)

(Hit26) = 4,242 - 4,242
E 5 N E A EWEIR Trade and other receivables

(TBEEFSREE) excluding non-financial assets 11,193,475 - - 11,193,475
BIIRERITIF X Pledged bank deposits (Note 27)

(Hiit27) 522,864 - - 522,864
BeMIREFEY Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28)

(K15£28) 4,828,610 - - 4,828,610
HEt Total 16,544,949 4,242 257,940 16,807,131
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18 RENSENESRIAE %) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
NEBR : (&) The Group: (continued)
R-B-NE+=-A=+—RH(#&) At 31 December 2014 (continued)
BE Yl EEEERAE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
RAREER Hih &
EBEE a&n
TRNSHEE B A
Financial Other
liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities
through profit at amortised @ct
or loss cost Total
AREF7 ABMFr AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B (H15233) Borrowings (Note 33) - 19,906,757 19,906,757

BARBEFREZEE Financial liabilities at fair value
e ra &M EZ26) through profit or loss
(Note 26) 66,895 - 66,895
B 5 REMER A Trade and other payables
(TBEiEFEERARE) excluding non-financial

liabilities - 10,993,479 10,993,479
HEMIEREAaE Other non-current liabilities
(H15#36) (Note 36) - 166,803 166,803
EfReaE Other current liabilities
(H17#36) (Note 36) - 663,310 663,310
45T Total 66,895 31,730,349 31,797,244
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18 RER/EHNESMITE(2) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
NEE : (5£) The Group: (continued)
R-EB—=5+"-A=+—8 ' &3 At 31 December 2013, as Restated
BE @ Wira BIEXAE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
BAREE
ZERER
FLEREY
CREE

Financial AHEE

assets at SFIEE

E& K fairvalue Available-

ElE through for-sale
Loans and profitor  financial et
receivables loss assets Total
AREFiT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g E7) (e E75)) (gE7))  (KE7))
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - - 291,090 291,090
BARBEBBER Financial assets at fair value
RN REE through profit or loss - 5,405 - 5,405
B R EMEN A Trade and other receivables
(TEIEESREE) excluding non-financial assets 7,660,969 — - 7,660,969
BEARITER Pledged bank deposits 643,650 - - 643,650
HeRREZEM Cash and cash equivalents 5,076,449 - - 5,076,449
Bt Total 13,381,068 5,405 291,090 13,677,563
BE WiHEEaEEBEXAME Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
Efh&
BEm
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AREFr
RMB’000
(gE5)
(Restated)
EEN Borrowings 20,039,053
B 5 N A e FOE Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
(TEEEHEE) liabilities 8,833,269
HEMIEREAE Other non-current liabilities 1,105,347
HEt Total 29,977,669
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18 RERI/EHNESHMITE(2) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
Vi /N The Company:
R-B-—OF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014
BE  WEEBEXIE Assets as per balance sheet
At &
ERMEE
BEXRE Available-
PE U FRIE for-sale
Loans and financial st
receivables assets Total
AR¥FT AR FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AIHHEEREE Available-for-sale financial
(H1at19) assets (Note 19) - 1,400 1,400
B 5 N E A EWEIR Trade and other receivables
(TEEFEHEE) excluding non-financial assets 2,045,451 - 2,045,451
B RIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
(Kiit28) (Note 28) 61,742 - 61,742
4act Total 2,107,193 1,400 2,108,593
BiE  WEEBEXAE Liabilities as per balance sheet
et
Total
ARKETF T
RMB’000
&R (Hf7233) Borrowings (Note 33) 3,909,000
2B 5 R HMERFRIE Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
(TEEErAas) liabilities 914,771
#Et Total 4,823,771
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18 RER/EHNESMITE(2) 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
AKAT - (E) The Company: (continued)
R=B-—Z=Z5+=ZH=+—8H At 31 December 2013
BE  WEEBEXIE Assets as per balance sheet
A E
CREE
B Available-
FEWRR IR for-sale
Loans and financial 4t
receivables assets Total
ARETFT AREFT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AIHHEEREE Available-for-sale financial
assets - 15,224 15,224
Ho R Other receivables and dividend
FEW AR 2 receivables 797,762 - 797,762
ReRREEED Cash and cash equivalents 206,467 = 206,467
HEt Total 1,004,229 15,224 1,019,453
BE  WEEBEXAE Liabilities as per balance sheet
e h
=NELo)
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR TT
RMB’000
& Borrowings 2,048,000
B 5 REM B RIA Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
(TpiEELsRBaE) liabilities 118,142
HEM3EmEEE Other non-current liabilities 800,000
HEt Total 2,966,142

278 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 THEELREE 19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
r&H VN
Group Company
“E-mF —T-=F “E-mF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AEEFT AT AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(fE=51)
(Restated)

REYIk EEEFR M Investments in listed A shares of

LmAR ETARR companies listed on Shenzhen
’E or Shanghai Stock Exchange - 26,958 - -
RIEETR ARG AIRE Investments in shares of unlisted
companies 288,954 295,146 1,400 15,224
B REEERE Less: provision for impairment
losses (31,014) (31,014) - -
257,940 291,090 1,400 15,224
Fraa it EemEEIUARKIIE - All available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in
RMB.
FARHEESREENEFWT The movements of available-for-sale financial assets

during the year are as follows:

A%E ADR
Group Company
—E-E —T—=F —E-NF =%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000

(& =351)
(Restated)
E1) At beginning of year 291,090 259,819 15,224 1,400
BUAEREAREREER  Transfer from investments
accounted for using the equity
method - 15,000 - -
NE Additions 6,600 14,891 - 13,824
& (#77£49(0)) Disposals (Note 49(d)) (39,750) (9,484) (13,824) =
S ARERMALBEEE - Fair value change taken to equity,
RMBREEK gross of tax - 10,864 = =
FR At end of year 257,940 291,090 1,400 15,224
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20 EEFIBH

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

rEE b
Group Company
—E-|mE —T—=F —E-mF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT ANEMFT AREFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5)
(Restated)
EEREEE Deferred tax assets:
— BB+ —EA%ED — to be recovered after more than
12 months 482,322 370,972 - -
-+ EAREE - to be recovered within 12
months 155,289 144,578 - -
637,611 515,550 - -
EERBEARE: Deferred tax liabilities:
—BBT-AR%EE - to be settled after more than 12
months 862,398 636,280 - -
ELRBEREFE Deferred tax liabilities - net 224,787 120,730 - =

AT RS BB TR

BT

are as follows:

The net movements on the deferred income tax account

bS] N
Group Company
“E-NE =% —E-NF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT AE®F7 ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g2 E51)
(Restated)
=) At beginning of year 120,730 98,007 - 5
Rk &Rt A(#245)  Credited to income statement
(Note 45) (78,561) (55,751) - 3
EERAEMZEKER Tax charged directly to other
MBREF IR comprehensive income (11,041) (407) - -
WEEHB A A Acquisition of subsidiaries
(B1:252(0) * (c)) (Note 52(b), (c)) 222,745 70,327 = =
INEITE E 5 Currency translation differences (29,086) 8,554 = =
ER At end of year 224,787 120,730 - -
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20 IEEFFBB(&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
FRELEBRBEERBE(TERRAE The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
— RN AAS ST during the year, without taking into consideration the

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are
as follows:
BIERIBEE : Deferred tax assets:
fivd]
Group
Efffe
g5% HREAR
4T AR
RENHE EEE
FERR Salaries
Provision for payable and
impairment retirement
losseson ~ RERERAE and other
trade Provision il BREE  REREA  supplemental EER
and other  for inventory Tax  Government  Unrealised benefit Accrued i &
receivables ~ obsolescence losses grants profits  obligations expenses Others Total
ANRETE  A\RETT AREFT AREFr AREfr ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RIB000 RUB000 RUB000 RB000 RUB000 RUB000 RUB000 RIB000 RUB000
RZZ-ZE-F-R &5 At1January 2013, as restated 4729 23,461 23718 45472 52,008 2,618 10932 14928 441,851
A/ (B8 ik Credited!{charged) to the income
statement 2,151 2,99 (13759 (6,284 12,034 (6.997) (1,164) 2169 32,060
ERTAZMRENENEE  Taxoredted diecty to other
comprehensive income - - - - = 4709 - - 4709
WE-RIELR Acouistion of asubsiday 3 - - . - - i . 23
ungzeE Currency translation diferences 3904 2047 1952 3969 4539 238 954 1,308 38,565
WZE-ZE+ZB=1-8  At31 December 2013 69,027 4849 29491 44167 69476 21,653 10732 18400 517428
ARG Crecited to the income statement 19,615 14993 184,721 26,152 34,98 12,083 2204 - 24482
HEARMAEREHBE  Tax credted drectly to other
comprehensive income: - - - - - 1475 - - 1475
IE-EIBATH32k)  Acaustion of a subsiciaries
(Note 52 (o) - - 62,134 - - - - - 62,134
4nszE Currency tranglation differences (16,630) (11,683) (95,288 (10,638) (16,738) (6,662) {7,019 = (124,658)
W-E-BETZA=-R  At31 December 2014 72,012 51,802 371,064 50,471 87,69 40549 6,007 18,400 707,201
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20 IEEFFBB(&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
BEEBIREME - Deferred tax liabilities:
158
Group
THEE  EHUEH
SHEEN BEDR BftNE
AMEERE BEUE  REMEN  ERENE BifitE
Fairvalue  Fair value MAEE  Transerof  1HERE
MERE gains of gain on 29 owner-  AREENE
& available- assets  Fairvalue occupied  Fair value AE
Accelerated for-sale acquiredfrom  changeon propertyto gain on BEAK A
tax financial business investment investment  remeasure  Unrecognised Accrued i
depreciation assets  acquisiton properties  properties land use-right financial cost income Total
N\RETr  \RETr ARETT AREFT A\REFr A\RETr ARETR ARETT ARETD
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIB'000 RMB000 RMB000
RZF-=E-F-0 G5 A1 January 2013, as restated - 2401 300,617 19999 36,292 - 56 - 539,858
Mea/GAMER Charged!(Credited) to income
staement 11520 Re (313 (1664 3169 - 363 - 3691
R AARRERENRE  Taxcharged drect to other
comprenensive income - 1,359 - - 2,43 - - - 4302
YE-EHEBA Acquistion of a subsidiary - - 70570 - - = = = 70570
NeREEE Currency translaton diferences - 212 2238 17456 3,168 = £ = 119
R-E-zE+-f=1-A At 31 December 2013 11520 1,351 366,070 215,788 39,235 - 4194 - 638,158
e/ G A SR Charged(Credited) to income
statement 6,330 2540 92912) 156,672 - 2,056 (3,048 64,770 156,808
EEARMREASNEE  Taxchaged diecty o other
comprehensive income - (3,566) - - - - - = (3,566)
WENEBAZH2920) (7)) Aoquistion of subsicaries
ote 2 ), ) i TR r i - - - B
eREEE Currency translaton diferences @I (325) (88,199) (51,987) - - (1011 - (144,291)
R-E-ME+-A=1-R At 31 December 2014 15,075 - 469,844 320,673 39,235 2,56 18 64,770 931,988
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20

IESE TS B (42

EEBRAM - (48)

7N 4 B K SR B2 T 51 25 7 B MO R SE B 0B
AE

20

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in the
accounts relating to:

% @OmFE —FT—=F

2014 2013

AEB¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(ge=:5)

(Restated)

SR TE B 18 Tax losses carried forward 1,967,473 1,705,044

F 70 AT I8 R 2R AT BE A 8 SR B s A 1
REABAAAHBEEREREER
B EAERRLEFAERHEE °

RIFEEMEDE - PEARBIARIE
A A A A SR R A S B ERBOR A ©

BEARIRELEHIAE ERBNGEHRE
BERIBAMT

Deferred income tax assets had not been recognised as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be made available
to utilise the deductible tax losses and temporary
differences in the foreseeable future.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law, tax losses
of the PRC companies can be carried forward to offset
future assessable profit for a period of 5 years.

The expiry date of tax losses carried forward in respect
of which deferred tax assets have not been accounted
for is as follows:

—E-mF —E—=F

2014 2013

AREFT AR TFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&&E7)

(Restated)

—F A E|H Expire within 1 year 223,216 336,743
—ZEMFEANEE Expire in 1-2 years 494,516 223,216
—E=FREIH Expire in 2-3 years 136,206 494,516
= 2PN A F ER Expire in 3-4 years 418,603 136,206
Pz R EREER Expire in 4-5 years 694,932 514,363
1,967,473 1,705,044

R-EBE—NE+_A=+—8 B
HEEEMELERBEBEEHRARK
69,590,000 (= FE—=F+=-A=+—
B : AR#®1,878,0007T) R —2A&FH
B8 WiRULAEE K o

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities balances of RMB69,590,000 (31
December 2013: RMB1,878,000) were related to the
same company and were offset against each other.
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HibERBEE 21 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
bS] VN
Group Company
—¥-mF —T-=F —B-mF —F-=F%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFTT ARETF ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(=751
(Restated)
Ui —RMBARTEMNE  Prepayment for acquisition of a
subsidiary - 1,876,460 - -
Yok BTN SR()  Prepayment for purchase of land
use rights (a) 160,000 = - -
HUMEBARBMAT Prepayment for the establishment
of subsidiaries - 6,192 - -
BERERMT Prepayment for purchase of
equipment 126,255 132,505 - =
EEBRAMK Prepaid for advertisement fee 11,533 15,296 - =
BETHFERERED) Deposit for purchasing of land
use rights (b) 158,500 - - -
Htt, Others 58,043 52,331 - -
514,331 2,082,784 - -
(a) BB MR B AR R EE T2 (a)  AVIC Weihai Engineering Equipment Co. Ltd (7
EHEERABIFE LA BB L2 EAR AR, a subsidiary of Weihai
HEMBSLCERTTHERZRREA Shipyard, prepaid RMB160,000,000 to Weihai

BEREEELRARANARE

160,000,0007T °

b)) AEBENBLRRANEXRSHAEE (b)
o b 455 PR R ) X2 SR T s i B
ZREEZEEHEMNRESARKE

158,500,0007T °

Economic and Technological Development Zone
State-owned Assets Management Co., Ltd (E/&
KR T B R B A B E AL E E A R)) for first tier
land development.

Wuhan Tianma, a subsidiary of the Group, prepaid
a deposit of RMB158,500,000 to Wuhan East
Lake New Technology Development Management
Committee (EUZEAFRMAR R EREZE @) for
purchasing land use rights.
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22

"7E 22 INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
—ZT—F —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&E5))
(Restated)
FE LKA Inventories — cost
R Raw materials 1,043,155 829,477
E&m Work-in-progress 463,088 453,012
UK Finished goods 5,060,720 4,162,780
6,566,963 5,445,269
o TEEMURBE Less: provision for write-down of
inventories
R Raw materials (69,322) (77,093)
TR H Work-in-progress (8,959) (11,896)
LURK i Finished goods (111,872) (145,308)
(190,153) (234,295)
T8 — %A Inventories — net 6,376,810 5,210,974

RAEFRASZ WA EEK AT ERAR
B ARBE5227 131,000 (=ZF —=
£ AR#29,883,432,0007T) °

AEBER S —UFEMERTFELE
i HY B 8 A R 155,570,000 78 ( = &
—=F : AR#¥9,594,0007T) - A&EE
BEEHAERBER  ESBETAK
K[ SHEMRA] o

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB25,227,131,000 (2013: RMB29,883,432,000).

The Group had written-off provision of RMB155,570,000
in 2014 (2013: RMB9,594,000) that was made in prior
years. The Group has sold all the related goods and
the amount has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
income statement.
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BRPWE 23 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
rEE
Group
—2-mFE —T=F
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEERE SERC Y Properties under development expected to
ERERAYE be completed:
RIEE &L A Within the normal operating cycle included
FTARBNEE under current assets 1,808,116 2,317,086
ERETE Balance comprises:
SRR Construction cost 1,189,729 1,839,558
+ 3 {F A Land use rights 507,680 395,038
RN Interest capitalised 110,707 82,490
1,808,116 2,317,086
rEE
Group
—F-mFE —T=FF
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R12@ AR To be recovered within 12 months 472,501 590,803
&R B IR 1 218 A & Uk Bl To be recovered after more than 12 months 1,335,615 1,726,283

1,808,116 2,317,086

RZE—NF+_A=+—H  &F
ROTEFAEAESERAFEASEAR
#108,948,000 t( — T —=F+— A
=+—H8 : AR#320,629,0007T) K 3
RAMEERT - MBEROFBEHR
FI5E33 ©

BEr-—ZT—NFEHFEERAELEZ
SR ER R B8A6%(— T — =4 :
10.99%) - BRFYHEETEMARFE o

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings were
secured by the properties under development of the
Group with net book value totalling RMB108,948,000
(31 December 2013: RMB320,629,000). Details of the
secured borrowings are in Note 33.

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount
of interest incurred eligible for capitalisation in 2014
was 8.46% (2013: 10.99%). The properties under
development are mainly located in the PRC.
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ESRHMEWRIE 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
r&E VNN
Group Company
—¥-mE  -F-= —g-mFE  —F-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT ARETF ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g E751)
(Restated)
E N Trade receivables 7,855,975 5,543,505 27,150 -
W EUEUERIEREE@)  Less: provision for impairment of
receivables (a) (212,155) (164,035) - -
B HEWFE 58 Trade receivables — net 7,643,820 5,379,470 27,150 =
H fth R R (D) Other receivables (o) 2,934,979 1,369,315 1,854,610 743,367
FERZRIE(©) Notes receivable (c) 205,764 535,796 - =
SRt ERENT Prepayments to suppliers 1,918,958 2,996,891 - =
HARE AL ER T Excess of input over output
value added tax 607,608 486,784 768 -
JEWL I B Interests receivable 8,182 21,255 = =
FEUAR B Dividends receivable 133,162 79,892 163,691 54,395
®e Deposits 238,495 247,169 - -
MERERYHIEQ) Finance lease receivables (d) 29,073 28,072 - =
13,720,041 11,144,644 2,046,219 797,762
B JEENERE S Less: non-current portion
— WARE ML ETE ~ Excess of input over output
value added tax (171,401) (106,074) - -
-&& - Deposits (71,852) (97,442) - =
— i ZE — Other receivables (1,313,254) (25,975) - -
-REHAERKTE - Finance lease receivables (28,544) (27,732) = =
—Hft - Others (529) (3,317) - =
(1,585,580) (260,540) - .
S Current portion 12,134,461 10884104 2,046,219 797,762

P B TR

TIEFAEmE ARKT72,735,0007T
—E—=H+ZfA=+—"H: AR
35,885,0007T ) (K{5E33(a)) °

As at 31 December 2014, certain bank borrowings
were secured by notes receivable with book value of
RMB72,735,000 (31 December 2013: RMB35,885,000)

(Note 33(a)).
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The Group’s credit term on sale of goods is from
1 month to 12 months. The aging analysis of trade
receivables is as follows:

24 EBFREMEBWREGE) 24

AEEEMHENRBHERAS -2+ =
@A - EZREFENRESITT -

AEE

Group
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(€= 0)
(Restated)
—F R Within 1 year 6,881,848 4,804,500
—EME Between 1 and 2 years 576,978 626,241
ME=4F Between 2 and 3 years 303,612 63,895
HBR=F Over 3 years 93,537 48,869
7,855,975 5,543,505
W BEBERE Less: provision for impairment losses (212,155) (164,035)
7,643,820 5,379,470

REEE S EWKIBEREENL NI EE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables

EIRER are denominated in the following currencies:
KEE
Group
—E—-mE —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&=E75))
(Restated)
AREE RMB 4,759,315 3,087,930
E UsD 2,049,028 1,667,132
BT EUR 506,512 266,752
HE JPY 102,461 103,636
o] Bk 2 2 hy 4 AED 83,681 96,248
HNEEL INR 75,715 =
HEBFREL LKR 35,440 249,898
BT HKD 32,594 20,688
HEETFLES TZS 5,332 =
HAth Others 205,897 51,221
7,855,975 5,543,505
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24

B REMBWREE)

(a)

B SRKKRBRERENESHN
T

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(a) Movement of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

—E-mF —E-=F

2014 2013

AREFIT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(ge=:5)

(Restated)

R—A—H At 1 January 164,035 96,892

FEU R IR BB E Provision for receivable impairment 137,493 137,827
F AT AT IR e Uncollectible receivables written off

JE U kT8 during the year (29,894) (60,232)

A B ] B Provision reversed during the year (59,479) (10,452)

R+=A=+—8H At 31 December 212,155 164,035

R-E—WE+-_A=+—8"
A R # 186,065,000 7t ( — &
— S el - — (B NS
204,311,0007T ) B & 5 & KT8
BEBERRE - BIEBELR
MR EREETEERES B
ZEBBRDE BEBEHRD -
TEERASHARZEABITIR
BERE ZSERFEZIRER
RIEMBRE DI -

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables
of RMB186,065,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB204,311,000) were past due but not
impaired. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The aging analysis of these
uncollateralised trade receivables is as follows:

—EF-mFE  —F=F

2014 2013

AR¥FT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&=751)

(Restated)

—EME Between 1 and 2 years 106,412 197,273
ME=4F Between 2 and 3 years 57,595 6,985
=== PAE Over 3 years 22,058 53
186,065 204,311
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24

290

B R EMBWREE)

(a)

(b)

(#&)
R=ZFE—NF+=-—A=+—8 -
H 5 ez IB AR 773,493,000
T(ZE—=F+=-A=+—8":
AR 426,800,0007T ) 2 R 1E °
R-_E—WNE+-_A=+—8"
BELEAARE212,155,0007T
—E-=F+-A=+—8B: A
R #164,035,0007T) ° fEU k1A
FRERINT -

24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(a)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables
of RMB773,493,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB426,800,000) were impaired. The amount
of the provision was RMB212,155,000 as
of 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013:
RMB164,035,000). The aging of these receivables
is as follows:

—E-mE —E—=F

2014 2013

AREFT AR TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(5 E5)

(Restated)

—EWE Between 1 and 2 years 470,566 321,074
ME =4 Between 2 and 3 years 246,017 56,910
=FLE Over 3 years 56,910 48,816
773,493 426,800

JRE UK 3R TRUUR {8 13 4 O 3 i K ¢ [l
BEFFATHER - fF ABERA
SE-RNBHBNRS T AR
(o] B i 35

RBEH EERRERA LM
JERREMEEE ASETE
BEEMERRELSE S ERR
HRER - HtEWGTEBARK
54,758,000 7T A Y 18 5 Hb 2= ) %
VEIRHR o

b fE 4 5K IE B 33 Bt 5E 53(d)
FIEBEGRTHABETNERAR
#1,309,142,000 T ( — & — =
F+-_HA=+—H: ARE¥
229,822,0007T) °

(b)

The additions and reversal of provisions for
impaired receivables have been included in
administrative expenses. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when
there is expectation that additional cash could not
be recovered.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security of trade receivables. Other
receivables of RMB54,758,000 are collateralised
by 2 real estate properties.

Included in other receivables were loans of
RMB1,309,142,000 to related parties as
disclosed in Note 53(d) (831 December 2013:
RMB229,822,000).
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24 ESZREMEWRIESZ) 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(c) FEWEEAERITEANLIEZRE (c) Notes receivable include bank acceptance bills

HEAHESE - DaT and commercial acceptance bills which are

analysed as follow:

AEH
Group
—E-mF —E-=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
($eE5))
(Restated)
AN TEE Commercial acceptance bill 4,722 18,513
RITHEHIEZ Bank acceptance bills 201,042 517,283
205,764 535,796
BN EA & 5 Fe U R T8 % E A FE U 3R The carrying amount of current trade receivables
ERMERAEEE AR EBERSE and other receivables approximated their fair
values.

(d =EBREEKRIE (d)  Finance lease receivables
HEBREHARWKSEBEENK Reconciliation between the gross investment in
REZFRERETAT - leases and the present value of minimum lease

payments receivable is set out below.
TEE
Group
—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
HEBEKRE Gross investment in leases 52,667 52,684
FEW SRR ET K Minimum lease payments receivables 52,667 52,684
A BRERSEEE Less: unearned finance income related
SR HY R B ER to minimum lease payments
BE WA receivables (23,594) (24,612)
FERSERENFKIRE Present value of minimum lease
payments receivables 29,073 28,072
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24 EBZRHMEWRKEE) 24 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(d) MEHERERHRIE(E) (d) Finance lease receivables (continued)
TEROWMAEEIZIBBEINEE D The table below analyses the Group’s gross
B E investment in leases by maturity:

—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5)
(Restated)
——%FR — Not later than 1 year 2,184 2,184
——FUERFR — Later than 1 year and not later than 5
years 6,710 8,736
—hFNAE — Later than 5 years 43,773 41,764
52,667 52,684
25 BEEN 25 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
bS] VN
Group Company
—E-mEF —T-=f —E2-mF —T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

(i E5)
(Restated)
FREE A A KRR IIER SR Contract costs incurred plus
attributable profits 19,263,407 11,830,949 - -
B S RERRNR Less: progress billings to date (18,656,513) (10,508,310 - -
B Less: provision (80,856) (23,644) = =
ETREANEERER Net balance sheet position
FEMR for ongoing contracts 526,038 1,298,995 - =
25T Presented as:
EREFAHTEFR Amounts due from customers
for contract work 2,017,763 1,493,175 - -
ENEEAHTIRZE Amounts due to customers
for contract work (1,491,725) (194,180) - -
526,038 1,298,995 - -
FR - AEEEMEATFEEL AR During the year, the Group had written-off provisions of
#AR®5,066,000(ZF—=4F : A RMB5,066,000 (2013: RMB17,440,000) that was made
R #17,440,0007T) - HE&FEE T A in prior years. The amount has been included in ‘cost of
FIHEKA] - sales’ in the income statement.
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26 BAREEZBESTKRNEH 26
AEE(RE)

FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

bS] N
Group Company
—2-RE —T-=F —B-DE —T-=f
2014 2013 2014 2013
AE®F AREFT AR®FT AREF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets:
ik Listed equity interests 4,242 - - _
ERA40b) Foreign exchange contracts (b) - 5,405 - -
4,242 5,405 - -
PRAE: Financial liabilities:
=eMHEER@) Liabilities from gold leasing (a) (48,082) = = =
H5¢HERBENE Gold leasing forward contracts (a) (4,823) = = =
A 4(0b) Foreign exchange contracts (b) (13,990) = = =
(66,895) - , |
(62,653) 5,405 - -

(a) FR - FEBEREAFRIEITER
ARI([HBEERIT]) T — R
Wik o BEZSHE - FEEX
HAPBRRTHESESWREEER
EEZEERXRF(ILEZEEXR
% Fr 1) LA A R # 50,800,000 7T
HE - REHAR - BIAEMKBE
365H - FEERER LFE=ES
RGMUNERMELNESE=S
WERBEER —HEEPEIRE
17 REBHMAFBBEIRITHREES
EEEMEAE-_ZT—NF+=
A=+—HBHAABEHEERS
‘et - R-_ZET—WE+_-H4
=t—H cRHaEAAEEE
gz A ARE2,718,0007T (=
T—ZFE) o

R AEERAEBESER
BEELENE TRRIZEHE
HREBIHB LS EERBASE
=  HE-_T-—NE+_-A
—t+—HLEFE BAmgRH
AHRAREBEEEHEEASARE
4,823,0007C( & —=F : £)

During the year, SCC entered into a series of
agreements with the Bank of China Co.,Ltd
(“BOC”). Pursuant to the agreements, SCC leased
gold from BOC and subsequently sold them
through the Shanghai Gold Exchange (“SGE”) at
RMB50,800,000. On maturity date, which is 365
days after the commencement of the lease, SCC
will repurchase same quantities of gold from SGE
at the then prevailing market price and return
to BOC, together with the rental charges. The
obligation to return to BOC the same quantities
of gold on the maturity date was recognised as
financial liabilities at fair value on 31 December
2014. As at 31 December 2014, gains on
changes in fair value of the financial liabilities were
RMB2,718,000 (2013: Nil).

Simultaneously, SCC entered into in forward
contracts to purchase same quantity of gold
on the maturity date at a specified price for the
purpose of hedging certain risks arising from gold
price fluctuation. For the year ended 31 December
2014, losses on changes in fair value of forward
contracts to purchase gold were RMB4,823,000
(2013: Nil).
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26

294

BAREEEBESZTHRNER
EE(RER)#®

b) MARITEEHIESHNBERN

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) The notional principal amounts of the outstanding

SREMT forward foreign exchange contracts are as follows:
piS-1- b N
Group Company
—Z-|mE =% —E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT  AREFT  ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SNEE 4 Foreign exchange contracts
-BHETHARYE - Seling USD for RMB 66,085 31,400 - =
~EHBUTAR®E - Seling EUR for RMB 3,804 101 - =
-UAREBABT - Buying EUR with RMB - 447 = =
- UBTEAZET - Buying USD with EUR 3,780 = = -
73,759 31,948 = =

EIEE AR BN [ KR bR ET SR HA AN
AL - ZERHIINEGHNITFEE
HEEE - AR BEEHBEEARK
21,468,0007C 1A = F — MY 4F Uy 55 3% P #E
B(ZE—=F : s AR®2,295,000
JL) e

The management entered into forward foreign exchange
contracts for hedging the fluctuation of the exchange rate
of foreign currencies. These forward foreign exchange
contracts are not qualified for hedge accounting. Losses
of the fair value changes amounting to RMB21,468,000
were recognised in the income statement in 2014 (2013:
gain of RMB2,295,000).
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27 EHBITER 27
EFRTEBAERER - BNEER
TEHRR(E RS PAEERRRER

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Certain bank balances were pledged deposits which will
be released upon the settlement of the repayment of the
bank loans and the use of credit amount.

% @OmFE —FT—=F
2014 2013
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5 ES))
(Restated)
RITIESIEIR (HY7£33) Collateral for bank borrowings (Note 33) 23,000 54,164
RREAENERER Guarantee deposits for issuance
of letters of credit 278,394 311,054
BITHENEZHIERTR Guarantee deposits for issuance
of bank acceptance bill 66,330 124,542
BITEREE S MM ERTR Guarantee deposits for performance
security of construction contract 5,917 6,975
FETEE M ENERTR Guarantee deposits for construction
of pre-sale properties 118,012 140,600
Ht Others 31,211 6,315
522,864 643,650
28 BEeRREZEY 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REBEFRNTF0.35EE3.33ENRE
MRS EEBMNEHEI T ¢

The balance of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents

with an annual interest rate from 0.35% to 3.33% are
analysed as follows:

X£EE LN
Group Company
—E-mEF —T-=% —EZ-F —T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFr AREFIT ARE®F7 ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& &3)
(Restated)
ROEIRTHRES Cash at bank and on hand 4,828,610 5,076,449 61,742 206,467
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28

29

296

HENRESZEEBY &) 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
AEBRSMBESSEBYNEEENLT The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
H| LA : equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
PN~ | N
Group Company
“E-NF 2= “Z-NF —E-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AEEFT AREFIT ARETF AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(5751
(Restated)
AR RMB 2,136,087 3,103,361 55,930 200,681
e usD 1,202,485 1,091,373 - -
BT EUR 709,151 504,639 - -
HEEL INR 255,327 = = =
H JPY 182,861 171,349 - -
HEFREL LKR 89,403 26,566 - =
B/t 25 e Fr 0 AED 26,647 25,199 - =
BT HKD 15,928 21,705 5,812 5,786
Hit Others 210,721 132,257 - -
4,828,610 5,076,449 61,742 206,467
REBENTB I EABTEHEHEN 29 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
BE CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE
—ZE—NF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARHEFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAESA A ERMASD Huangshi Raece Technology Co., Ltd
BRAR(HTaE15(8)) (@) (Note 15(a)) (a) 6,860 =
FMNAEMMMEILAR AT Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry
(Ht5#15(a)) (o) Limited (Note 15(a)) (b) 84,124 =
90,984 -
W B () Less: Provision (a) (360) -
90,624 -
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29

30

REBEATEIERZENEN 29 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
BE#E) CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE (continued)
(a) R-ZZE—MWFE+=-_ANB X5 (a) On 8 December 2014, Tianma Company entered
NREFEITRA K EREMNER into an agreement with Shenzhen Tiantuo
AR RIBRAB DT HEE - A Electrooptical Technology Co., Ltd (“&YIITKHE
4 A R #6,500,000 7T B & & & BERAMAR AT (“Tiantuo Company”) to sell the
FHEAORKR X EEMRND BRE A A 20% interests of Huangshi Raece Technology Co.,
(TEAWE])20%EZR - EAkH Ltd (“Huangshi Raece”) at a price of approximately
RIZE W MOR A KR8 360,0007T I RMB6,500,000. The investment of Huangshi
WEHHPEAREEARIEE Raece were written down by RMB360,000 and
AEBEHEENKRE - X FHR was reclassified as investments in associates
“E-—RFARNTEK o classified as held-for-sale. The transaction was
estimated to be completed within 2015.
) IRARREFEFMEMNM (o)  Beijing Company originally held 45% interests of
MEITERAA(TREMEMNA Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited
All) M4s%nEzm - BRARE (“FMTINMMEIAR AR (“AVIC Taizhou
84,124,0007C - R ==& — U &F Company”) amounting to RMB84,124,000. On
+TZAZ+HB  ERARFRE 25 December 2014, Beijing Company decided
15 AT 2R M A B YR R AR dE R to put the interests of AVIC Taizhou Company to
EERSMEE  REERAA China Beijing Equity Exchange (“dt mEHEA: 5 F)
R#¥91,811,000T - BIEEA = for biding, the biding price was RMB91,811,000.
REERI2E A NEEERE Management intended to dispose of the
YHAREFSEFMEMNAEM investment within 12 months of the end of
BERAERNBEANRE s BAEGEE the reporting period and therefore reclassified
HEMNKRE - the interests of AVIC Taizhou Company into
investments in associates classified as held-for-
sale.
R AR B A7 R E 30 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
FEARALT
Group and Company
gt ] e
Number of share Capital
gL
NER Total LER  ROEE
Domestic HR  Numberof  Ordinary Share &t
Shares H Shares shares shares premium Total
T T TR AREFr AEEFT  AREFT
(Thousands) ~ (Thousands)  (Thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-Z-—=£-f-8" As at 1 January, 31 December 2013
+-A=1t-Bk and 31 December 2014
ZE-WETZA=+-H 832,974 277,658 1,110,632 1,110,632 1294633 2,405,265

FRERRIERBRAERAT 2014FEHE 297



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Hif#E 31 OTHER RESERVES
BfENE
BREN%
e  MERKE  ENE
4REE Revaluaon  EBEA
Efifife gain on Bf
EEBH  Available- transfer Re-measure-
N for-sale  of owner- ments i
Statutory  financial  occupied  ofpost-  HEEE
BRGE general assets propertyto employment  Currency
Capital reserve  revaluation  investment benefit translation @
reserve fund reserve property  obligations  differences Total
NEEFT AEEFT AREFr AREfT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
PS4 Group
RZE-=F—F-HH Balanceasat 1 January 2013,
£ g as restated 312504 70001 158 119204 48 (4100 469136
Wiﬂj’é HEEN Fair value gain on available-for-
NEENE sale financial assets - _ 5,607 i - i} 5607
BEMZERAMEN  Revaluation gain on transfer of
Eftli owner-ocoupied property to
investment property = = = 4,028 - - 4008
EFERBEANET  Re-measurements of post -
employment benefit obligations - - - = 984 = 1984
NEREEE Currency translation differences - = - . - (49,127) (49,127)
Eﬂiﬁfﬂxﬁx%’émﬁ@ Transactions with non-controling
interests (10,387) - - - - - (10,387)
E Wfﬁﬁéﬁﬂlilﬁﬁi Share of reserve of an associate
FERBREESTSM  arising from its transactions with
EEMEE non-controlling interests (17,297) - - - - - (17,297)
FEBEN LY Share of an associate’s other
2ENE comprehensive income (325) - - - - - (325)
READRAE Appropriation of retained earnings - 24,083 = 4 - - 24,083
BOUEMMHEESSE  Recycle of far value gains on
BENAL BENE avaiable-for-sale financial
assets on disposal - - (5,430) - - - (5,430)
RZE-=£+_f Balance as at 31 December 2013,
ST-HMES 5] asrestated 284,585 94,084 16,010 123,322 (2,502) (93,227) 422,272
RZE-ME—FA—HH  Balance as at 1 January 2014
Bg i as per above 84585 94084 16010 12332 RS0 @321 422
ENHSERETEL  Re-measurements of post -
employment benefit obligations - - - - (7,870) - (7.810)
BOLENMEESRE  Reoycle of fair value gains on
EEND R BELE avallable-for-sale financial
assets on disposal - - (2,79) - - - (2,796)
NEREER Currency translation differences - - - - - (385,400)  (385,409)
BERRRFERN Transactions with non-controling
R5(a) interests (a) 2,907,121 = = - - - 2007121
AbFEED) Merger reserve (b) (2,320,979) - - - - - (2320979
ElHEAARA Share of reserve of an associate
FFRRBRERRSM  arsing from its transactions with
EENEBE 1) non-controling interests
(Note 15(a)) (20,813) - - - = = (20813)
ﬁé@ﬁ‘% BERFAM  Recycle of share of an associae's
i other comprehensive income 12,098 - - - = = 12,008
fE W SRTHEM Share of an associate’s other
2EkE comprehensive income (47) = = - = - (@)
kﬁxﬁﬁ@ Wik Appropriation of retained earnings - 52212 - - = - 52,21
i Balance as at 31 December 2014
TZAZ TR 861,965 146,296 13214 123,322 (10372 (478636) 655,789
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31

Hitbfk s (#) OTHER RESERVES (continued)
KAEAE
EEBER (R3HER)
DES Retained
Statutory earnings/
general (Accumulated
reserve fund losses)
AREFoT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAF] Company
RZZE—=F—F—HH4%# Balance as at 1 January 2013 70,001 (395,981)
FREF Profit for the year - 449,937
REVEERB#MBAES Appropriation to statutory general
reserve fund 24,083 (24,083)
RZE—=F Balance as at 31 December 2013
TZA=T—HHEHR 94,084 29,873
F N H) Profit for the year L 442,939
REVEERBAES Appropriation to statutory general
reserve fund 52,212 (52,212)
N_E— IT_fli Balance as at 31 December 2014
—A= HH) &R 146,296 420,600

REEFBEEBAPFER - AEBEHH
BB A RN BEFE R ERR
KA BRIk M AT - BB ENERE
HRES  NERERFREREXEERE
T MARBESORBEZAM10%5T
R EEECHEREZHIAMES50%
Bk - BANBEARERREXRERE
EHRBERTEMNBARESERE

REZeMER  REEZSARAREN
REERIIEE  PERBERES AR
BARLEESIRE -

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should
make appropriations from the net profit to the reserve
fund, discretionary surplus reserve and the enterprise
expansion fund, after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years, and before profit distributions to the
shareholders. The appropriations to the reserve fund
are made at 10% of the net profit until the balance of
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
amounts of appropriations to the discretionary surplus
reserve and the enterprise expansion fund are determined
by the directors of the PRC subsidiaries.

Upon approval from the board of directors, the reserve
fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to
increase capital; the enterprise expansion fund can be
used to expand production or to increase capital.
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31

300

HAthf 5 ()
(a) EFERRFEEORS

(i)

(i

RZZE—EmFENAZFN
H XENBTEHY
436,569,000 & X 5 A Ix
ZREREELRBAR L
BRE70%E G ~ EHt
““Tﬁﬂ%%m%mh

HEBERAREXRS
1“*%%@&YHTWE%
55 1)90% B9 B% 17 LA K R Il
HEFREBHEF100%
mﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%
EmEHRFARNLE AR
¢‘HEAEE%‘W
Z2nmT

31 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(a) Transaction with non-controlling interests

(0

On 28 August 2014, Tianma acquired 70%
shares in its subsidiary, Shanghai Tianma,
40% shares in its subsidiary, Chengdu
Tianma, and 90% shares in its associates
Wuhan Tianma Microelectronics Company
Limited (“Wuhan Tianma”) and 100%
shares of interests of Shenzhen Opto-
electronics and Shanghai Opto-electronics
at a consideration of issuing approximately
436,569,000 A shares of Tianma in total.
The effect of change in the ownership
interests of such companies on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company
during the year is as follows:

ABR®FT
RMB’000
B FF1%8 P M 3R g 2 UCER Consideration received from non-controlling
BB interests 4,202,997
B B RERRHYIEIEAR AR R Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
R AREE interests recognised (1,549,467)
HEEENBENEZR Excess of interests disposed of 2,653,530

BREFEEFEBEEZ
Be([hHREES |)EFE
ZF A [2014]8585R KO HLTE -
AER-_Z—WMFHLAT
HARABRE A EHITL
120,932,000 f& A g -+
EEESBBAEOAR
¥ 1,765,609,000 7t ° 10
BREROBETEERERS
A% - FTSE I8 F5EY
A AN R ¥ 1,731,828,000
T o REBEITEHTKE -
RER IR AL N4 A R
120,932,0007T ° B FE#R%
J% 3R 2 U B A X (B B 1
Tn1& &9 FE 12 AR AR PR R = AR

E%ﬁi%%ﬁﬂ’m%%ﬁ%ﬂ@

(i

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

On 10 September 2014, according
to the permission of China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) [2014]
No0.858, Tianma issued approximately
120,932,000 A shares in private placement
and raised a total gross proceeds of
RMB1,765,609,000. After deduction of
transaction costs that attribute directly to
the share issuing, net proceeds amounted
to approximately RMB1,731,828,000.
After completion of the issuance, the
share capital of Tianma was increased
by approximately RMB120,932,000, the
net difference between the consideration
received from non-controlling interests and
the increased carrying amounts of non-
controlling interests was recognised as
capital reserve.
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31 Hftt@EEe)

(a)

(b)

BEFERRREBNRS ()

31 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(a) Transaction with non-controlling interests
(continued)

(ii) (4&) (ii) (continued)

AREFT
RMB’000

B FEPEAR AR B A 5 L ER Y Consideration received from non-controlling
KRB interests 1,731,828

B B ERRIEERAR R Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling

R AREE interests recognised (1,478,557)
HEESANBLEEE Excess of interests disposed of 253,271

i) MHZZE—HEFENAZTN
H XEUREBARK
3,739,000 T Y BB EL T
A]Tianma U.S. Company
Inc([EBX5 1) #910%A%
o ERRXNEHERER
BHREANHERRGER

(iif) On 28 August 2014, Tianma acquired
10% shares in its subsidiary, Tianma U.S.
Company Inc. (“American Tianma”), at a
consideration of RMB3,739,000. The effect
of change in the ownership interests of
American Tianma on the equity attributable
to owners of the Company during the year

BAEARGEESNZEN is as follows:
I
AR TFT
RMB’000
FEg JEIE AR IR SR == A Carrying amount of non-controlling interests
BREA acquired 4,059
B AT IEIERRAR R MERS  Less: Consideration paid to non-controlling
R ME interests (3,739)
FrigtEzsm iR it =58 Excess of interests acquired 320
EOHRE (b)  Merger reserve

BHREBERFERETRBFAK
WEEBEEFRARILESFR
ERARHE T S A RO LB -

RERBWELBIETR
RIS EF 2 HBAAE T 31T
AR (A%

Merger reserve represents the consideration paid
by Tianma for acquiring entire equity interest in
Shanghai Opto-electronics and Shenzhen Opto-
electronics through issuing Tianma A shares:

A shares issued by Tianma for acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Shanghai
Opto-electronics and Shenzhen Opto-
electronics (Thousand shares) 158,971

BRARAR(EE Fair value per A share (RMB per share)
(BRRAARBTIIR) 14.6
KREARETIT) Consideration (RMB’000) 2,320,979
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KRR TR 2

R-ZEBE——FENAAB » KAAAETAK
LA AR 2781,674,000 7T A 7K
AOR B ATIRRR 38 % ([ K AR AR AT 2 BR 75
F 1) FERARFAMBEE - AHURII(FF
BARAF35.63%BENARDFKRE) &
IEHERMFEERAR (Tt REE]) -
DREABBEZRMNBRARNBSE
ERE - WEXKARB AT FEFHFA]
RO EBREGRAREI47TEIRE
801,634,000 A2 Bl A&/ °

KARBAT BB ESBRARBERE
EEMERRES  XEERFMA
Bt 2 W EAE A BB R
AR RER - KARRAIRREFH 5
BAREN R REWAE : ()BERA
REMERFERIRARERENAL - ()8
XERNRNARAPTA EMIBE R KR
REEEEANRE  Iii)EEZER

FHAL

32

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

The Company issued an aggregate principal amount of
RMB2,781,674,000 perpetual subordinated convertible
securities (“PSCS”) on 5 September 2012 to AVIC
International, the holding company, AVIC Shenzhen,
the Company’s shareholder holding 35.63% of the
equity interests of the Company, and Beijing Raise
Technology Company Limited (It RIGERIEERE QR
(“Beijing Raise”), respectively as part of the purchase
consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries. These PSCS
being convertible into 801,634,000 domestic shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of RMB3.47
per share.

The PSCS constitutes direct, unsecured and
subordinated obligations of the Company and rank
pari passu without any preference or priority among
themselves. In the event of the winding-up of the
Company, the rights and claims of the PSCS holder(s)
would; (i) rank ahead of those persons whose claims are
in respect of any class of share capital of the Company,
(i) be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of
all other present and future preference creditors of the
Company, and (i) pari passu with each other.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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KARBTBRRE S (#F)

KARBAMBES L ED A kB
WK AR AR T3 78 75 B 31T B i 8
(BREZA)REARREERNSRIZF
BB ENEFLA=T—ABERHE
NEEDIRNIE - MHEAZ KRB A
IRE SRR » AR R BRI KA
IR AR RT 8 B RE 2 B0 IR BOR B HI 9 TR 5K
B e KARBABRRERTE ATESE
MR ARRAEEBRBEARTA
B B3 BUR LT A B K AR AR A 2 B R
MBI HR D IRR K ©

IKARMAT B E B AR RIKAIR
MAMRESBTE B EERIZERE
ARE3.47 T K AR AR AT AR E 55
RAER - MR KA IR AT AR R 5 15
KPR R R IRRPTIR - BIR(E R
BITAN  BREAFEREIREMEESE
THAE o KARMABBESTH AT
TR PR B R B0 ok AR AR A 3R B 7E
7 ({BRETE5BMARRRRE LY
ERZMBERAAES LR ES
BMA DX - BIFESRR EHRRIER
TREARFRERTE ¢+ R(i)EFRAGET
FrABEREDI ROER (BIREARR £
BRAINRFEARWERA TR

BIKARAR AT RE 75 % 17 A 318 12(@
ASERERE - AR 2L RE K
ARBABRBRESFGEEE R (A
FEBBD ) K ARB AR E R SRNER
HEZR SO AR AR P4 R 38 75 (R SR P 8
HARR HI R SCATIR ©

KARBABEESHE ABEERNE
1R R K AR AR AT R IR RE 25 45 B A T & UK
ARBBRRARGRESE  HEXREINE

LR -

32

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES (continued)

The PSCS have no maturity date and conferred a right
to receive distributions from and including the date of
issue of the PSCS at 1% per annum on any outstanding
principal amount of distribution payable annually in arrears
on 31 July each year, subject to the terms of the PSCS.
The Company was entitled to elect to defer a distribution
pursuant to the terms of the PSCS. Any arrears of
distributions due in respect of the PSCS would be
extinguished by the Company in full through the delivery
by the Company of its domestic shares issuable by it
upon the exercise of the PCSC holder’s conversion right.

The PSCS holders can convert PSCS into domestic
shares at any time from the date of issue of the PSCS,
subject to relevant terms as provided in the terms of the
PSCS, at conversion price of RMB3.47. The conversion
price will be subject to adjustment for bonus issue,
conversion of capital reserve and other dilutive events.
The PSCS holders may convert such portion of the PSCS
on condition that: (i) the conversion would not cause the
Company to contravene provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited including but not limited
to the minimum public float requirement under the Listing
Rules; and (ii) conversion would comply with all applicable
laws and regulations (including but not limited to the
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers).

On or at any time after 12 months after the date of issue
of the PSCS, the Company may, at its sole discretion
and pursuant to the terms of the PSCS, elect to convert
the PSCS in whole (but not in part into domestic shares),
subject to the provisions of restriction on conversion set
out in the terms of the PSCS.

The PSCS holder(s) were not entitled to receive notice of,

attend or vote at general meetings of the Company by
reason only of its being a PSCS holder.
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33 fEX 33 BORROWINGS
BRBEREBITEREEMER 20 Borrowings include bank borrowings and other
S ¢ borrowings which are analysed as follows:
X£EE NG
Group Company
—2-RE —T-=% —2-DE =%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARETT  AREFT  ARBETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

)
(Restated)
FRB Non-current
BITER Bank borrowings
—B2#&#(@) - pledged (a) 2,458,844 1,799,922 - =
—BERD) ~ guaranteed (b) 1,297,163 1,504,110 - =
i - unsecured 5,623,975 3,391,519 959,000 492,000
HHZE () Medium term notes (c) 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000
BH(d) Debentures (d) 398,768 397,729 - -
BEFERM2530c) Related party borrowings
(Note 53(c)) 1,188,623 303,676 - -
% BHINE(e) Interest-free government
loans (g) 446,840 894,701 - -
W IERBE RS  Less: current portion of non-
current borrowings (1,536,929)  (2,057,133) (32,000) (17,000)
10,477,284 6,834,524 1,527,000 1,075,000
& Current
RITER Bank borrowings
—B2##H() - pledged (a) 137,735 283,385 - =
—BERDb) - guaranteed (b) 242,611 684,313 = X
—EIEA - unsecured 5,851,895 9,056,853 2,050,000 956,000
BERER2550) Related party borrowings
(Note 53(c)) 1,660,303 1,122,845 300,000 -
ERBETNINHDS Current portion of non-current
borrowings 1,536,929 2,057,133 32,000 17,000

9,429,473 13,204,529 2,382,000 973,000

19,906,757 20,039,053 3,909,000 2,048,000
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33 fEFE) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) R—_Z—NWFE+-_A=+— (a) At 31 December 2014, bank loans of
H AXEBRTERARE RMB2,596,579,000 (31 December 2013:
2,5696,579,000 7t ( — & — = RMB2,083,307,000) of the Group were secured
F+_A=+—H8H: ARE¥® by the following:
2,083,307,0007T ) LA T~ 51| %% I8 £
AR

PN | VN
Group Company
“E-mF —T—=F “E-mF 2=
2014 2013 2014 2013
AE¥F AREFT AR®F ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(=51
(Restated)
BF(Mz11) Buildings (Note 11) 1,213,671 1,426,288 - -
REWE(HE12)  Investment properties
(Note 12(b)) 889,850 1,200,649 - -
TR E7) Land use rights (Note 7) 645,641 504,031 - =
WET RH#E(H11)  Machinery and equipment
(Note 11) 294,643 - S -
BEMYE(MF23)  Properties under
development (Note 23) 108,948 320,629 - -
EEARKEE Pledged notes receivable
(Hizt24) (Note 24) 72,735 35,885 - -
HR R BAE(ff528)  Exploration and extraction
rights (Note 8) 64,477 65,077 S -
BEBRITER Pledged bank deposits
(Hizte7) (Note 27) 23,000 54,164 - -

3,312,965 3,606,723 = -
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B (&) 33
b R-E—mE+-A=+-— (b)
B AEERTEIARKE

BORROWINGS (continued)
At 31 December 2014, bank loans of
RMB1,5839,774,000 (31 December 2013:

1,539,774,000 7t ( = & — = RMB2,188,423,000) of the Group were supported

EF+-fF=+—H8H: AR
2,188,423,0007T ) B 5 #E R

by the following guarantees:

o
PN | FAON
Group Company
—E-QmE —E-=F —E-mE —E-ZF
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT ANREFT ARETT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E5)
(Restated)
sppSill AVIC Shenzhen - 129,614 - -
i BB AVIC International 280,000 714,700 = =
R T Aviation Industry 242,611 = = =
£=h Third Parties 1,017,163 1,344,109 = =
1,539,774 2,188,423 = =

ARBER-ZE—=FMWA++
ARSHTREEECEEARS
TRARINEMm  R_E—=Fh
AABEAMEBITRENSN
BEREEZRTEEREARE
600,000,0007T &F FI| & £ 4.78% HY
FHER - EEREMAEES R
THERAAFARNEE - BEW
ARBERETEERETIE
LREE -

AR AR AR F HEERE 5t
HERREHZBEGETAHD
H IR R AR EREER o

The Company obtained the registration with
China Government Securities Depository Trust &
Clearing Co., Ltd. on 17 April 2013 and issued
4.78% medium-term notes at a total nominal
value of RMB600,000,000 to institutional investors
in interbank market on 6 May 2013. The maturity
date of the notes shall be five years from the issue
date at approximate nominal value. The fair value
of the liability was determined at issuance of the
notes and it was equal to the nominal value.

AVIC International, the Company’s holding
company, provided a full unconditional irrevocable
joint and several liability guarantee for the
medium-term notes.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(CENED

(d)

MomER - T—=F_A_-_++
H #1714 83Z A R 400,000,000
TTRRAEES - RAIEHFBER =
E—NFE-_A=-+/NBEH I
R EEEMEE.04%51 8 » FRanE
AR —ZZE—RF_A=-++BK
FEERED A H100% /) A5 5800
2 RALMAFE(F )/ EE

EE@EHARES

REOEAEENR_ZT—RF_A
—t+tHAB0RBMARFESFF
B AERE L IR BEZFH)H R
EE = 1001E££E o ffapEI
BTEZEERE  AREFOFN
RN EED AT T B AR

\XO

MAREHFFAEAZRL LM
FIRMBEHE  AREHFBEA
AL B B SRR e E LA E R 100%
MASEMET KA B
fEREER 2R BH ABES

REEARBEHFBAFMFINGE
AR A F135.63% & # 8 AR A
E)ER - N B E+ =
A=+—8  ArEHHOEHEK
KA AN R#398,768,000C( =&
—=e=ak Bf= g 3 0 A RS
397,729,0007T) °

33

BORROWINGS (continued)

(d)

Fiyta issued corporate debenture amounted to
RMB400,000,000 on 27 February 2013. The
corporate debenture will mature on 26 February
2018 and carries an fixed annual interest rate of
5.04%. Fiyta may redeem the corporate debenture
on 27 February 2016 in whole at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date.

Fiyta may, at its option, choose to increase the
interest rate of the corporate debenture from 1
point basis to 100 point basis by notifying the
corporate debenture holders 30 days before 27
February 2016. If Fiyta does not exercise the
option, the interest rate of the corporate debenture
will remain unchanged in the remaining period
before maturity.

After the issuance of notification to corporate
debenture holders on whether to increase the
interest rate, the corporate debenture holders may
choose to require Fiyta to redeem the corporate
debenture, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100% of principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

The corporate debenture of Fiyta is guaranteed
by AVIC Shenzhen, the Company’s shareholder
holding 35.63% of the equity interests of the
Company. As at 31 December 2014, the
amortised cost of the corporate debenture
is RMB398,768,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB397,729,000).
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(CENE )

C)

RZZE—ZFTF+LA+=H " H
Shanghai Guosheng Target
Group Co., Ltd. £ % £ /& ™
BRBETREERARK
1,250,000,000 7t * A R E &
TFT-LCDEE# - £ BB ER
BE_E—ZFEFtAt+=HEZ=
T—RAFtAT=BAoHEE
WEHFMIEREER FHE
KA E BB R T 45 I £ 5.76% 5T
B EHFEFNAAREEAEAR
#51,060,002,0007T ° FT/55KIB4E
FHERAABERNZEEAR
189,998,000 T /1R B % B E R
MFZ - TEBRAEELEWRA -
IHEEW A S EIEREE EM A
T HA S -

R—ZTE——-_F+tA+=H
Shanghai Guosheng Target
Group Co., Ltd.82 F8}EFi#%
R EERIHBEEREE_Z—t
F+HA+=H " BEHEEREEE
REH - MEFTEH - EIBXE
TIN5 76% MR EMRFIE - BRI
LEFTNARBRESRE - EFAT
ERBER - BEHFAETHEAR
¥ 921,231,000 7t &2 [ BR ™ B A
R # 823,618,000 7T [H Ky = %8 A
R 97,613,000 7t J5 #& R & &
NS HE  BEehEEEEE
WM TAEAFHAEE - R
ZTE—NERZZZTE—Z=ZF 7
B X 5 BRI ' B F = %
A R # 44,851,000 T & A R
48,728,0007C - M =Z T — M
+-A=+—8 FRsHEZRN
BNHAER > B & A R #6242,611,000
TL BEFIR —FNEE -

33

BORROWINGS (continued)

(e

Interest-free loan of RMB1,250,000,000 was
granted by Shanghai Guosheng Target Group Co.,
Ltd. on behalf of Shanghai municipal government
on 13 July 2010 for constructing the TFT-LCD
production line. The interest-free government loan
will be repaid by installments from 13 July 2010
to 13 July 2015, and is guaranteed by Aviation
Industry. Using the prevailing market interest rates
for an equivalent loan of 5.76%, the fair value
of the loan is estimated at RMB1,060,002,000.
The difference of RMB189,998,000 between the
gross proceeds and the fair value of the loan is
the benefit derived from the interest free loan and
is recognised as deferred revenue. The deferred
revenue will be amortised within the useful life of
the relevant assets.

On 12 July 2012, Shanghai Guosheng Target
Group Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Opto-electronics
modified the terms of the interest free loan by
extending the maturity of the interest free loan
to 13 July 2017. On the date of modification,
Shanghai Opto-electronics re-measured the
interest-free loan by discounting the revised
future cash flows at the original effective interest
rate of 5.76%. The difference of RMB97,613,000
between the re-measured amount of
RMB921,231,000 and the original carrying amount
of RMB823,618,000 is recognised as an additional
government grant and will be amortised within
the remaining useful life of relevant assets. During
2014 and 2013, the interest expenses amortised
at RMB44,851,000 and RMB48,728,000 using
effective interest rate respectively. On 31
December 2014, the current portion of non-
current borrowing includes RMB242,611,000
which is repayable within one year.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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()

(4%) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)
EZHEmENLN T EA(E - () The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:
r&H PN
Group Company
“E-|mE —T-=F% “Z-mF “T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT AREF7 ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(f=51)
(Restated)
AR RMB 15,247,178 15,292,849 3,909,000 2,048,000
e usb 2,763,428 3,249,968 - -
BT EUR 1,491,563 1,229,432 - -
HINRTT SGD 218,296 - - =
BT HKD 158,391 241,381 - =
H JPY 21,887 17,734 - -
) CHF 5,644 6,492 - -
BTERL UGX 370 1,197 - -
19,906,757 20,039,053 3,909,000 2,048,000
REEFE B - 8RR FI =& g) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate

REMEHEEBMRARIT

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the
balance sheet dates are as follows:

AEE 9N
Group Company
“E-NE —T-=F —E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AEEFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(f2=51)
(Restated)
—FR Within 1 year 9,429,473 13,204,529 2,382,000 973,000
—ZWE Between 1 and 2 years 3,517,983 2,620,371 627,000 475,000
MERF Between 2 and 5 years 4,126,786 3,105,549 900,000 600,000
BRAENZHEE  Wholly repayable within
5 years 17,074,242 18,930,449 3,909,000 2,048,000
HBBRhE Over 5 years 2,832,515 1,108,604 - =
19,906,757 20,039,053 3,909,000 2,048,000
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33 fER#E) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)
) (#&) () (continued)
JEENHERSR 1T R E M fE B B HR 1B The maturity of non-current bank and other
AR borrowings is as follows:
AEE KD
Group Company
—¥-mF —T-=F —B-mF —F-=F%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AEEFT AREFIT AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E5I)
(Restated)
BRRAFNZHEE Wholly repayable within
5 years 7,644,769 5,725,920 1,527,000 1,075,000
WIER2HEANTENEE  Not wholly repayable within
5 years 2,832,515 1,108,604 - -
10,477,284 6,834,524 1,527,000 1,075,000
(@) REEBNERAEZDT ¢ (@)  The effective interest rates at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:
r5E
Group
“E-MF —Z-=f%
2014 2013
AR E 97 & BT AEK 9 BT AT
RMB UsDh EUR HKD RMB USD EUR HKD
RITER Bank borrowings 583%  4.02% 445%  3.38% 5.64% 3.52% 3.25% 3.05%
310 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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33 fER#) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)
@ (&) (@  (continued)
PN
Company
—ZE—NF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARH AR
RMB RMB
IRITIER Bank borrowings 5.90% 5.73%
(h  AEBRARGOERFEER (h)  The interest rate exposure of the borrowings of
UM the Group and the Company are as follows:
biS-1] N
Group Company
“E-mF —E-=f —B-QmF —2—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT ARETR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(=751
(Restated)

FEER Borrowings at floating rates 9,653,862 9,228,798 3,009,000 1,148,000
TERER Borrowings at fixed rates 10,252,895 10,810,255 900,000 900,000
i Total 19,906,757 20,039,053 3,909,000 2,048,000
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33 fEFE) 33 BORROWINGS (continued)
0] JERBEEH EERERERA 0] The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-
AEEWT : current borrowings carried at fixed interest rate
are as follows:
fREE DREE
Carrying amount Fair value
—Z-|mE =% —E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARETFT ANEEFT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5)
(Restated)
BITEH Bank borrowings 3,447,505 2,033,467 3,330,476 1,989,667
hHiEE Medium-term notes 600,000 600,000 558,962 575,302
&% Debentures 398,768 397,729 376,364 392,001
4,446,273 3,031,196 4,265,802 2,956,970
34 BUNFFERRMEEW A 34 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

GRANTS

The amounts represented various subsidies granted by
and received from local government authorities in the
PRC. The movements are as follows:

% 2 A B o B ¥ BT A
R 5 o B 3 5 BT 4 B AR P 5 B2
B HEBMT :

R-_E—=F R-Z-ME
+=AR EMETA +=8
E—E L0 W%k ==
Credited
At to income At
31 December Receipt statement 31 December
2013 of grants  during the year 2014
AREFT AREFIT AEEFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(BE5)
(Restated)
B A B BT RE AL Government grant related to
(TMeERRESER) assets (excluding government
interest free loan) 601,386 393,775 (380,005) 615,156
SR AH B BT R Government grant related to
costs 5,190 70,535 (41,404) 34,321
SRS Government interest free loans 160,002 = (48,000) 112,002
766,578 464,310 (469,409) 761,479
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35

BUAREMHEZTERNESE 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

TRIY AT B HRROANEE R The table below outlines where the Group’s post-

BEFNSBRED - employment amounts and activity are include in the

financial statements.

AEE
Group
—E—UF —T—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥TFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g£&E5))
(Restated)
BT 5 RIENEE S BERE(E : Balance sheet obligations for:
— R RREFFE — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 49,196 46,660
— AR KB FIET 2 — Early retirement benefit plan 534 873
—RERINEGEH—HFFE - Defined pension benefits — with
FTEIEE funded plan assets 31,541 31,369
—RERIKNEEHN—EFE - Defined pension benefits — without
FEIBE funded plan assets 131,510 143,429
—Hi R ERAKRSEF — Other defined pension benefits 188,507 -
STABEREBERNERS Liabilities on the balance sheet 401,288 222,331
RTHRENKRERITE,  Income statement charge/(credit)
(&) 5T ALERF - included in operating profit for:
— TR IRAE AT & — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 2,947 1,811
—iRBIRIKEAIGH B — Early retirement benefit plan 51 (78)
— AERKEEF - Defined pension benefits — with
—BFEFEEE funded plan assets 3,002 3,467
— RERIKEEF — Defined pension benefits — without
—EFEHEEE funded plan assets (6,713) 13,802
—HATRIKEEF — Other defined pension benefits 5,954 -
5,241 19,002
BN EEHTE Remeasurements for:
— 7 RREFETE — Supplemental retirement benefits plan 3,870 (3,476)
—HERAKEEHAN—BFFE - Defined pension benefits — with
FTEIEE funded plan assets 4,989 1,112
—RERINEEH—EFE - Defined pension benefits — without
sTEIEE funded plan assets 11,405 6,234
—HaARATRKRESEF — Other defined pension benefits 1,116 =
21,380 3,870
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35 ENREREMBEENET 2

REAERBEREDNIRAENK R
B‘E BNEESHEEENAT :

35

RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The amounts of early retirement and supplemental benefit
obligations recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
are determined as follows:

*Em

Group
—E—-mE —E—=F
2014 20183
(=)
(Restated)

AERHNEEHRE Present value of defined benefits

obligations 401,288 222,331
B BNERER S Less: current portion (16,931) (4,664)
FERNEAEL 7 Non-current portion 384,357 217,667

A ER B 12 AR R AR N Bl T AR B

The movements of Group’s early retirement benefit and

FEINT supplemental benefit obligations are as follows:
EEE
HERE AREE At
Present Fair
value of value of
obligation  plan assets Total
AR® T AR%T R AR®T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MR-ZT—=F—HF—H " At1 January 2013, as restated 279,129 (25,274) 253,855
K&
BIERRFEAKA Past service cost 2,813 = 2,813
ARG Current service cost 11,007 - 11,007
FERAZ (WA) Interest expense/(income) 5,640 (458) 5,182
298,589 (25,732) 272,857
EHEE Re-measurements
—FrEIEER R - Return on plan assets, - (1,701) (1,701)
(TREMBMALEE) excluding amounts
included in interest income
— 1B B 18 — Experience losses 568 - 568
—BRREPER - Loss from change in 5,003 3 5.003
financial assumptions
5,571 (1,701) 3,870
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35 EBUAERHEHMBEEEFEETE) 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

FrEEE
EXHE AREE st

Present Fair

value of value of
obligation plan assets Total

AR®TRT AR®BTR AR®ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

PE H ZE%R Exchange differences (50,093) 6,088 (44,005)
HR—EE Contributions — Employers - 4,711) (4,711)
=22 — BRI % Payments from plans — Benefit (5,680) - (5,680)
payments
N-_TB—=%+=8 At 31 December 2013, 248,387 (26,056) 222,331
=+—H &KE5 as restated
R-ZZ—NFE—HF—H At 1 January 2014 248,387 (26,056) 222,331
BERRFEAL A Past service cost 29 i 29
BB RBKA Current service cost (6,008) = (6,0083)
FERL (WA) Interest expense/(income) 11,597 (382) 11,215
254,010 (26,438) 227,572
WEE—HRNB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary 209,946 L8 209,946
(H1aE52()) (Note 52(b))
BT E Re-measurements
—FTEIEEDHK - Return on plan assets, - (1,123) (1,123)
(TRIEFNBMMA£EE) excluding amounts
included in interest income
— 1R 1E — Experience losses 8,568 = 8,568
— R E B EE - Loss from change in 13,935 1 13,935

financial assumptions

22,503 (1,123) 21,380

HE—EE Contributions — Employers (382) (8,711) (4,093)

=B — BRI 2 Payments from plans — Benefit (17,537) - (17,537)
payments

b 5 =58 Exchange difference (89,150) 3,170 (85,980)

R-ZT—MNEF At 31 December 2014 429,390 (28,102) 401,288

+=R=+-—H

FHERRIERRAERAE 2014FERE 315



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 RAREMBEEMNEEE) 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)
L EFREBEBYASEERBEATEA The above obligations were determined based on
Bt ENERBERNAEENBER actuarial valuations performed by independent qualified
BET - actuarial firms, using the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method.
HUHEEREHEMRANERRBERR The material actuarial assumptions used in valuing these
/U N obligations are as follows:
—T-=fF
2013
RERIHK
RERK 2BH-EIE
eRN-F1E STEEE
itElgE Defined HiRE
BRER AR Defined pension  RIREEH
B2l BHEE pension benefits - Other
Supplemental Early benefits - without defined
retirement retirement with funded funded pension
benefits plan benefit plan plan assets plan assets benefits
BEE(5E) Discount rate (per annum) 4.60% 4.30% 1.60% 1.60% 3.10%
FeERE Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00% 2.70% 2.70% 2.00%
=% Life expectancy 86 86 87 87 86
EEREE Employee turnover rate Not relevant Not relevant Not relevant Not relevant
il il il il 0%
—E-mF
2014
RERHK
RERNK FF-BIE
SRR -FEE THEIEE
THEIEE Defined Hitt R E
BRENK RATRIK Defined pension  EHREEAF
BRI E B2 pension benefits - Other
Supplemental Early benefits - without defined
retirement retirement  with funded funded pension
benefits plan  benefit plan  plan assets  plan assets benefits
B R (FE) Discount rate (per annum) 3.6% 3.2% 0.90% 0.90% 1.90%
HHRER Salary growth rate 8% 8% 2.10% 2.10% 1.50%
=5 Life expectancy 86 86 87 87 86
EEREX Employee turnover rate Not relevant  Not relevant  Not relevant  Not relevant
il il il il 0%
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35 EBUAERHEHMBEEEFEETE) 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)
BEARKIFLTENRERTIZREAREH Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on
KA G YT RS BiEEES actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics
RmMEIE o sZE MR #HE HEEURIK and experience in related countries. These assumptions
©ATRATRRIKER TS translate into an average life expectancy in years for a

pensioner retiring at the age of 60.

RERKRESEBAOTRNEEDT ¢ The planned assets of the defined pension benefits are as
follows:
AEH
Group
—F-—QmE —FT-=F
2014 2013
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(FeE5)
(Restated)
KEES Investment funds 28,100 26,055
FrARTEIEENERMISHEME - All the planned assets have quoted prices in active
markets.

FHERRIERRAERAE 2014FERE 317



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

35

BRAREMEREBNEEE)

RERMETHMEEZZMHEL I
REET

(@) ®BARBKEFNTERREMNERKE

35

RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
changes in the weighted principal assumptions is as
follows:

(a) Supplemental retirement benefits plan and

FEtE early retirement benefit plan
HAERMNEENZE

Impact on defined benefit obligation
BRREE RE& & N GBS0
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
BEIE & Discount rate 0.5% Decrease Increase
by 4.0% by 4.3%
BA4.0% #N4.3%
RASIBRX Pension growth rate 0.5% Increase Decrease
by 4.3% by 4.1%
#hN4.3% B 4.1%
R IN—&F BRERWD—F
To increase To decrease
by 1 year in by 1 year in
assumption assumption
= Life expectancy Increase Decrease
by 2.1% by 2.0%

EH12.1%

2.0%
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35 ENRREMBEENET 2 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)
b) HREERNKESEFN-BREIFES (b) Defined pension benefits — with and without
BEE funded plan assets

HAETRNEENZE
Impact on defined benefit obligation
BRR2E BRER G N GRS
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

BHIF & Discount rate 0.5%  Decrease by Increase by
7.5% 8.3%
BAT7.5% #1n8.3%
BRI R R Pension growth rate 0.25% Increase by  Decrease by
1.6% 1.5%
#Eh01.6% BA1.5%
(c) EHiMARATEEKRESEFN (c)  Other defined pension benefits

HAETRMNEENZE
Impact on defined benefit obligation
BRR2E R & 15 Hn R A
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

BH IR 3 Discount rate 0.5%  Decrease by Increase by
5.0% 5.5%

BA5.0% H#hN5.5%

RIRSIE R R Pension growth rate 0.5% Increase by  Decrease by
2.6% 2.5%

£ 1hn2.6% BA2.5%

BRI —F B —F

To increase To decrease

by 1 year in by 1 year in

assumption assumption

= Life expectancy Increase by Decrease by
6.7% 6.7%

Hh06.7% BA6.7%
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35 RUKEMBREBIEEE

(c)

HtbRERKERH(E)

EAGRERE D TIRE - RRER
) & @ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@?“ﬁhT """""
m&atHE - E'15 RE,\&‘-’M:Tﬁ
AeeEE - BEOBRNEEA
REEMRRE - FTERAERMEL
HEIZREBRRINFRECKES
ST R B TSR L R A AR A AR
REeBEENHBRDE(RERNE
ERERREBRARFECLE
RLERTH) o

ERT AL - REBURE ST
EANRRDERBA L BEE) -

BB E B ARG 8 R SRERIK
RN AEEAXZEER
HxEARMRBRFLRLT -

AERE HEAENSELE
EHERE 2 HRE
A maa
ABREE - 5 E

A o

BRER KZBGEHEIMENE
TEBRER  BS
BREREEEHRSA
B(BEEANIMDIE
SN BRI EKF
GRELR - ARE
o 815 1% i 8 AR ) %
&) XZHFEE
EGTE (BEEMBE
F)FERE(#En)
BREARE #BF
2 Bk EF IR
pill) i

RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

(c)

Other defined pension benefits (continued)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a
change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the pension liability recognised within
the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.

Through its fundamental retirement plan and
defined pension benefits, the Group is exposed
to a number of risks, the most significant of which
are detailed below:

Asset volatility The plan liabilities are calculated
using a discount rate set
with reference to corporate
bond vyields; if plan assets
underperform this yield, this will
create a deficit.

Inflation risk The majority of the plans’
benefit obligations are linked
to inflation, and higher inflation
will lead to higher liabilities
(although, in most cases, caps
on the level of inflationary
increases are in place to
protect the plan against
extreme inflation. The majority
of the plan’s assets are either
unaffected by (fixed interest
bonds or loosely correlated with
(equities inflation, meaning that
an increase in inflation will also
increase the deficit.
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35

(c)

(d)

BRHRHEMBEREBNEE 2 35 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)
HiRERKESERN(E) (c)  Other defined pension benefits (continued)
= KEZHHESEERN Life expectancy The majority of the plans’
KREBEZFRERE obligations are to provide
oAl SGER benefits for the life of the
BEZ|a &g - member, so increases in life
expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans’ liabilities.
s REZHETEEERER Life expectancy The majority of the plans’
KEBEZFRHER obligations are to provide
Mo Eit - SaiER benefits for the life of the
BEMETEIBEEN - member, so increases in life
expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans’ liabilities.
AMEERERAKSERNNELD (d) Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted
HASHOT defined pension benefits:
PR—F —EME “ERE HBARE
Less than Between Between Over k)
a year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
rEE Group
RZT—NF At 31 December
+-A=1—H 2014
WREMEFFTE]  Supplement retirement
benefits plan 42,197 41,101 116,154 478,050 677,502
IREIEKEFEEl  Early retirement benefit
plan 3,633 1,183 793 - 5,509
REEKRES B Defined pension benefits
— BT &st8lEE - with funded plan
assets 308 462 1,798 69,248 71,816
RERKEREF Defined pension benefits
—ETEFEEE - without funded plan
assets 1,387 2,003 9,915 135,568 148,873
Hi RERKE Other defined pension
= benefits 12,190 12,033 35,161 54,090 113,474
59,615 56,782 163,821 736,956 1,017,174
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36 Ht&E 36 OTHER LIABILITIES
Ax5E N
Group Company
—E-|mE —E-=f —E-mE =%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT AR®FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(g E751)
(Restated)
[ERH R A BB T 0A (a) Payable to AVIC International (a) 650,000 881,340 - 800,000
FER AR RYIFRIE (D) Payable to AVIC Shenzhen (b) 100,000 125,000 - -
ERRSCERTRER Payable to Weihai Economic and
BEEELEERAH Technological Development
HIHE(c) Zone State-owned Assets
Management Co., Ltd (c) 33,345 40,000 - -
stUkEE A ARIEN  Payable to NEC Corporation for
NEC Corporationz(d) acquisition of a subsidiary (d) 34,904 38,486 - -
Hith Others 11,864 20,521 - =
. ENEER () | () Less: current portion (a),(c) (663,310) - = -
166,803 1,105,347 - 800,000

N

(@) AABTR-_E—=FMFEEK
A EE A R #800,000,0007T °
RZZE—NF - AREIEEES
B AR ¥150,000,0007C @ M A(E
#4% AR¥650,000,0007T A&
IR FRFEFRAL 94%+ B B
—ZT-AFNAEE-

by ZAEEMBARRBEEERN=
ZEZNF+ AEFmMFERINE K
A R # 25,000,000 7T & A R ¥
75,000,0007C ° ZERIB A ER
7 B A LSRITRER
B 1.7% Kk4.70%t B R 7BD R
RZF-—ARE+ARZF-NF
+AEE -

The Company borrowed RMB800,000,000 from
the holding company in April 2013. In 2014,
the company repaid RMB150,000,000, the
outstanding amounts of RMB650,000,000 are
unsecured, bearing annual interest rate of 4.94%
and repayable in April 2015.

SCC, a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB25,000,000 and RMB75,000,000 from AVIC
Shenzhen in October 2009. The amounts are
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 3 month
SHIBOR plus 1.7% and 4.70% and repayable in
October 2016 and October 2019, respectively.
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Hte& & &)

(©

AEEMRBARILEFMETS
BARIRNZZEZNFNARESR
KERTNHAEERNEEELEE
f@/‘ﬂ%#ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%moooooo
e MRZT—NF - HEEERE
,TM\E%%%&B%,OOOE mAREE
2% ARM13,310,000t K AR
20,035,000 70 & KR - LA
BEARBITHEEEMEKEE -
WEASRRN ZE—RF AR
E—+FRNAEE-

RZE——F-_HA=+HA -
I EFENEC Corporahon&'iil%
£ {8 5,000,000,000 H B ( A R #&
130,982,0007T ) Y EENLT 2 Al %
AR s REAR
—E-XNFEA—BXf- Eytﬁ
AU BB B IEFEYNEC Corporation
FOBM ST ¢

36

OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

(©

Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB40,000,000 from Weihai Economic and
Technological Development Zone State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd, in June 2009. In
2014, it repaid RMB6,655,000, the outstanding
amounts of RMB13,310,000 and RMB20,035,000
are unsecured, bearing interest rate at the
benchmark interest rate prescribed by The
People’s Bank of China and repayable in June
2015 and June 2017, respectively.

On 25 February 2011, Shenzhen Opto-electronics
entered into an agreement with NEC Corporation
for acquiring 100% equity interests in NLT
Company, at consideration of JPY5,000,000,000
(RMB130,982,000) to be paid on 1 July 2016. The
movement of payable to NEC Corporation for the
acquisition is as follows:

HEE
Group
—E—UF == —1F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E5))
(Restated)
®n—HA—H At 1 January 38,486 47,710
FE X Interest expenses 681 755
E H =58 Exchange differences (4,263) (9,979)
TSt ==t — El At 31 December 34,904 38,486

HERBHARBEZAABERK
E{EARS -

The fair value of other non-current liabilities
approximated the carrying amount.
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ESRHEMENAKIE 37 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
bS] VNN
Group Company
“E-mF —T-=F —E-mE —Z—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT ARETF AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
=)
(Restated)
B SRR Trade payables 7,686,141 6,032,651 2,526 -
EftEe R ETREF Salaries and staff welfare
payables 591,057 533,973 5,976 4,931
ERER Notes payable 917,389 563,227 20,624 -
BEEY Advances from customers 2,808,485 4,339,831 = =
JERT A& Interest payable 85,068 93,672 27,859 38,031
FERHRR B Dividend payable 26,188 6,892 - -
HibERTE Other taxes payable 230,032 165,059 167 196
[zt B R AR FIE(R)  Accruals and other payables (a) 2,158,581 2,013,272 863,762 80,111
B—2E=HRERD) Borrowings from a third party (b) 18,000 18,000 - =
g Deposits 102,112 105,555 - =
14,623,053 13,872,132 920,914 123,269
o IEREES S Less: non-current portion
—e - Deposits (22,883) (44,871) - =
mEE Y Current portion 14,600,170 13,827,261 920,914 123,269

AR B A K E 4 fE IR
A B ¥ 363,702,000 7T JY & Bt 5
53(c)FT#% B& H) FE - BE B 5 SR IR (=
T — =% : AR®322,569,000
JL) c RERIAREEE - LFF
KO%E17.83% 5L » WHIKE

AEEHBARBIEMBNR ==
——E—AEEBETMIEER
KEBREETRAAERARE
18,000,000 T(ZT—=4% : AR
#518,000,0007T) ° A B TEH & &
W - FF R E7.872% @ WHEE
BREE -

Included in accruals and other payables were
RMB363,702,000 due to related parties as
disclosed in Note 53(c) (2013: RMB322,569,000).
These amounts were unsecured, bearing
annual interest rate from 0% to 17.83% and are
repayable on demand.

Weihai Shipyard, a subsidiary of the
Group, borrowed RMB18,000,000 (2013:
RMB18,000,000) from Weihai Industrial
Developing Investment Co., Ltd. (&/8™ L3R
WEBREEAT) in January 2012. The amounts
are unsecured, bearing annual interest of 7.872%
and are repayable on demand.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

ESREMESREE) 37
R-ZE—MF+_A=+—H EFE

MRIEAORE DT

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
At 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables is as follows:

XEE NG
Group Company
—E-mOF 2= —E-OF —T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(1 &31)
(Restated)
—FR Within 1 year 7,297,031 5,708,908 2,526 =
—Z°fF Between 1 and 2 years 289,196 183,683 - =
—R=F Between 2 and 3 years 44,101 52,739 - -
=FHE Over 3 years 55,813 87,321 - =
7,686,141 6,032,651 2,526 -

AEBEZRERNFBENREENATIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

¥EHE denominated in the following currencies:
biS-1:] N
Group Company
—E-QmE —T-=F —E-mE —E—=k
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARETFT AREFT AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(s E5l)
(Restated)

AR RMB 4,353,717 4,011,535 2,526 =
ETT usb 1,357,357 699,216 - -
5! JPY 493,948 335,986 - =
BT EUR 429,171 41,987 = =
HEHREL LKR 375,831 598,922 = =
Ok g cbarg s AED 151,796 167,538 = L
BT HKD 58,213 5,699 = =
HEEL INR 43,684 = = =
HREZREL TZS 12,223 - = =
Hif Others 410,201 171,768 = =
7,686,141 6,032,651 2,526 =
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38 & 38 PROVISIONS
BEERE  BBRAAbL  ERZRE(
Environmental Loss Legal RE() @it
restoration (a)  contracts (b) clams () Warranty (d) Total

ABBTT  ARETL  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETI
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

W-ZE—=F—H—H' At1January 2013,

7| as restated 40,458 = = L -
B3R e Unwinding of discount 18 = - - _
ERFER Used during the year (32,089) = i - -

INEEZ% Currency translation
differences (1,698) - = - -

RZE—=F+-H At 31 December 2013,

=1+—R - K] as restated 6,689 = = = =
R-E—mF—A—H At 1 January 2014 6,689 - - - 6,689
B Unwinding of discount 106 - - - 106
WE—RHE AR Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Hiz#6210)) (Note 52(b)) - 7,403 28,291 186,582 222,276
INETEZESR Currency translation
differences (747) (507) (1,940 (12,792) (15,986)
RZE-MF+=A At 31 December 2014
=== 6,048 6,896 26,351 173,790 213,085
(@ NLTAFREDRMEBEERSRERSS (@)  The provision incurred by NLT Company was in
BERNBSEBENZITETE connection with the removal of pollution of the soil
B - of the Kagoshima plant and the Akita plant.
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(b)

BEAHNESHEHKHDE R E A
BAEBARBERARG - BAHEH
EiREBMAEREBEXERTER
R - NETABEFANE
BT REEAIHBIRR -

BRTEEREREREMEEE
Fh: —EBFRAETREFLPEHA
% [® F{f J& /2 5 Humboldt Wedag
Malaysia Sdn Bhd. X Humboldt
Wedag GmbH1Z 2 #)— B M EFF
A R—EEERFHAREEMN
B 2 8 Humboldt Wedag Inc. &
KHD#Z 2 — IR P £ 7 Sk BOAB 12
fre-BESBENREENZRAT
REMEHE - AKHDERBRES AR
3o

REBRGBEZRERIRERE
BRANMAR B RR - ZFH
IR ER & NEEREZER
ETE - ERAFAHNERE
BERAH —FIULMNREK
¥ o ARt B E -2 mEF o

38 PROVISIONS (continued)

(0)

The amount of loss contract is accrued by the
management of KHD for the project-related
outstanding costs. Expected contract losses are
recognised through valuation allowance or loss
order provisions. All identifiable risks are taken into
account when determing such expected contract
losses.

The balance of legal claims provision consists of
two main lawsuits: An arbitration proceeding of a
customer in Malaysia against the subsidiaries of
the Group, Humboldt Wedag Malaysia Sdn Bhd.
and Humboldt Wedag GmbH; and an arbitration
claim and court proceeding of a customer in
South America against the subsidiaries of the
Group, Humboldt Wedag Inc. and KHD. The
amount of provision is estimated on the basis of
most likely situation, and monthly updated by the
management of KHD.

The provisions for warranties cover all the risks
identifiable which relate to guarantee or warranty
commitments. The provisions are measured on a
contract-by-contract basis according to the best
estimate. The amounts reported as non-current
incorporate warranty commitments for a term of
more than one year. The anticipated maturities
range between one and four years.

FRERRIERBRAERAT 2014FEHE 327



R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

39

328

Hgg A 39 OTHER INCOME
—E-ImF —=—=
2014 2013
AR¥EFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&=E5))
(Restated)
TR 778 Bl 0 30 T LA A 22 8 Amortisation of deferred income on
(H15#34) government grants (Note 34) 469,409 943,526
AR7E R ARIE A Service and maintenance income 141,730 80,160
EAWA Default income 41,083 9,323
mEWA Compensation income 22,362 1,211
BIEMEE Sales of by-products 7,560 49,530
BABUERY Financial subsidy 6,886 12,470
& 2 U7 A Dividend income - 18,346
EHAth Others 11,862 16,212
700,892 1,130,778
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Hib W F5E 40 OTHER GAINS - NET
—E—UF —T—=%F
2014 2013
AR®FrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(ge=:5)
(Restated)
& L AR R s Gain on disposals of land use rights
(Ht5t150@)) (Note 15(a)) 231,420 _
EHFFEMAIEABKHD 20%  Fair value evaluation gain for re-measuring
AN A R EBEKE the previously held 20% equity interests
Efh(a) of KHD (a) 100,985 -
HEMHREESHEED Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
Wees (B 5E49(a)) financial assets (Note 49(d)) 28,553 45,981
BHTEMMIFIAREKRSE  Fair value evaluation gain for re-measuring
10% M AR A R EE the previously held 10% equity interests
Lz 8 1t (o) of Wuhan Tianma (b) 25,081 =
HEHBRARAER Loss on disposals of subsidiaries
(Kt5t49(e)) (Note 49(e)) (3,978) (500)
HEDE  BERRED Gain on disposals of property, plant and
W zs (Hiat49(b)) equipment (Note 49(b)) 1,946 3,631
HEREWEN(ER), (Loss)/gain on disposals of investment
Wz (B 8E49(b)) properties (Note 49(b)) (888) 365
HETE SR T AR Gain on disposals of derivative financial
instruments - 6,070
HEAZPENKE Gain on disposals of joint ventures = 50,131
PTESBTEANREMEESE  Fair value changes on derivative financial
(Htit26) instruments (Note 26) (26,291) 2,295
RERIRIRITA L ERA Losses from discounting bank acceptance
&8 bills (15,994) (2,562)
Ht Others 2,579 7,259
343,413 112,670

a0 B 5F 52(b) Fr it - RN &£ E
RNZZE—NMERA-TEHAK
BBKHD ' EFistE kmz AR
100,985,000 7T ¥z 4% B AT 4% B KHD
0% AEZH AR BEARE
482,660,000 TR BREE AR
381,675,000 =58t = ©

a0 Y FE52(c) At - A EE R
—E-EENAZTHABKRER
ERE  BEFAEUAEARYE
25,081,000 7T 12 W 8 AT #5 A B
RE10% B AR AR EEA
K #186,188,000 BB R EE A
K#161,107,0007TH ZREET = ©

As stated in Note 52(b), the Group have acquired
KHD on 27 May 2014, re-measuring gain of
RMB100,985,000 measured as the excess of the
fair value amounting to RMB482,660,000 over the
book value amounting to RMB381,675,000 of the
previous held 20% equity interests in KHD before
the acquisition.

As stated in Note 52(c), the Group have
acquired Wuhan Tianma on 25 August 2014, re-
measuring gain of RMB25,081,000 measured
as the excess of the fair value amounting to
RMB186,188,000 over the book value amounting
to RMB161,107,000 of the previous held 10%
equity interests in Wuhan Tianma before the
acquisition.
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RUEESENER 41 EXPENSES BY NATURE
—E—-0mEF —F—=
2014 2013
AREFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
MmN ERRNFEES  Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress (908,016) (1,200,181)
BUREFAE 4 TIEIAE Changes in amounts due from customers
for contract work (524,588) (331,981)
FERBEME X ERER Raw materials and consumables used 26,023,719 30,959,178
S TR (Hata4) Employee benefits expenses (Note 44) 3,834,648 2,880,254
HERBLH Repairs and maintenance expenditure 343,535 183,469
REFERE Provision for inventory obsolescence 111,428 124,435
AR Provision for bad debts 114,306 128,218
BREFAELHIE Provision for amounts due from customers
RIAR S for contract work 62,278 38,276
Y - B NEE Depreciation of property, plant and
weEHZ11) equipment (Note 717) 1,733,284 1,474,000
T AR S (a2 7) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) 39,328 31,099
BNIR B R e 6 Amortisation of exploration and extraction
(H1:18) rights (Note 8) 9,494 15,716
ML EEEHME10) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10) 99,714 50,594
HEmIEmEEER S Amortisation of other non-current assets 55,498 55,017
WETHE S H Operating lease rentals 287,213 236,857
BEMREMBEE Business tax and other levies 387,892 269,493
ZERET N & Auditors’ remuneration 28,750 22,906
IKEE Utility expenses 652,628 424,882
BB Transportation expenses 360,579 286,493
EiRE Travelling expenses 154,526 105,568
EBREEIH Entertainment expenses 56,051 61,670
BHEER Professional fees 133,896 88,030
RITEMH Bank charges 66,016 100,828
Hith & F Other expenses 488,092 363,946
HEKAE - DHEERK Total cost of sales, distribution expenses
THERBRE and administrative expenses 33,610,271 36,368,767
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42 EEMS 42 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(a ES=Me (a) Directors’ emoluments
RZE—NFR_T—=FF The Company did not appoint any chief executive
KRB REFEATTEAEE - in 2014 and 2013.
BE-_Z—NME+-_B=+—H The remunerations of the directors for the year
WEFE @ ZFEZHWOT ended 31 December 2014 are set out below,
BTEHK
e e BiEtA EE 5 b
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total

ARBETE  AREFT ARETFT ARETZ ARETR
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

BEA Name of directors:

REEE Mr. Wu Guang Quan* = = - - -
mEfE Mr. You Lei* = = - - -
AR A Mr. Pan Lin Wu* = = - - -
e Mr. Liu Jun® = - - - -
RERKE" Mr. Chen Hong Liang* - = = - -
BEEEE Mr. Lai Weixuan* ** = = - - -
ey Mr. Wu Wei 160 - - - 160
EERRL Ms. Wong Wai Ling 160 - - - 160
S T Mr. Zhang Ping™ 120 - - - 120
RELE" Mr. Wei Wei™ - - - - ,

440 - - - 440
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42 EBEEME (&) 42 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@ EEMEE) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
B2z —_E—=%+-A=+—H The remunerations of the directors for the year
IFFE  SEEHMOT - ended 31 December 2013 are set out below:
BIRIK
ik e B HEE it
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary  to pension
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total

ARETE  ARBTL ARETT AREFT ARETX
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

EEE Name of directors:
RAEL A Mr. Wu Guang Quan® = = = = -
HELAe Mr. You Lei* = = = - -
AR L Mr. Pan Lin Wy~ - - - - -
b Mr. Liu Jun* = = = - L
RERFE Mr. Chen Hong Liang* = = = = =
BErs Mr. Wu Wei 160 - - _ 160
ASRRL Ms. Wong Wai Ling 160 - - = 160
KTEE Mr. Zhang Ping 120 - - _ 120
440 = = = 440
* ZEEERHAQRNREAE * These directors received emoluments from
PERAR A &) A A B R sk AR 3| AVIC International, the holding company or
(B AR RA)35.63% A HEH A AVIC Shenzhen, the Company ' s shareholder
NRRE)WEEE - BRE holding 35.63% of the equity interests of the
ERROBWEHAREEEAR Company, for their services to the Company. No
REERABNREETE apportionment has been made for emoluments
B it o # - from the holding company, as the directors
consider that it is impracticable to apportion
this amount between their services to the Group
and their services to the Company's holding
company.
¥ BEREELERBELEN-FT b Mr. Lai Weixuan and Mr. Wei Wei were
—NFEZERES - appointed as director in 2014.
i REXRER T —MEFEELRAR a3 Mr. Zhang Ping had resigned from the Company
AR © in 2014.
FXHENEEREBEXNT Directors’ fees disclosed above included
BYIFRITESTHNES ARKE RMB440,000 (2013: RMB440,000) paid to
440,000 (ZE—=F : AR independent non-executive directors.
440,0007T) °
RFEEWEEEHRETMEE (= None of the directors waived any emoluments
T—=F |- during the year (2013: Nil).
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42 EEMEH) 42

(b)

EEBREHAL

RZT—NF - AEERE&ES
FATTEBIEWESN EXDT
MERER(ZE—=F: &) -
FREMNZEABAL(ZE—=
F:RB)HHESHET

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year 2014 do
not include any directors (2013: Nil) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to these five
individuals (2013: 5) during the year are as follows:

—E-NEF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥Fr ARFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAXFHe - BEER - Basic salaries, housing allowance,
HA0RE KRB = other allowances and benefits in
kind 10,453,300 9,683,000
ENTFIATEE - The emoluments fell within
the following bands:
—E—MmEF —E—=F
2014 2013
B £ E Emolument bands
1,500,001/ 7t —2,000,0007 7t HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 7 — 3,000,000/ HKD2,000,001-HKD3,000,000 4 4
B 3#3,000,000/8 7T Over HKD3,000,000 1 1
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43 RERXNFRE 43 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—E—-0mEF —F—=
2014 2013
AREFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
FEZH Interest expense
—iRITEE — bank borrowings 1,090,622 971,306
—AEEREET — borrowings from related party repayable
BT REE on demand 149,593 103,834
—HEE® — medium-term notes 28,680 23,979
— (&% — debentures 21,199 27,529
o B AREF B Less: interest capitalised (137,457) (106,149)
1,152,637 1,020,499
BEEBRE RS Foreign exchange loss on
financing activities 134,149 43,132
mE Y Finance costs 1,286,786 1,063,631
EhE A B I K s Foreign exchange gain on
financing activities (290,255) (196,739)
MEKBA Interest income (223,160) (94,290)
BhE A Finance income (513,415) (291,029)
A AR A H R Net finance costs 773,371 772,602

FEIRBTERELAEINEAAR
74,948,000 (B —=F : ARW
53,904,0007T) ° RMB53,904,000).
RZZ—MF  BRAYERTERE
KA F B B AR #62,509,00070( =%
— =4 : AR¥52,245,0007T) ° EA1L
FEAE8.46%(ZF—=%F : 10.99%) °
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Bank loan interest capitalised in the construction-
in-progress amounted to RMB74,948,000 (2013:

Bank loan interest capitalised in the properties under
development amounted to RMB62,509,000 (2013:
RMB52,245,000) during 2014. The capitalised interest
rate was 8.46% (2013: 10.99%).
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EEEFEHR 44 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E-mF —F—=
2014 2013
AR¥For AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&E5))
(Restated)
T8 - Fakita Wages, salaries and bonus 3,340,850 2,506,555
B BEREMER Welfare, medical and other expenses 218,838 137,461
IR A Social security costs 269,719 217,236
IR L Early retirement and supplemental
RIRIEF pension benefits 5,241 19,002

3,834,648 2,880,254

AEECD2EABTHEARARRERE -
YRPBEETHRERELERREE - B
EERE  BEREMEEREF - RIE
BRARE  AKEEAERBITEER
MEEZRBESRBERRES - #X
BORIRES AFHN19%K9% - NEE
DRIEAEER14%K7% - HAFKIAHE
BAEYE o A EHESN  REEWEE
RS

The Group has participated in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, which cover pension, medical
and other welfare benefits. The plans are organised and
administered by the governmental authorities. Pursuant
to the relevant provisions, the Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of retirement insurance
and health insurance to governmental authorities,
equivalent to 19% and 9% respectively based on the
monthly salaries of its employees, of which, the Group
bears 14% and 7% respectively, and the employees bear
the rest. The Group has no further obligation beyond the
contribution.
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FriS%ipa <
REPEBMABIE - BERFER
EEBLE 5B R B AR
B2 R R R26% BTGB -

EETMERNTSEEAIMAK - A
EEERTPEALHEANEIH EK
R YR _E—WFEAIZH15%EEF
BEHMRE(ZT—=4F : 15%) °

XERENBAR ESXRSE K#BX
5 HREXE - LEXETF: - ABE
B AR BRBRERAR R
NMREERBERERAA - EEA
AINRARITMREERRARHREERA
AIAMREAPESHRMEEMR =
T UERZI5%(ZE— =4 : 15%)
BEREHE -

BREING N AR 2 A TIRBNF
AEHERBE M IE AR B EEB
EERZBRITHEGE

45

INCOME TAX CHARGE

Pursuant to the relevant income tax law of PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were
subject to income tax at a rate of 25% unless preferential
rates were applicable.

Qinghai CATIC Resources was established in Haixi
Prefecture of Qinghai Province. It was eligible for
preferential tax policies applicable for the development
of western regions in the PRC, and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% in 2014 (2013: 15%).

Tianma and its subsidiaries Shanghai Tianma, Chengdu
Tianma, Wuhan Tianma, Shanghai Opto-electronics,
SCC, AVIC Wang Xin Beijing Science and Technology
Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Fiyta Technology Development Co.,
Ltd, Beijing Company and Shenzhen Fiyta Chronometer
Manufacture Co., Ltd. were qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises in the PRC and were entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% in 2014 (2013: 15%).

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

FANAEHASTE Income tax charged for the year represents:
—E-mFE —FT=F
2014 2013
AR¥FRT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E5)
(Restated)
RNEEtm FIH RN AT IR Current tax on profits for the year 171,474 174,189
A —FEEHAFE Adjustments in respect of prior year 3,522 17,999
BRI AR Total current tax 174,996 192,188
EERIIR (H15220) Deferred tax (Note 20) 78,561 55,751
rh B+ S (A R PRC land appreciation tax 62,904 20,621
FriSHiF 2 Income tax charged 316,461 268,560
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45 FrEBimx (&)

7R 55 T B A A gt A B AR RO B TR B AR SR K
RAIREMBRARAERRTRFTEDN

45 INCOME TAX CHARGE (continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

BEiwmiiIEE=REuT tax rates of the home country of the Company and its
subsidiaries as follows:
—E-OmF —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E5)
(Restated)
bR FT1S 18 Bl & Al Profit before income tax 1,574,778 1,947,400
WA BEATEI5%TEH)  Tax calculated at the tax rates applicable to
MBE(ZZT—=F : 25%) the Company of 25% (2013: 25%) 393,695 486,850
R EemELERN Deferred income taxes resulting from
EIEFT1SHR change in the tax rates (10,244) 7,459
RIERT I E B R e & Tax effect on unrecognised tax losses 173,733 128,591
R LAARERNBIERIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (23,940) (139,991)
TEERBEIEINASMNER  Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 51,119 28,521
AN Income not subject to tax (105,949) (158,413)
AL ANETHOBR AT 3 & Research and development expenses
eligible for additional deduction (46,621) (27,960)
A —FEEL AR Adjustment in respect of prior year 3,522 17,999
FERBT FE I EER Use of tax effect of temporary differences
RIEFTEHREER for which no deferred income tax assets
R E AR AR was recognised in the previous year (47,513) (10,189)
AN [EFR R FTEE AE B 7S Effect of tax concessions from different
EEmnE e tax rate (138,522) (88,044)
REERE RS M =50 Tax effect on unrecognised temporary
Mg 2 differences 4,277 4953
BERRREBENHIBERR Tax credit for purchasing environmental
protection equipment - (1,837)
o B £ (A R PRC land appreciation tax 62,904 20,621
BIIAR 2 Tax charge 316,461 268,560
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46 ARFERFEABMLEF 46

AABEDZFBEARGEIEFTARR
RIS R - WA AR 442,939,0007T
(ZZ—=%F : AR¥449,937,00070) %
PR (Bfi3E31) o

47 BREF 47
(@ =EXR
FIREAR RS EBFIRAD AR
HREABERABRAENE R
17 A% R T 1D AR R &

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of RMB442,939,000 (2013: RMB449,937,000)
(Note 31).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic and diluted earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
—ZT—NE —E-=F
2014 2013
(&E5))
(Restated)
A RIEREEA AEILEF]  Profit attributable to owners of
(ARETIT) the Company (RMB’000) 641,949 1,030,898
B BBIOK AR B AIHAR  Less: Profit attributable to PSCS
BHEFA AR holders (RMB’000)
(AREEFT) (27,817) (27,817)
BN T LB Profit attributable to ordinary shares
BEANGF(ARETIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 614,132 1,003,081
BEITE BRI Weighted average number of ordinary
T pE e (FRR) shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
BRERRZF Basic earnings per share
(ANE#ETT,A%) (RMB per share) 0.5530 0.9032
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47 BREF(#) 47 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) e (b) Diluted
FRBERNIRARERTER Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
A INRE R B AR R B & adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
BETBREERTTE - XAF shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
A —EENMNBEEEEEE dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
B KARBAIRPEES - WE has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
BREK ARG B EHFD EE shares: perpetual subordinated convertible
MAT B - securities. The perpetual subordinated convertible
securities are assumed to have been converted
into ordinary shares.
—E-OmF —E—=F
2014 2013
(&%)
(Restated)
RARERFE ARG Profit attributable to owners
wBAMARETIT) of the Company (RMB’000) 641,949 1,030,898
B 3T T mAR ke Weighted average number of
SRR (FRR) ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
AEIER - Adjustments for:
— K AR AR AT HA AR — Perpetual subordinated convertible
BH(TH) securities (thousands) 801,635 801,635
BREERTNR LB Weighted average number of
DR S (FRR) ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share (thousands) 1,912,267 1,912,267
SIRESE AT Diluted earnings per share
(AR®T/ ) (RMB per share) 0.3357 0.5391
48 KE 48 DIVIDENDS

RN-E-—RAFE=A-tHETHNESZEE
ZL EETegRRBEE_T—NOF
+ZA=+—HLEFENERENHAR
O T2 KBRS - WEBEAARE
111,063,0007C( =B — =4 : ££) - Z&E
FELEARRBBRERBREBFAS (B
BFEVIEERAAEE - ARRBEME
HAFREHEHLREEHEREAPE
AEHEHEBEAH EFSSWES KT H
BE(ZE—=F: &) -

At the board of directors’ meeting held on 20 March
2015, the board proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014 of RMBO0.1 per share
amounting to a total dividend of RMB111,063,000
(2013: Nil), subject to the approval by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting (date to be fixed) of the
Company. The Company will make further announcement
as to the date of the annual general meeting and the
period during which the register of members of the
Company will be closed. The board has not declared
interim dividend (2013: Nil).
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49 RKEXBELENRS

AFEEGNEAKERBEENR NS

49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

iR : from operations:
—E—NEF —E—=F
2014 2013
et ARETFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(F&E5)
(Restated)
& P15 %% Al 4 A Profit before income tax 1,574,778 1,947,400
FEIAE Adjustments for
R EBEIRRITHENA Losses from discounting bank
FEZHEiE acceptance bills 40 15,994 2,562
BREGFERE Provision for inventory obsolescence 111,428 124,435
EAREE Provision for bad debts 114,306 128,218
ElESAHTE Provision for amounts due from
RIBEE customers for contract work 62,278 38,276
%% Wi KRBT E Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 11 1,733,284 1,474,000
Bh R K A B e 8 8 Amortisation of exploration and
extraction rights 8 9,494 15,716
T3 A 5 Amortisation of land use rights 7 39,328 31,099
8 Amortisation of intangible assets 10 99,714 50,594
H i H R Other amortisation charges 55,498 55,017
BEYEN AR EEWZS  Fair value gain on investment
property 12 (15,990) (56,942)
BT R B IR A Deferred income on government
grants 34 (469,409) (943,526)
HEAESTE R Gain on disposals of joint ventures - (50,131)
HeEHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
TRIEEWS financial assets 49(d) (28,553) (45,981)
HEMEB A REE Loss on disposals of subsidiaries 49(e) 3,978 500
PTESHMTA Fair value changes on derivative
N EEZD financial instruments 26 26,291 (2,295)
HEWE - BE Gain on disposals of property, plant
Bllolres and equipment 49(b) (1,946) (3,631)
HEREMERD Loss/(gain) on disposals of
Ea (Yas) investment properties 49(b) 888 (365)
FEWA Interest income 43 (513,415) (291,029)
B FX Interest expense 43 1,286,786 1,063,631
FE(R B & N R A Share of profit of associates 15(a) (290,796) (245,503)
JEA HFEH B iR Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities 15(b) (180,905) (280,870)
LEESEH Changes in working capital
(TEREWENTE (excluding the effects of acquisition
RAMEMER=8) ! and currency translation
differences on consolidation):
—FE - Inventories (1,121,694) (1,503,567)
—EEDYE — Properties under development 508,970 (1,061,008)
—VLBZ%}EA%@ — Amounts due from customers for
TiEFT contract work (524,588) (331,981)
*JEH%:)E' % — Amounts due to customers for
TR contract work 1,297,545 (6,254)
%’%&Hﬂﬂr&“ Wk — Trade and other receivables (2,575,397) (1,208,652)
ﬁ%&ﬁ{mréﬁm - Trade and other payables 1,436,654 3,281,655
MEEBEEENRE Cash generated from operations 2,654,521 2,181,368
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49 REXBELENRE () 49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(@ REBEEZ-_Z-—mME+_A=+— (@) In the consolidated statement of cash flows

BUEFENGEERERER  3F
R RERRHERARNTE

for the year ended 31 December 2014, capital
contribution to subsidiaries from non-controlling

p=1 interests comprises:
—E-NF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& R BR GIB Company 20,885 =
B T2 Engineering Company 12,181 =
FIEIR AVIC Resources 12,000 18,000
JERAF] Beijing Company 6,400 54,607
R E Beijing Rixin 3,000 -
EM AT Guangzhou Company 2,600 19,675
R B ScC 1,613 =
REEE Fiyata 1,588 -
EFAF] Xiamen Company = 3,800
Frae iR RED Company - 14,700
FE =N TED Company - 13,130
60,267 123,912
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49 REXKELAMNRS(2)

49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

b)) REEZ-_ZE—MNME+_A=+— (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for

BUEFENSGERERER
EME - BELERBUARKED

the year ended 31 December 2014, proceeds
from sales of property, plant and equipment and

ENBRIEA investment properties are:
—E-0mEF —E2—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
HEWE - BE MERE Net book value of property, plant and
RBREEE(HaE11) equipment disposed of (Note 11) 64,482 7,597
HEREVERN Fair value of investment properties
NRBEMREIZ) disposed of (Note 12) 980 28,642
65,462 36,239
HEME  BE Proceeds from disposals of
& CRIECE property, plant and equipment 66,428 11,228
HEREYWEMSIHA Proceeds from disposals of
investment properties 92 29,007
66,520 40,235
LEWE - BE R Gain on disposals of property,
Rl (ffat40) plant and equipment (Note 40) 1,946 3,631
HEREYERE Gain from disposals of investment
(Kt5E40) properties (Note 40) (888) 365
1,058 3,996
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49 REEBELENRE#E) 49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

() REBZE—ZT-—mME+_A=+— (c) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
AEEEMGEaRenER & the year ended 31 December 2014, proceeds
ESECENSRIEAS ! from disposals of joint ventures are:

—E—mEF —ET—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEALPNENE@FEME  Net book value of joint ventures

(H1at15()) disposed of (Note 15(b)) 213 101,732
HEaEhFENE Gain on disposals of joint ventures = 50,131
HEEEPEMSIA Proceeds from disposals

of joint ventures 213 151,863
(d) REBE-_ZE—NE+_B=+— (d) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
ALFEMNGZABRESRER B the year ended 31 December 2014, proceeds
EHIESHMEENMBRIEA from disposals of available-for-sale financial assets
= are:
—E—mF ZE—=F
2014 2013
AR¥TFr AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERHEECREE Carrying amount of available-for-sale

HBRTEE(A7:£19) financial assets disposed of (Note 19) 39,750 9,484

B W B Al S R Less: Recycle of the fair value gain on

BEAAEBAERKE - available-for-sale financial assets,

BIERIE gross of tax (14,263) (5,430)
HERREESHEE Gain on disposals of available-for-sale

Wz (H15#40) financial assets (Note 40) 28,553 45,981
HENHHESMEE Proceeds from disposals of

Fr18 5008 available-for-sale financial assets 54,040 50,035
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49 REXKELAMNRS(2)

(@ RBE-T-—mF+-A=+—
BEFENGARSRER  H
1B A TR ERUERSE

() R-E—NmWF—HF—8
7K A &) A Wu Chaode %t
EHREEMNFMIZEAF
(TEM ] )90% A% ## o
RHFTEME + ARFITH
THEMPTM - BEALE

49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)

(e) In the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2014, proceeds
from disposals of subsidiaries comprise:

(i On 1 January 2014, the Company sold
90% of equity interest in Guangzhou New
Aviation Industry and Trading Co., Ltd (/!
¥ TE A7, “Guangzhou New Aviation”)
to Mr. Wu Chaode. After the completion
of the transaction, the Company lost the

FIREMEAT control of Guangzhou New Aviation. The
cash flows from the disposal were as
follows:

AREFT
RMB’000

FTESRE Consideration received

—BHeNRE — Cash consideration 755

A BN R 8 Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by

RekReEEY Guangzhou New Aviation (157)

A & W E A IR & F R Net cash received on disposals 598

BEMNF R FEEDT

The net assets of Guangzhou New Aviation
are as follows:

REEBHE

On disposal

date

AREFr

RMB’000

b Cash 157

B 5 Kk EH MW FOR Trade and other receivables 90

FE Inventories 690

VI - B MR (K iE11) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 21

HMREEE Other current assets 73

B 5 R H M FRIE Trade and other payables (439)

FEE Net assets 592
AT A - Attributable to:

BEINFTAE R A A Owners of Guangzhou New Aviation 592

AEEENHE WS Disposal gain attributable to the Group 163

344 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



PARE IR R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

49 RKEXBELENREH)

(e (&)

(i)

R-ZE—NFRARA -
RAaESTEHORY TR E
SHRLERAR([HAS
SEARLDETHB AN
BEERF - -BBELEMNR
2mEAT

49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(e) (continued)

(i) On 5 May 2014, the Company completed
the liquidation procedures of the subsidiary
of Shenzhen World Watch Center Co.,
Ltd (RYITERBRPOBRAIF, “World
Watch Center”). The cash flows from the
disposal are as follows:

AR TFT
RMB’000
FESRE Consideration received
—RERE — Cash consideration 2,800
B EARBERROFEN Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
RERBFCEEBY World Watch Center (2,800)
A EmSHHIREFEE Net cash paid on disposals =

RYNME R B ER L FEE
EWT

The net assets of Shenzhen World Watch
Center were as follows:

s k== R

On disposal

date

AR TFr

RMB’000

He Cash 2,800
AT FEMG - Attributable to:

tHRZZEHROERFTEA Owners of World Watch Center 1,400

FEFE AR AR R A 25 Non-controlling interests 1,400

REBEE LSRG Disposal gain attributable to the Group =
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49 REEXBELENRESH)

e) (&

(ii)

W\ A—H  Beijing AVIC
Hua Tai Lian Science and
Trade Co. Ltd.([Hua Tai
Lian J) BT EBEF K
2L RELAR#HE
Hua Tai Lian’d #& & 5% 37
BEREEEMNRER MU
BIEFP A EENHua Tai
Lian #) 48 45 & 72 48 A1 B &)
BEERF -Rt+—A=1
H:BREFTEEAR
ATEAEE - BELEDN

49 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(e) (continued)
(iii) On 1 August, Beijing AVIC Hua Tai Lian

Science and Trade Co. Ltd. (“Hua Tai
Lian”) held annual general meeting,
the shareholders jointly approved the
resolution of liquidating Hua Tai Lian and
established a liguidation committee to
start the liquidation process pursuant
to China company laws and association
article of Hua Tai Lian. On 30 November,
the liquidation process was completed
and the Company completed the disposal.
The cash flows from the disposal were as

WEMRBAT : follows:
ARETFT
RMB’000
FrESR(E Consideration received
—BHeRE — Cash consideration 196
& : Hua Tai Lian#E A H) Less: Cash and cash equivalents
R LR EEY held by Hua Tai Lian (196)
B EmZTHIR & FE Net cash paid on disposals =

Hua Tai Lian &) /% & & W0
S @

The net assets of Hua Tai Lian were as
follows:

REEHH

On disposal

date

AR TT

RMB’000

BE Cash 196

B 5 RE M FRIE Trade and other payables (154)

BFE Net assets 49

Pl IREE S Add: Goodwill 4,308
AN FEMG - Attributable to:

Hua Tai Lianf#z=#5H A Owners of Hua Tai Lian 4,337

VAR AR B A = Non-controlling interests 13

AEBERHEEE Disposal loss attributable to the Group 4,141
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50 HEEHE 50 CONTINGENCIES
RZE—NME+-_A=+—8 X&EH As at 31 December 2014, the Group has the following
BUTREBITHBHER - financial guarantees outstanding:
ERAEFZENEE KMEBRREE
Guarantor’s ERUSEARBNBR Outstanding
ERA relationship ERYEZ Guarantee’s relationship amounts
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group guaranteed
AEETT
RMB'000
FERAR AEEHBELF FMPAMETIBRAR N 692,623
Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group  Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Associated Company
Heavy Industry Limited”
ERAR EENBAT ENBFIRERATF F=H 33,590
Beijing Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Zhengli Ocean Engineering Third party
Company Limited*
ERARE AEENEAR EFIREMEFERAA ERABEERYZ6%ER 176,000
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Tianma Microelectronics The guarantor holds 6% equity
Company Limited* interests in the guarantee
EFARA AEEHBERF Radiance Catico Offshore N 161,621
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group Pte. Ltd Associated Company
il R AEEMBAF PHREETRERAF ZR—-R R 68,600
Engineering Company Subsidiary of the Group  CATIC Construction Engineering Controlled by the
Company Limited* same company
KR E AEEHBELF FHENZER F=5 150,934
Chengdu Raise Subsidiary of the Group  Real estate property buyers Third Parties
1,283,368
3 HRZEATMEE M AR 3 The English names of these companies are
ZHEVEZE WABARIEYXR management’s best efforts at translating the Chinese

BHEEEREMERD X R
RHtz28 -

names of these companies as no English names have
been registered or available.
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50 HEFEAE)

BE_ZT-—NEF+_A=+—8" K&
[ 5155 77 IR B 7 R AE AR

50 CONTINGENCIES (continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the Group provides financial

counter guarantee to the following parties:

AEBRREE
BREEFSENEE ERUSEAZENER Outstanding
ERA Guarantor’s relationship  E{R¥% Guarantee’s relationship amounts
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group guaranteed
ARBTT
RMB'000
PN AEBHBERF BRI (R8) BRAAF ERERERERN249%# 5 77,887
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Shanghai Zhangjiang The guarantee holds 2.49%
(Group) Co., Ltd equity interests in the guarantor
PN AEEREAR EREEERRERAR BRESHAERA237%ER 73,992
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Shanghai State-owned Assets The guarantee holds 2.37%
Operation Co., Ltd equity interests in the guarantor
PN AEENEAR TBIXRE(EB)ERAR F=h 13,043
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Shanghai Industrial Investment Third party
(Group) Co., Ltd
N AEENERA EERBERA BRESERERN1.20%# 5 25,000
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Shanghai Optical The guarantee holds 1.25%
Communication Corporation equity interests in the guarantor
PN AEENEAR RBIEXREEBERAA BREKHARRA2.5%ER 268,058
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Chengdu Industrial The guarantee holds 2.5% equity
Group Co., Ltd interests in the guarantor
PN AEENEAR RAIERESBERARA BRUSHHERA 59%EH 170,322
Tianma Subsidiary of the Group Chengdu Gaoxin Investment The guaranteg holds 1.59%
Group Co., Ltd equity interests in the guarantor
629,202
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50

NEEEE)

RZE—=F+=-A=+H ' x£82
Bf /& A B]Humboldt Wedag Inc., Norcross
(Georgia) ([HWUS ) ZE— 2B EXF

ﬁl["%?ﬁ@ﬁl REEDREZHFAR
HEREEMNREERTPEHE

HWUSZ/\H% T E R T S HWUS &
KHDZE £ [A > 119,400,000 7T ( A R #&
58,186,0007T) ' fEAR LT HWWERE -
if1 5,200,000 % 7t ( A R # 32,188,000
ﬁ)ﬁlJf’Ei%Z&ﬂk;%?&Fﬁ%%%éi%éz
1 cHMBEREZEMNTARSBER

CBRERERMASE(AEER) 5k

raanfﬂﬁi&(:\ﬂﬂ};ﬂzﬁ BIT(Em#sR)
HERRE - ZEEIHWUS(ETT ) REP

MZzARBERAEEEREHBET
2 FIRBEEEREINZ G (R FEh
HWUS R KHD R fF & SFfA R 2 Z ER K
meEEEERR)  HWUS RKHDRERER
WEREETER - FZMEFRAD
AOEE—(hHFABRE - BEEETT
MEFRER 2 ER - BFEDNEESF
AR-ZE—RF— AEBHARETE
FARERG - EEEERBRN T —HF
EERRFEIEL HIR -

50

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

On 20 December 2013, Humboldt Wedag Inc., Norcross
(Georgia) (“HWUS”), a subsidiary of the Group, received
an arbitration claim that a customer in South America has
submitted to the International Chamber of Commerce
(“ICC”). The arbitration claim aims to determine that
the cancellation of the contract with HWUS by the
customer is effective and that HWUS and KHD should be
ordered to jointly pay USD9,400,000 (RMB58,186,000)
as a reduction of the contractually agreed price and
USD5,200,000 (RMB32,188,000) as compensation for
maintenance costs and reputation loss suffered. The
arbitration claim also aims either to win indemnity as if
the contract had not been concluded (negative interest)
or to win indemnity as if the contract had been fulfilled as
agreed (positive interest). Considering that the contract
between HWUS (vendor) and the customer includes
clauses excluding compensation for consequential
damages and a set value for the upper limit of total
liability for the vendor — these clauses being effective in
the view of HWUS’s and KHD’s legal representatives in
the arbitration proceedings — HWUS and KHD assume
that they will prevail on the issue of indemnity. The two
arbitration claims above were combined in a single
arbitration proceeding. The negotiation before the court
of arbitration continues. Evidence was taken in a hearing
with witnesses from both parties in Lisbon in January
2015. A decision from the court of arbitration is expected
during the course of 2015.
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51 &g 51 COMMITMENTS
(a) EBEBREE (a) Capital commitments
REEHNAEENE REAED Capital commitments at the balance sheet date
™~ but not yet incurred are as follows:
PN~ | N
Group Company
—E-mE =% —Z-NF —T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARETT  AREFT  ARBETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(iE5l)
(Restated)
EHENER ST Contracted but not
provided for
TR E Land use rights 958,117 1,088,624 - =
mE - BE &R Property, plant and
equipment 772,720 948,287 - -
BAERRE Equity interest Investments 510,005 = = -
BEAE Purchase commitments 274,284 2 = =
2,515,126 2,036,911 - -
PN | b ON
Group Company
“E-NF —Z-=F “Z-mF “E-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ABEFT AREFIT AB¥FT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BREERTH Authorised but not

contracted for

mE - BERSZ Property, plant and
equipment 377,865 365,865 - -
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51 &iE#)
(b) EEBNERE
7N 22 EAR 12 % A K 5 6 7R AT 8

51 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group has commitments under non-

EEFAHAIELT cancellable operating leases in respect of office
premises as follows:
—E-OmF —E—=F
2014 2013
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(F&E5))
(Restated)
TR —F Not later than one year 121,976 94,792
HBA—FETHEART Later than one year and
not later than five years 172,446 122,590
fBiE AT After five years 27,248 =
321,670 217,382
52 ¥EBE6t 52 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@ RK-ZT—NF—AWA £~%£8
MEBARFMREGLR) BIER
fir AR A AU E R PG *ET
BRERAR(DEYIFH])55%
¥ RBEAARES,250,0007T °

(a) On 4 January 2014, AVIC TED (Beijing)
Automation Technology Co., Ltd. (FfiZEE (4
) BHERTARR A R]), a subsidiary of the Group,
acquired 55% equity interests of Shenzhen
Zhongchang Marine Engineering Co., Ltd. (&I
MEFETIRAR A A (“Shenzhen Zhongchang”) at
a consideration of RMB8,250,000.
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52 ¥K&6te) 52 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
(@ (&) (@) (continued)
TR IFEY P FAR The following table summarises the consideration
B RUKBE R EE AL ESEA paid for Shenzhen Zhongchang, fair value of the
EEABENAAEE - assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

acquisition date.

RIE : Consideration: AT T
R-ZE-DNFE—-ANA At 4 January 2014 RMB’000
b Cash 8,250
FETN BB E BB B E R ATAIE Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
EERANSEE acquired and liabilities assumed
ReERBEEY Cash and cash equivalents 9,184
B 5 N E A EUWGRIR Trade and other receivables 8,407
78 Inventories 2,731
Y - RERERENET11) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 1,114
B 5 N EAMER IR Trade and other payables (6,482)
AR FEEARE Total identifiable net assets 14,954
FEIE R AR SR A Non-controlling interests (6,704)
8,250

R-_ZEZ—NF—AWBE_-F
—mNFE+=-—A=Z+—BHH &
AW FERFAFIFEERHD
WA B AR 57,133,000 7T °
FIN A AR B HA B R A A R
1,814,0007T °

Revenue of RMB57,1383,000 included in the
consolidated income statement from 4 January
2014 to 31 December 2014 was contributed by
Shenzhen Zhongchang. Shenzhen Zhongchang
contributed profit of RMB1,814,000 over the same
period.
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52

®¥¥e6t®

(b)

BT ——F AEERLHE
BKHD 20% it - R=ZF—=
F+AZE-_ZT—FMAHRME
mﬁluﬁuTyIﬁ X5 ([ #%%F
KHDZZ % |) #8 E A KHD #Y) i% # e
20%3£%89.02% :

i) RZE—=F+H+—
H:ARARBEEZER
B A FlAVIC International
Engineering Holdings Pte.
Ltd.(TAVIC Engineering]l)
DREETEBIE =75
Nt ZfhE o AEE
KHD#719.03% A% #& - #814X
{E#960,993,000B T (AR
#518,645,0007T) °

(ii) [ B+ AVIC Engineering
HZEREHERAES
ARA(HRERRAW
B B ~ | - Bl Europe

Engineering Holdings
Pte. Ltd. » Europe Project
Management Pte. Ltd.
X Europe Technology
Investment Pte. Ltd.) &
HRARERKERZSE A&
i/“if‘&ﬂx%%ﬁﬁKHDHx
- WEBEBREZER_-ZF
—D_FIQE )EJ—'—/\E'“\D;E
RUEEZERAN - K
EEE - FUWEKHD A
49.99% i #E - ARELNR
160,263,000 7T ( A &
1,362,769,0007T) °

HEKHDRSER-T—MmF
RA—+HEERMK - TR
KHD3XZ 1 f % (B + PR B 587
WABERFAREEOL A E
'fgo

U B8 = A e 2B A R #5359,528,000
TR EAREBEKHDS (%7
TEER A S AR B B RN 2 ©

52

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The Group originally held 20% equity interests
in KHD since 2011, From October 2013 to April
2014, the Group increased its shareholding in
KHD from 20% to 89.02% through a series of
transactions (the “KHD Transactions”) as follows:

(b)

On 11 October 2013, AVIC International
Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd. (“AVIC
Engineering”), a indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered
into twelve agreements separately with
certain individual third parties to purchase
approximately 19.03% equity interests
in KHD for an aggregate consideration
of approximately EUR60,993,000
(RMB518,645,000).

Concurrently, AVIC Engineering together
with the BVI Companies (essentially
affiliated entities of the Company, named
Europe Engineering Holdings Pte. Ltd.,
Europe Project Management Pte. Ltd.,
Europe Technology Investment Pte. Ltd.)
launched a takeover offer to acquire shares
of KHD from the then public shareholders.
The takeover offer closed on 16 January
2014. By the closing of the takeover offer,
the Group further acquired approximately
49.99% equity interests in KHD with
aggregate consideration of approximately
EUR160,263,000 (RMB1,362,769,000).

The KHD Transactions were completed on 27
May 2014. The following table summarises the
consideration paid for KHD, fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition

date.

Goodwill of RMB359,528,000 arising from the
acquisition was attributable to economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the
Group and KHD.
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52 ¥K&6te) 52 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
by (#&) (b) (continued)
TRFMAKHDZ HHRE - B The following table summarises the consideration
WEEBHMBABEMT&IES paid for KHD, fair value of the assets acquired and
ERAREE - liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.
®RE: Consideration: ARETFT
R-ZE—HmNFEFREA=-++tH At 27 May 2014 RMB’000
Rer Cash* 1,881,414
R EKHDR S A Jc Bl P &9 Fair value of the previously held 20% equity
KHD 20% & #E8 A 7 BE interest in KHD before the KHD Transactions 482,660
2,364,074
BT T E A EER Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
FIAEEERIANESEE acquired and liabilities assumed
He kIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,049,899
B 5 Kk EH M e FIE Trade and other receivables 787,474
BRAnBESBERLE Financial assets at fair value
ZEREE through profit or loss 8,784
ER | Inventories 483,464
VI - BB MBI T1) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 21,675
mEE(ME10) Intangible assets (Note 10) 667,637
EIEFTIS I & E (K72220) Deferred income tax assets (Note 20) 62,134
B 5 REMER A Trade and other payables (1,139,614)
B (H15238) Provisions (Note 38) (222,276)
MEFTSHAE Current income tax liabilities (9,541)
SRR R B b 7048 1 B E (415235) Retirement and other supplemental benefit
obligations (Note 35) (209,946)
EEFTSRAaE (A Z20) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) (240,618)
TR B R EEAEE Total identifiable net assets 2,259,072
VAR AR B A Non-controlling interests (254,526)
BES Goodwill 359,528
2,364,074
RZE—NEFRAZ++EHEZ Revenue of RMB1,378,574,000 included in the
T—NFE+=-—A=+—HHH consolidated income statement from 27 May 2014
RAWEERET AKHDE BRI YR A to 31 December 2014 was contributed by KHD.
A ANRE1,378,574,0007T ° KHD KHD contributed profit of RMB37,814,000 over
&) HA 2 A& i ) A R #37,814,000 the same period.
7T|: o
* WERBERZZTE—=FMURE * Consideration of acquisition has been paid as
AR - prepayment in 2013.
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®¥¥e6t®

(c)

R-ZE—mOFENA=Z+HH X
555 #8317 49132,683,000 B A%
D (TRERD ) ERWERZ
X 55 FIERQ0% AL AE ©

TREDAREERF AR
B RUBARMBAEESRM
AERBENRAEE -

52

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 25 August 2014, Tianma completed
the acquisition of the remaining 90% of
the equity interests of Wuhan Tianma by
issuing approximately 132,683,000 A shares
(“Consideration Shares”).

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for Wuhan Tianma, fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition

date.

KfE : Consideration: AT T
R-ZB-—OFENA=+HH At 25 August 2014 RMB’000
RERODH AR EE Fair value of the Consideration Shares

(K15£5.2 (c)) (Note 5.2 (c)) 1,937,170
ERIFTHREERF10% Fair value of the previously held 10%

RER AR EE equity interest in Wuhan Tianma 186,188

2,123,358

BATWEE T E A EER Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

FIREEERIANSE acquired and liabilities assumed
B MREHEY Cash and cash equivalents 652,700
ZRHIEE Restricted cash 27,701
B 5 Kk EMEWRFRIE Trade and other receivables 1,708,550
=g Inventories 490,406
Y - BB MEE A1) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 2,823,241
BEMEHE12) Investment properties (Note 12) 13,286
mEE(ME10) Intangible assets (Note 10) 7,508
T R (A a2 7) Land use right (Note 7) 259,442
TEEIR(MHE13) Construction-in-progress (Note 13) 55,573
HEmIEmBEE Other non-current assets 134,563
EE:N Borrowings (2,475,699)
B 5 REM R FRIE Trade and other payables (1,764,700)
IEFTS R A& (HTat20) Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 20) (44,261)
HEmIEmBAatE Other non-current liabilities (21,434)
CE3:b 503 Total identifiable net assets 1,861,876
o Goodwil 261,482

2,123,358

R-ZE—NWENA-+BEZ
T—NE+-_A=+—BHH -
HRARZERFTAREXRETEW
WA B AR #A1,869,657,0007T °
RERARSRBEEARINARKE
122,482,0007T °

Revenue of RMB1,869,657,000 included in the
consolidated income statement from 26 August
2014 to 31 December 2014 was contributed by
Wuhan Tianma. Wuhan Tianma contributed profit
of RMB122,482,000 over the same period.
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356
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(d)

AEBEREIFHAVIC Zhenjiang
Shipyard Marine Pte. Ltd([AVIC
Zhenjiang |)60% &4 - 1R EAVIC
Zhenjiang M 404 Z 2 4B R - HEF
BREEBREBBENLED
SO KRERNRRERE -
It » AVIC Zhenjiangi A= B 2 &
AR R EES] - AR ER
BELEAR - R-ZT—HEFA
B=-+H ' AVIC ZhenjiangZ21TA%
RASWIEBFTABERMA - 1B
BHABKERER - AEEEN
2 HIAVIC Zhenjiang BB 1§ K2 458
B - AVIC Zhenjiang A i1 i A& 72K
SENHBAR -

TRE|ARN KB RABAZE
HTEERENAAREE -
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(d)

The Group originally held 60% of AVIC Zhenjiang
Shipyard Marine Pte. Ltd (“AVIC Zhenjiang”).
According to the article of association of AVIC
Zhenjiang, its financial and operating policies shall
be approved by shareholders representing at least
two thirds of the voting rights. Therefore, AVIC
Zhenjiang is jointly controlled by the Group and
the other shareholder, and is accounted for as
a joint venture by the Group. On 30 September
2014, AVIC Zhenjiang held shareholder meetings
and revised the article of association. According
to the new article of association, the Group is able
to control the financial and operating policies of
AVIC Zhenjiang, AVIC Zhenjiang then became a
subsidiary of the Group.

The following table summarises the fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

RE: Consideration: AR TT
R=Z2-OFHhA=+H At 30 September 2014 RMB’000
FEBIFTHFAVIC Zhenjiang 60% Fair value of the previously held 60%
et AR EE equity interest in AVIC Zhenjiang 17,148
BMETWBIERINEER Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
FIREEERIANSE acquired and liabilities assumed
RERBEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,554
FE Inventories 124,196
Y - BENEE(MET1) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 9
B Borrowings (27,018)
B 5 REMER A Trade and other payables (61,159)
HiBE Other liabilities (9,004)
AR FEEARE Total identifiable net assets 28,578
FEFE AR AR B AE 25 Non-controlling interests (11,430)
17,148

RZE—NFLA=+HE_Z
—mE+=-—A=+—BHH® &
AUz RET AAVIC Zhenjiang & ik
A B A R # 88,566,000 7T °
AVIC Zhenjiang[RIEAE £ RFIA R
#12,167,0007T °

Revenue of RMB88,566,000 included in
the consolidated income statement from 30
September 2014 to 31 December 2014 was
contributed by AVIC Zhenjiang. AVIC Zhenjiang
contributed profit of RMB12,167,000 over the
same period.
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EXEBAIRS

AEERAPRER(RPBEKZOBEER
ADIEH - R AR EERLRARFEARRA
T5%RMD o EER25% M1 AR BEIZ HF

53 53

B -BEZRR/TMIED JZ\%K%H’\]
R A B MR R A
BRI mAEME D AR EEIN - AR

BaERBERGERET R L ETH
iﬁfﬁ% ARG RABB TR HELN

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by AVIC International, a state-
controlled company established in the PRC which directly
and indirectly hold 75% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 25% of the shares are widely held. The
directors regard Aviation Industry as the holding company
and ultimate holding company of the Group respectively.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of

EERBLMIAT ¢ business between the Group and its related parties and
the balances arising from related party transactions:
(a) HEB AN S (a) Transactions with related parties
AEH
Group
—E—uF —EF—=
2014 2013
AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
€ s==x7))
(Restated)
WA Revenue:
ﬁ‘ﬁ%f% Sale of goods
- UNC] — Associates 1,140,737 1,789,288
- EP%KI% — Fellow subsidiaries of
EE PN Aviation Industry 690,984 235,013
HEEHEE — Jointly controlled entities 64,554 48,590
? /NS — Holding company 14,480 290
— IR AT — Ultimate holding company 1,075 392
— IR IR R M — Non-controlling interests = 21,334
1,911,830 2,094,907
MHERA Rental income
— IR — Fellow subsidiaries of
EEA)SPNG Aviation Industry 16,814 10,932
o /N - Associates 2,470 -
— IR AR R — Non-controlling interests 823 1,124
2 /NG| - Holding company 422 -
= EF‘ﬁn/ j#II — AVIC Shenzhen 210 -
20,739 12,056
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53 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(@) EBREBINXZ(E)

53 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

AEE
Group
—E—MmF ZE—=F
2014 2013
AREFT ARYETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E3))
(Restated)
TREMEBKA Engineering and management income
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of
EEX)=YNG] Aviation Industry 771,836 255,837
—HEE A R] - Associates 86,900 —
— PR A F] - Holding company = 55
858,736 255,892
H RIS WA Other service income
—HmTE — Fellow subsidiaries of
GES NG Aviation Industry 32,193 29,606
NG - Associates 12,347 26,063
— AR — AVIC Shenzhen 1,792 2,830
— =R A R] - Holding company 1,427 183
—HEEHIEEE - Jointly controlled entities 53 5
47,812 58,687
BEEmERE Purchase of goods and services:
BEEMm Purchases of goods
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of
EEX ) =YNG] Aviation Industry 1,262,343 439,854
— BN A — Associates 359,994 446,498
— PR IR R A e — Non-controlling interests 2,794 =
— HREEH T — Jointly controlled entities 4,053 2,710
1,629,183 889,062
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53 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(@) EBREBINXZ(E)

53 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

AEH
Group
—E—mEF —ET—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
BETEREERS Purchases of engineering and
management services
—HmTE - Fellow subsidiaries of
EEEEPNG Aviation Industry 18,816 40,585
—BtE N T — Associates 1,650 51,736
— FEPE R AR e e - Non-controlling interests - 227
20,466 92,548
HEBEAEY%EEEER Rental fee and property
management fee
— B A R] — Associates 4,394 1,157
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of Aviation
EEX =N Industry 357 2,467
4,751 3,624
EAth AR A AN Other service costs
— AR T2 - Fellow subsidiaries of
EEA NG Aviation Industry 60,562 39,843
/NG - Associates 14,980 -
75,542 39,843
FBFRZ Interest expense
— T - Fellow subsidiaries of
EEAEPNG Aviation Industry 159,604 93,104
—¥ERR A Al — Holding company 48,441 46,478
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 33,535 21,369
— FEPE R AR e e - Non-controlling interests 77 =
241,667 160,951
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53 EARBEEAIXB#) 53

(@) HEHEBINXS(E)
HRFHEERNRS

ARrEBEERE  ATFBERA
BRAETES] o o BB E Gl B
AR EEEERER - XN
X A HL A AP B R T 6 B R Y
RERBYBIRS  WERHE
ZEERETEERTEFRAE
EEBBER - FA - KARET
ERREGFRREBRT - M
FIERBZIERBEARITEA

(b)  EREAEET KVAERR
HEEB AR N ESHRE REER
RENBRERERE

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)
Transactions with government related entities:

The Company is a state-owned enterprise
ultimately controlled by the PRC government. The
PRC government controls a significant portion
of the productive assets and entities in the PRC.
The transactions between the Company and
other PRC government controlled entities are
related party transactions. These transactions
mainly include depositing cash in and obtaining
borrowings from certain stated-owned banks.
Nearly all of the Company’s cash were deposited
in and all of the borrowings were borrowed from
state-owned banks during the year.

Balances with related parties

The balances with related parties companies are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

AEHE
Group
—E—-0mEF —F—=
2014 2013
AR¥FT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&=E5))
(Restated)
H UGB Other receivables
—FRf T % — Fellow subsidiaries of
BZRMB AR Aviation Industry 188,663 174,263
— A T] - Holding company 147,343 89,035
/N - Associates 37,730 27,577
— Y — AVIC Shenzhen 11,500 11,500
—HEEHIE S — Jointly controlled entities 90 5
385,326 302,380
FEUUR 2 Interest receivables

— R T2 — Fellow subsidiaries of Aviation
EES =G Industry 3,495 =
/NG — Associates - 14,041
3,495 14,041
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53 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(b) EREAEETTEVAEER(E)

53 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

AEE
Group
—E—MmEF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E5)
(Restated)
FEU AR SR Accounts receivable
—HfTE — Fellow subsidiaries of
EEX ) =YNG Aviation Industry 652,222 257,773
— HEEHI T - Jointly controlled entities 25,729 27,579
— ¥R A T] - Holding company 841 10,572
— R IRIER A A — Ultimate holding company 524 65
— BN A — Associates - 382,820
679,316 678,809
TETRIE Prepayments
— iR - AVIC Shenzhen 60,002 348
— AT ¥ - Fellow subsidiaries of
EEA)SPNG Aviation Industry 21,393 57,505
o /N - Associates 16,978 -
—¥ERR A T] — Holding company 105 =
98,478 57,853
FExtE R LR EMERFIE  Accrual and other payables
—Hp T — Fellow subsidiaries of
GES =G Aviation Industry 86,351 124,163
— A R] — Holding company 35,937 42,830
—mhfmE — AVIC Shenzhen 9,399 8,280
/N - Associates 3,861 5,661
—EEE — Joint ventures 184 =
135,732 180,934
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53 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(b) EREAEETTEVAEER(E)

53 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

AEH
Group
—E—mEF —ET—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E3))
(Restated)
FERTRRER Accounts payable
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of
[F] 2 B 1 7] Aviation Industry 83,868 52,765
— 1A% A A - Holding company 178 468
—BrE A - Associates - 457,978
— R - AVIC Shenzhen = 1,119
84,046 512,330
EPBN Advance from customers
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of
BESH--NG Aviation Industry 89,501 137,173
/N - Associates 863 33,042
— 1R A A - Holding company - 4,430
—HREEHEEE — Jointly controlled entities - 28,194
90,364 202,839
FERTAIE Interest payables
— PRI - AVIC Shenzhen 6,458 5,381
—H T — Fellow subsidiaries of
BES)-FNG Aviation Industry 3,873 1,666
— IR A R] - Holding company 3,372 17,324
13,703 24,371
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53 BEAREBAEXZ &) 53 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) BREIE 5 AR () Borrowings from related parties
r5E
Group
—T—=F g g —Z2-NF
2013 Additions Repayment 2014
ANREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E75)
(Restated)
SPAE M EN A Included in other payables
(#1:237(a) (Note 37(a))
—HfTE — Fellow subsidiaries of
BEL P Aviation Industry 114,929 359,762 (165,039) 309,652
— AR R - Non-controlling interests 8,780 270 = 9,050
— iz - AVIC Shenzhen 84,660 - (84,660) -
—ERAF] - Holding company 114,200 45,000 (114,200) 45,000
322,569 405,032 (363,899) 363,702
STAEMERE Included in other liabilities
(H17£36) (Note 36)
—ERAA - Holding company 881,340 650,000 (881,340) 650,000
— iz — AVIC Shenzhen 125,000 - (25,000 100,000
1,006,340 650,000 (906,340) 750,000
AR Included in borrowings
(H13£33) (Note 33)
—hfmTE — Fellow subsidiaries of
RZEMEAR Aviation Industry 1,426,521 2,424,872 (1,002,467) 2,848,926
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53 EBEABBALIXZ#)

54

364

(d) HBTFEBEAINER

53

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Loan to related parties

r5E
Group
—E-=F g B& —E-mf
2013 Additions Repayment 2014
ANREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(#535)
(Restated)
ST AEA YRR Included in other receivables
(Htzt24) (Note 24(b))
1 -UNG - Associates 189,948 5,186 (58,404) 136,730
—HmmIE - Fellow subsidiaries of
RZMEBAR Aviation Industry 39,874 1,145,161 (12,623) 1,172,412
229,822 1,150,347 (71,027) 1,309,142
REHIERETR 54 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

HE—EBE QT
IERAGRERFEEEE RRPHMEM
MMETAERQG([FMmEMAA])
45% 1% - BREE A AR 84,124,000
TeR_E—MNF+_A=+HAB - it
RAaBEFBENRMEMA AR
RUEREER (Tt REEZZFT])
ERIZ - ZE A ARYI1,811,0007T °
RZZE—RF—AZ+NAB  FMFEM
AEEBAREMNOEMMER R A
(TEMAR ) B R AR e 0 I
THEELEEREIUAREOI,811,0007T
MER KB TR AT R E MDA E
BRAS%HE LS -

Disposal of an associate

Beijing Company originally held 45% interests of Taizhou
CATIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited (“/ i Z= /!
MAMEIBMR AT (“CATIC Taizhou Company”), an
associate of Beijing Company with carrying amount
of RMB84,124,000. On 25 December 2014, Beijing
Company put the interests of CATIC Taizhou Company
to China Beijing Equity Exchange (“it mER T 5 Fr”)
(“CBE”) for biding, the biding price was RMB91,811,000.
On 29 January 2015, Taizhou Kou’an Shipbuilding Co.,
Ltd (“BMAEMMAER AR (“Taizhou Company”), the
holding company of CATIC Taizhou Company, entered
into an agreement with Beijing Company and executed
the pre-emption right to acquire the 45% interests of
CATIC Taizhou Company held by Beijing Company at a
price of RMB91,811,000.
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